
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING AGENDAMEETING AGENDA

JANUARY 15, 2026JANUARY 15, 2026

OTO CONFERENCE ROOM, SUITE 101 OTO CONFERENCE ROOM, SUITE 101 

2208 W. CHESTERFIELD BLVD., SPRINGFIELD2208 W. CHESTERFIELD BLVD., SPRINGFIELD



  

 

 
REVISED Board of Directors Mee�ng Agenda 

January 15, 2026 
12:00 – 1:30 p.m. 

The Board of Directors will convene at the OTO offices. 
The online public viewing of the mee�ng will be available on the OTO YouTube Page:  

htps://www.youtube.com/@OzarksTransporta�on  
The full agenda will be made available on the OTO website: ozarkstransporta�on.org 

 
 
Call to Order .............................................................................................................................. NOON 
 
 

I. Administra�on 
 

A. Approval of Board of Directors Mee�ng Agenda 
(2 minutes/Cossey)  
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 

B. Approval of November 20, 2025 Minutes ..............................................................Tab 1 
(2 minutes/Cossey) 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE MEETING MINUTES 
 

C. Public Comment Period for All Agenda Items ...................................................... Tab 10 
Individuals atending the mee�ng in person and reques�ng to speak are asked to fill out 
a public comment form prior to the mee�ng.  Individuals and organiza�ons have a 
combined 15 minutes which will be divided among those reques�ng to address the 
Board of Directors (not to exceed five minutes per individual).  Individuals atending the 
mee�ng online and would like to comment must submit comments in wri�ng by 5:00 
p.m. on January 14, 2026, to comment@ozarkstransporta�on.org or at 
www.giveusyourinput.com.  These comments will be provided to the Board prior to the 
mee�ng.  Any public comment received since the last mee�ng will be included in the 
agenda packet under Tab 10. 
 

D. Execu�ve Director’s Report 
(5 minutes/Fields) 
A review of staff ac�vi�es since the last Board of Directors mee�ng will be given. 
 

E. MoDOT Update 
(5 minutes/MoDOT) 
A MoDOT staff member will give an update of MoDOT ac�vi�es. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/@OzarksTransportation
https://www.ozarkstransportation.org/
mailto:comment@ozarkstransportation.org
http://www.giveusyourinput.com/


F. Legisla�ve Reports 
(5 minutes/Cossey) 
Representa�ves from the OTO area legisla�ve delega�on will have an opportunity to 
give updates on current items of interest.   
 

G. Federal Funds Status Update ................................................................................Tab 2 
(2 minutes/Thomas) 
Staff will provide an update on FY 2026 obliga�ons. 

 
II. New Business 

 
A. FY 2026-2029 Transporta�on Improvement Program Amendment Three ...............Tab 3 

(2 minutes/Longpine) 
Changes are proposed to the FY 2026-2029 Transporta�on Improvement Program. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT THREE TO 
THE FY 2026-2029 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 

B. 2026 Na�onal Performance Targets ......................................................................Tab 4 
(5 minutes/Longpine) 
The OTO must adopt performance targets rela�ng to safety, transit asset management 
and transit safety.  The proposed targets are included for review. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO SUPPORT THE STATEWIDE AND CU 
PERFORMANCE TARGETS 
 

C. Statewide Safe Ac�ve Transporta�on Plan Leter of Support .................................Tab 5 
(5 minutes/Knaut) 
OTO has been asked to provide a leter of support for a Statewide Safe Ac�ve 
Transporta�on Plan. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR 
THE DEVELOPMENT OF A STATEWIDE SAFE ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN IN 
MISSOURI 
 

D. Federal Discre�onary Grant Support .....................................................................Tab 6 
(5 minutes/Parks) 
Board support is requested for federal discre�onary grant applica�ons for Highway MM 
in Republic and Sunshine Street in Springfield. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE INCLUDED 
RESOLUTIONS AND TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM INCLUSION 
CERTIFICATES AS PROVIDED 
 

E. Ozark Mul�-Trail Planning and Design Project .......................................................Tab 7 
(5 minutes/Parks) 
The OTO is providing project engineering services administra�on for the City of Ozark.  
An increase in project scope is requested. 



Project Memorandum of Agreement Amendment 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN ADDENDUM TO THE EXISTING MEMORANDUM OF 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF OZARK TO INCREASE THE SCOPE AND FEE OF THE 
ENGINEERING SERVICES ADMINISTRATION FOR THE MULTI-TRAIL PROJECT 
 
Engineering Services Contract 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND EXECUTE THE AMENDED CONSULTANT CONTRACTS WITH 
THE INCREASED SCOPE AND FEE FOR KALI SPRINGS CONNECTOR AND BLUE STEM 
PHASE I 
 
Budget Amendment 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO APPROVE THE FY2026 OPERATIONAL 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #4 
 

F. Nicholas and Tracker Intersec�on Project Management MOA ................................Tab 8 
(5 minutes/Parks) 
The OTO is proposing to provide Project Management for the project.  The associated 
Memorandum of Agreement is included. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH CHRISTIAN COUNTY 
TO PROVIDE PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE NICHOLAS AND TRACKER 
INTERSECTION PROJECT 
 

G. Chesterfield Lo�s Lease Renewal – 1 Year .............................................................Tab 9 
(5 minutes/Fields) 
The OTO is proposing a one year lease extension to allow �me for the transporta�on 
reauthoriza�on in September prior to reloca�on. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION IS REQUESTED TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A ONE-YEAR LEASE RENEWAL OPTION FOR OFFICE SPACE IN 
THE CHESTERFIELD LOFTS BUILDING 
 

III. Other Business 
 

A. Board of Directors Member Announcements 
(2 minutes/Board of Directors Members) 
Members are encouraged to announce transporta�on events being scheduled that may 
be of interest to OTO Board of Directors members. 

 
B. Transporta�on Issues for Board of Directors Member Review 

(2 minutes/Board of Directors Members) 
Members are encouraged to raise transporta�on issues or concerns that they have for 
future agenda items or later in-depth discussion by the OTO Board of Directors. 
 

C. Ar�cles for Board of Directors Member Informa�on ........................................... Tab 11 



(Ar�cles atached) 
 

IV. Adjourn Mee�ng 
A mo�on is requested to adjourn the mee�ng.  Targeted for 1:30 p.m. 
 
The next Board of Directors regular mee�ng is scheduled for Thursday, March 26, 2026 at 12:00 
p.m. in person.  Please note, this is the fourth Thursday of the month. 
 

Atachments 
 

Si usted necesita la ayuda de un traductor, por favor comuníquese con David Knaut al (417) 865-3042, al 
menos 48 horas antes de la reuníon. 
 

Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who 
require interpreter services (free of charge) should contact David Knaut at (417) 865-3042 at least 24 hours 
ahead of the meeting. 
 

If you need relay services, please call the following numbers:  711 - Nationwide relay service; 1-800-735-2966 
- Missouri TTY service; 1-800-735-0135 - Missouri voice carry-over service. 
 

OTO fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes and regulations in all 
programs and activities.  For more information or to obtain a Title VI Complaint Form, see 
www.ozarkstransportation.org/our-resources/civil-rights or call (417) 865-3042. 

http://www.ozarkstransportation.org/our-resources/civil-rights


 

 

 

 

 

TAB 1 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM I.B. 
 

November 20, 2025 Meeting Minutes 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
Attached for Board member review are the minutes from the Board of Directors November 20, 2025 
meeting. Please review these minutes prior to the meeting and note any changes that need to be made.  
The Chair will ask during the meeting if any member has any amendments to the attached minutes. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve the Board of Directors November 20, 2025 meeting minutes” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to approve the Board of Directors November 20, 2025 meeting minutes with 
the following corrections…” 



 

 
1 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – November 20, 2025 

 

OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

NOVEMBER 20, 2025 
 

The Board of Directors of the Ozarks Transportation Organization met at its scheduled time of 12:00 p.m. in 
person.  

 
The following members were present: 
 

Steve Bach, Springfield Citizen-at-Large 
Travis Cossey, City of Nixa (a) 
Eric Franklin, City of Republic 
Brandon Jenson, City of Springfield 
Marshall Kinne, Springfield Citizen-at-Large 
Derek Lee, City of Springfield 
 
 

Lynn Morris, Christian County 
Stacy Reese, MoDOT (non-voting) 
John Russell, Greene County (Chair) 
Dan Smith, City of Springfield (a) 
Kelly Turner, City Utilities 
 

(a) Denotes alternate given voting privileges as a substitute for voting member not present 
 
The following members were not present: 
 

Cecelie Cochran, FHWA (non-voting) 
Jerry Compton, Citizen-at-Large 
Mark Crabtree, City of Battlefield 
RJ Flores, Christian Co Citizen-at-Large 
Eric Johnson, City of Ozark (a) 
 

Rusty MacLachlan, Greene County 
Mark Schenkelberg, FAA (non-voting) 
Brian Weiler, Springfield-Branson Airport (a) 
Wes Young, City of Willard (a) 
 

Others Present:  Scott Bachman, City of Springfield; Ryan DeBoef, Consultant; Nicole Boyd, Dave Faucett, David 
Knaut, Natasha Longpine, Debbie Parks, and Jen Thomas, Ozarks Transportation Organization. 
 
Chair Russell called the meeting to order at approximately 12:01 p.m. 
 
I. Administration 
     

A quorum was present. 
 

A. Approval of Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
Brandon Jenson made a motion to approve the November 20, 2025 agenda.  Steve Bach seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed.   
 

B. Public Comment Period for All Agenda Items 
The Chair advised there were public comments included in the packet and then asked for comments 
and questions.  There were no in-person or online comments. 
 

C. Adoption of the Consent Agenda 
Kelly Turner made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  Brandon Jenson seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 
 



 

 
2 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – November 20, 2025 

 

 
Consent Agenda Items:   
 

1. September 25, 2025 Minutes 
2. FY2026 1st Quarter Financial Statements 
3. Destination 2045 Amendment 11 
4. FY 2026-2029 Transportation Improvement Program Amendment 2 
5. FY 2026-2029 TIP Administrative Modification 2 

                      
D. Executive Director’s Report 

Sara Fields provided an update of upcoming legislative activity, projects, and ongoing work at the 
OTO. 
 

E. MoDOT Update 
Frank Miller and Stacy Reese provided the MoDOT update. 
 

F. Legislative Reports 
There was no legislative report. 
 

II.  New Business 
 

A.   September 30, 2025 Federal Funds Balance Report  
Jen Thomas shared the current federal funds status.  Natasha Longpine highlighted the September 
30, 2025 Federal Funds Balance Report. 
 
This was informational only.  No action was required. 
 

B.   FY 2027-2031 STIP Priorities 
Sara Fields presented the recommended priorities for inclusion in the FY 2027-2031 Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
Lynn Morris made a motion to approve the presented list of priorities for consideration by MoDOT 
for inclusion in the FY 2027-2031 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program.  Derek Lee 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

C.    State Highway MM Funding Agreement – DED and OTO 
Debbie Parks reviewed the funding agreement needed to transfer funds from DED to MoDOT for the 
Missouri General Revenue appropriation for State Highway MM. 
 
Dan Smith made a motion to approve the included resolution and authorize the Executive Director to 
enter into a funding agreement with the Missouri Department of Economic Development to transfer 
$6 million general revenue line-item appropriation directly to MoDOT for the Highway MM Cost 
Share project.  Eric Franklin seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
3 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – November 20, 2025 

 

D.   60/65 Study 
Sara Fields shared the proposal to conduct a study of the road network near and including the US 60 
and US 65 interchange.   
 
The proposal includes: 
 

• Funding Agreement – The OTO will enter into a Funding Agreement with MoDOT for the 
federal funds to be utilized on the study.  The Funding Agreement will be up to $800,000 in 
Federal Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) and Urbanized Surface Transportation 
Grant (STBG-U) funds. 

    
  Derek Lee made a motion to approve the Executive Director to enter into a Funding Agreement 
  with MoDOT for the US-60/US-65 Access and Operational Study in the amount of $800,000 in 
  federal funds.  Steve Bach seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

• Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement – The partner agencies, City Utilities and Greene 
County, will be providing matching funds as outlined in an ICA.  In addition, the ICA will 
designate the transfer of $300,000 in STBG-U from the City of Springfield to the OTO.  This 
federal funding is $300,000 of the funds outlined in the Funding Agreement with MoDOT.   

 
  Marshall Kinne made a motion to approve the Executive Director to enter into an 
  Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement with the City of Springfield, City Utilities of Springfield, 
  and Greene County for the Cost Share of the US-60/US-65 Access and Operational Study.  Eric 
  Franklin seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

• Budget Amendment – The OTO maintains an operational budget that is comprised of the 
various grant budgets.  An amendment is needed to add the US-60/US-65 Access and 
Operational Study to the OTO Annual Operational Budget Class 630 – STBG Studies for 
FY2026. 
 

  Brandon Jenson made a motion to approve the FY2026 Operational Budget Amendment #3. 
  Marshall Kinne seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

• Engineering Services Resolution, RFQ, and Contract – Per the OTO’s purchasing policy, 
projects that require engineering services require a Request for Qualifications (RFQ).  The 
OTO will advertise the RFQ in December and will negotiate an engineering services contract 
with the selected Transportation Engineering Consultant in an amount not to exceed one 
million dollars.   

 
  Dan Smith made a motion to approve the included resolution to authorize the Executive Director 
  to solicit engineering services and enter into negotiations with engineering services consultants 
  and execute the contract for consultant services not to exceed one million dollars.  Eric Franklin 
  seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

E.    2026 Ozarks Regional Legislative Priorities 
Sara Fields highlighted the Springfield Area Chamber of Commerce’s Ozarks Regional Legislative 
Priorities.   
 



 

 
4 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – November 20, 2025 

 

This was informational only.  No action was required. 
 

  F.    Board Appointment of 2026 OTO Officers and Executive Committee Members 
Marshall Kinne, member of the Nominating Committee, presented the proposed 2026 Slate of 
Officers and the Executive Committee Members (1-year term).  Other members of the Nominating 
Committee included Steve Bach, Eric Franklin, and Dan Smith.  The floor was opened for other 
nominations.  There were no other nominations. 
 

• Chairman – Travis Cossey, Nixa 
• Vice-Chairman – Derek Lee, Springfield 
• Secretary – Eric Franklin, Republic 
• Treasurer – Eric Johnson, Ozark 
• Past Chair – John Russell, Greene County 
• Executive Committee – Jerry Compton, OTO Citizen-at-Large 
• Executive Committee – Brian Weiler, Springfield-Branson National Airport 

 
Marshall Kinne made a motion to appoint the 2026 OTO Officers and Executive Committee as 
presented.  Steve Bach seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 

 
G. Board of Directors 2026 Meeting Schedule 

Sara Fields shared the 2026 meeting schedule for the Board of Directors. 
 
This was informational only.  No action was required. 
 

III. Other Business 
 

A. Board of Directors Member Announcements 
There were no member announcements. 
 

B. Transportation Issues for Board of Directors Member Review 
There were no transportation issues for member review.  
 

C. Articles for Board of Directors Member Information 
Chair Russell noted there were articles of interest included in the packet for the members to review. 
 

IV. Adjourn meeting 
Travis Cossey made a motion to adjourn.  Marshall Kinne seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:48 p.m. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Eric Franklin 
OTO Secretary 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 2 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM I.G. 

Federal Funds Obligation Status – December 2025 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
Ozarks Transportation Organization is allocated Urban Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG-Urban) 
funds each year through MoDOT from the Federal Highway Administration.  OTO has elected to sub-
allocate the STBG-Urban funds among the jurisdictions within the MPO area.  Each of these jurisdiction’s 
allocations is based upon the population within the MPO area.  OTO’s balance is monitored as a whole 
by MoDOT, while OTO staff monitors each jurisdiction’s individual balance.   
 
THE OTO AREA MUST OBLIGATE ANOTHER $10.9 MILLION BY SEPTEMBER 30, 2026 OR MODOT WILL 
TAKE FUNDING TO USE ON MODOT ROADS.  In the past, MoDOT has limited OTO to no more than 
three years of accumulated funding as a balance.  To limit the accumulation of funds and to maximize 
August redistribution, MoDOT has now established a statewide goal that 100 percent of allocated funds 
are obligated each year, as well as an amount equal to any deobligations.  To meet the 100 percent goal, 
OTO must obligate another $11 million by September 30, 2026. 
 
Staff has developed a status report which documents federal fiscal year obligations to date, as well as 
projected obligations for the 2026 fiscal year. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
No official action is requested, however, OTO is requesting each jurisdiction review the report for any 
inaccuracies or changes in project status and advise staff.   



FY 26 Beginning Balance  $13,329,147  

120% Target (tentative)  $13,087,408  

100% Mandate/Annual Allocation  $10,906,173  

YTD Obligations  -$347,144.93  

Amount Needed to 100% Mandate  $11,253,318 

Remaining Critical Obligations  $9,057,904  

Amount Likely to Lapse  $2,195,414  

FY 2026 Project Tracking  



Balance Report
FY 2026 Status

Name Responsible Agency Planned Obligations Total Obligations

OBLIGATIONS

5901826 LeCompte Trail Springfield 127,240.00 127,240.00

5901829 Mt. Vernon/Miller Sidewalks Springfield (22,141.81) 105,098.19

0141028 14-Fort to Ridgecrest Nixa (931.92) 104,166.27

9901864 Finley River Trail Extension Ozark 97,478.13 201,644.40

9901837 Chadwick Flyer Phase II Ozark (8,811.47) 192,832.93

5901829 Mt. Vernon/Miller Sidewalks Springfield 154,312.00 347,144.93

PENDING OBLIGATIONS

5901839 South Creek at Glenstone Springfield (6,135.73) 341,009.20

PLANNED CRITICAL OBLIGATIONS

9901859 Trail of Tears Connector Battlefield (284,718.00) 56,291.20

CC2504 - Tracker/Nicholas Christian County (180,000.00) (123,708.80)

5901832 EV Chargers - Greene Greene County (51,840.00) (175,548.80)

MO2521 I-44 Aesthetics/Safety MoDOT (408,000.00) (583,548.80)

SP2509 Division RR MoDOT (300,000.00) (883,548.80)

S604083 South Sidewalks 6th-14th MoDOT (134,836.00) (1,018,384.80)

5936804 Ward Branch National to Fremont OTO (397,348.00) (1,415,732.80)

OT1901-19A5 (UPWP FY 2027) OTO (281,419.00) (1,697,151.80)

9901875 Chadwick Flyer Jackson Connector Ozark (254,919.00) (1,952,070.80)

9900905 N. 21st and N. 22nd Ozark (1,111,232.00) (3,063,302.80)

EN2607 Finley River Western Exp Ph 1 Ozark (891,989.60) (3,955,292.40)

5901834 Posenke Gap Ozark Greenways (672,253.60) (4,627,546.00)

9901867 Lost Hill Park Bridge CON Park Board (82,280.00) (4,709,826.00)

5901828 Sherman Parkway Link Springfield (411,207.14) (5,121,033.14)

MO2701 FY 2027 TMC Staff Springfield (512,000.00) (5,633,033.14)

SP2608 Campbell Ave ROW Springfield (360,000.00) (5,993,033.14)

SP2609 Kansas Ave ROW Springfield (400,000.00) (6,393,033.14)

SP2610 Springfield Resurfacing Springfield (2,400,000.00) (8,793,033.14)

PENDING DEOBLIGATIONS

5916808 ADA Sun., Nat'l, B.field 1,830.21 (8,791,202.93)

00FY824 OTO Operations/Planning 140,170.20 (8,651,032.73)

7441012 Kearney/Packer 69,522.96 (8,581,509.77)

9901827 ChadwickFlyr Jackson/Clay 41.57 (8,581,468.20)

5944805 Jackson Street Resurfacing 24,993.47 (8,556,474.73)

AT-RISK TO OBLIGATE

5900853 Main Bridge over Jordan ROW Springfield (352,000.00) (352,000.00)

EN2604 Wilson's Creek Republic Rd Trail Ozark Greenways (423,464.80) (775,464.80)

EN2610 Hines Street Ped Project Republic (246,906.40) (1,022,371.20)

0652084/S603067 E. Sunshine SW MoDOT (164,685.00) (1,187,056.20)

Ozarks Transportation Organization 1 Funds Balance Report - 12/10/2025



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 3 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM II.A. 
 

Amendment Number Three to the FY 2026-2029 Transportation Improvement Program 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
There are multiple items included as part of Amendment Number Three to the FY 2026-2029 
Transportation Improvement Program.   
 
1. *Revised* Fassnight Greenway – Glenstone to Enterprise (EN2423) 

Springfield has requested to add ROW as the next phase for this project in the total additional 
amount of $3,315,000. 
 

2. *New* Area Wide School Flasher Program (EN2612) 
OTO is adding funding for a competitive program for members to purchase school flashers, with a 
total programmed amount of $312,500.  The source of this funding will be from awarded project 
savings. 
 

3. *Revised* I-44 Safety Project (MO2521) 
MoDOT has requested to adjust funding to reflect changes in the Joplin and Laclede County portions 
of the project, reducing the total programmed amount to $470,933,000. 
 

4. *Revised* Main Avenue Bridge over Jordan Creek (SP2402) 
Springfield has requested to revise the ROW and Construction costs for a new total programmed 
amount of $4,440,000. 
 

5. *New* Fremont Avenue – Erie to Independence (SP2612) 
Springfield has requested to program ROW associated with a future street widening/trail project, for 
a total programmed amount of $1,100,000. 
 

6. *New* 2026 Springfield ADA Improvements – Various Routes (SP2613) 
Springfield has requested to add a project for ADA improvements on various federal-aid routes for a 
total programmed amount of $929,700. 
 

7. *New* Springfield School Flasher Signal Replacement – Various Locations (SP2607) 
Springfield is requesting to add a project for the replacement of flasher signals at various locations, 
as well as battery backup, for a total programmed amount of $682,010. 

 
TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN:   
At its regularly scheduled meeting held on December 17, 2025, the Technical Planning Committee 
recommended the Board of Directors approve Amendment 3 to the FY 2026-2029 Transportation 
Improvement Program. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve Amendment 3 to the FY 2026-2029 Transportation Improvement Program.” 
 



OR 
 
“Move to approve Amendment 3 to the FY 2026-2029 Transportation Improvement Program, with these 
changes…” 



26A3 Sponsored by Local Public
Agencies

Bicycle and Pedestrian City of Springfield

Greene County Springfield In Progress $3,759,000

- 5901837 Glenstone Avenue Enterprise Avenue

Bike/Ped Plan, Regional Trail
Plan Priority

Right-of-way acquisition for the continuation of the Fassnight Creek Greenway from Glenstone to Enterprise near Bennett.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Springfield

Engineering CRP (FHWA) $355,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $355,200

Engineering Local $88,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $88,800

Total Engineering $444,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $444,000

ROW Local $0 $663,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $663,000

ROW STBG-U (FHWA) $0 $2,652,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,652,000

Total ROW $0 $3,315,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,315,000

Total Prior Costs $444,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $444,000

Total Programmed $444,000 $3,315,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,759,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2423-26A3 - FASSNIGHT GREENWAY-GLENSTONE TO ENTERPRISE



CURRENT
CHANGE
REASON

Schedule / Funding / Scope- Update Changes in a project’s total programmed
amount greater than 25% (or any amount greater than $2,000,000), Adding funding
for right-of-way acquisition. due to Right-of-way acquisition for the continuation of
the Fassnight Creek Greenway from Glenstone to Enterprise along Bennett Street.

PROJECT
CHANGES

Description changed from "Engineering and design of the continuation of the
Fassnight Creek Greenway from Glenstone to Enterprise near Bennett." to "Right-of-
way acquisition for the continuation of the Fassnight Creek Greenway from
Glenstone to Enterprise near Bennett."

ID changed from "EN2423-24A4" to "EN2423-26A3"

Plan Revision Name changed from "26Adopted" to "26A3"

FUNDING
CHANGES

Local

+ Increase funds in FY 2026 in ROW from $0 to $663,000

STBG-U (FHWA)

+ Increase funds in FY 2026 in ROW from $0 to $2,652,000

FEDERAL
PROJECT
COST

Increased from $355,200 to $3,007,200 (746.62%)

TOTAL
PROJECT
COST

Increased from $444,000 to $3,759,000 (746.62%)



26A3 Sponsored by OTO Bicycle and Pedestrian Ozarks Transportation
Organization

Area Wide Area Wide Programmed $312,500

- - - -

Advance Construction, Bike/Ped
Plan

Purchase of school flasher equipment for use in the OTO area.

Non-Federal Funding Source: OTO Members - to be determined upon award; FYI: Federal Funding Category upon Anticipated Advanced Construction
(AC) Conversion - TAP

Capital Local $0 $62,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $62,500

Capital Local-AC $0 $250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250,000

Total Capital $0 $312,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $312,500

Total Programmed $0 $312,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $312,500

CURRENT CHANGE REASON New Project

FEDERAL PROJECT COST Stays the same $0

TOTAL PROJECT COST Stays the same $312,500

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FUTURE TOTAL

EN2612-23A3 - AREA WIDE SCHOOL FLASHER PROGRAM



26A3 Sponsored by MoDOT System Improvement MoDOT

Greene County Springfield, Strafford Programmed $470,933,000

ST0089 - Joplin Conway

-

Safety, capacity and pavement improvements at various locations from Fidelity to Conway.

Non-Federal Funding Source: SFY 2025 Special General Revenue Funds; local funds from City of Joplin (totaling $3,910,000) and City of Springfield
(totaling $101,992).

Engineering Local $0 $7,555 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,555

Engineering MoDOT $631,000 $16,331,225 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,962,225

Engineering STBG-U (FHWA) $0 $30,220 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,220

Total Engineering $631,000 $16,369,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,000,000

ROW NHPP (FHWA) $0 $18,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000

Total ROW $0 $18,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $18,000

Construction Local $0 $94,437 $0 $0 $0 $0 $94,437

Construction MoDOT $0 $352,498,115 $0 $0 $0 $0 $352,498,115

Construction NHPP (FHWA) $0 $94,112,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $94,112,800

Construction SAFETY (FHWA) $0 $6,831,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,831,900

Construction STBG-U (FHWA) $0 $377,748 $0 $0 $0 $0 $377,748

Total Construction $0 $453,915,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $453,915,000

Total Prior Costs $631,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $631,000

Total Programmed $631,000 $470,302,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $470,933,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FUTURE TOTAL

MO2521-26A3 - I-44 SAFETY PROJECT



CURRENT
CHANGE
REASON

Schedule / Funding / Scope- Update Changes in a project’s total programmed
amount greater than 25% (or any amount greater than $2,000,000) - Substantial
changes to the scope of a project (e.g. changing the number of through traffic
lanes, changing the type of project such as from rehabilitation to system expansion)

PROJECT
CHANGES

Description changed from "Safety, capacity and pavement at various locations from
Joplin to Conway." to "Safety, capacity and pavement improvements at various
locations from Fidelity to Conway."

ID changed from "MO2521-26A2" to "MO2521-26A3"

Plan Revision Name changed from "26A2" to "26A3"

FUNDING
CHANGES

MoDOT

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in ENG from $35,570,000 to $16,331,225

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in ROW from $4,600 to $0

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in CON from $371,004,300 to $352,498,115

NHPP (FHWA)

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in ROW from $18,400 to $18,000

Local

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in ENG from $410,000 to $7,555

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in CON from $3,500,000 to $94,437

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in ENG from $7,555 to $0

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in CON from $94,437 to $0

FEDERAL
PROJECT
COST

Decreased from $101,371,068 to $101,370,668 (0.00%)

TOTAL
PROJECT
COST

Decreased from $512,592,960 to $470,933,000 (-8.13%)



26A3 Sponsored by Local Public
Agencies

Asset Management - Bridge City of Springfield

Greene County Springfield Programmed $4,440,000

- 5900853 - -

Bike/Ped Plan, Regional Trail
Plan Priority

Replacement of the Main Avenue Bridge over Jordan Creek

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Springfield

ROW Local $0 $88,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $88,000

ROW STBG-U (FHWA) $0 $352,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $352,000

Total ROW $0 $440,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $440,000

Construction Local $0 $0 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $800,000

Construction STBG-U (FHWA) $0 $0 $3,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $3,200,000

Total Construction $0 $0 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $4,000,000

Total Programmed $0 $440,000 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $4,440,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FUTURE TOTAL

SP2402-26A3 - MAIN AVENUE BRIDGE OVER JORDAN CREEK



CURRENT
CHANGE
REASON

Schedule / Funding / Scope- Update Changes in a project’s total programmed
amount greater than 25% (or any amount greater than $2,000,000), Revising ROW
and CON estimates; changing CON year from 2026 to 2027 due to Revising right-of-
way and construction estimates and changing construction year from 2026 to 2027.

PROJECT
CHANGES

ID changed from "SP2402-24" to "SP2402-26A3"

Plan Revision Name changed from "26Adopted" to "26A3"

FUNDING
CHANGES

Local

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in ROW from $500,000 to $88,000

- Decrease funds in FY 2027 in CON from $1,000,000 to $800,000

STBG-U (FHWA)

- Decrease funds in FY 2026 in ROW from $2,000,000 to $352,000

- Decrease funds in FY 2027 in CON from $4,000,000 to $3,200,000

FEDERAL
PROJECT
COST

Decreased from $6,000,000 to $3,552,000 (-40.80%)

TOTAL
PROJECT
COST

Decreased from $7,500,000 to $4,440,000 (-40.80%)



26A3 Sponsored by Local Public
Agencies

System Improvement City of Springfield

Greene County Springfield Programmed $1,100,000

- - Erie Street Independence Street

-

Street widening with multi-use path and storm-water improvements on S Fremont Avenue from E Erie Street to E Independence Street.

-

ROW Local $0 $220,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $220,000

ROW STBG-U (FHWA) $0 $880,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $880,000

Total ROW $0 $1,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,100,000

Total Programmed $0 $1,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,100,000

CURRENT CHANGE REASON New Project

FEDERAL PROJECT COST Stays the same $880,000

TOTAL PROJECT COST Stays the same $1,100,000

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FUTURE TOTAL

SP2612-26A3 - FREMONT AVENUE - ERIE TO INDEPENDENCE



26A3 Sponsored by Local Public
Agencies

Asset Management - Other City of Springfield

Greene County Springfield Programmed $929,700

- - - -

-

Sidewalk and ramp improvements on various arterial and collector streets on the federal-aid system in Springfield.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Springfield

Construction Local $0 $185,940 $0 $0 $0 $0 $185,940

Construction STBG-U (FHWA) $0 $743,760 $0 $0 $0 $0 $743,760

Total Construction $0 $929,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $929,700

Total Programmed $0 $929,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $929,700

CURRENT CHANGE REASON New Project

FEDERAL PROJECT COST Stays the same $743,760

TOTAL PROJECT COST Stays the same $929,700

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FUTURE TOTAL

SP2613-26A3 - 2026 SPRINGFIELD ADA IMPROVEMENTS - VARIOUS ROUTES



26A3 Sponsored by Local Public
Agencies

Asset Management - Other City of Springfield

Greene County Springfield Programmed $682,010

- - - -

-

Replacement of school flasher signals including battery backup at various locations in Springfield.

Non-Federal Funding Source: City of Springfield

Construction Local $0 $136,402 $0 $0 $0 $0 $136,402

Construction STBG-U (FHWA) $0 $545,608 $0 $0 $0 $0 $545,608

Total Construction $0 $682,010 $0 $0 $0 $0 $682,010

Total Programmed $0 $682,010 $0 $0 $0 $0 $682,010

CURRENT CHANGE REASON New Project

FEDERAL PROJECT COST Stays the same $545,608

TOTAL PROJECT COST Stays the same $682,010

Plan Revision Section Project Type Lead Agency

County Municipality Status Total Cost

MoDoT ID Federal ID Project From Project To

Project Considerations

Project Description

Funding Source Notes

PHASE FUND SOURCE PRIOR FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FUTURE TOTAL

SP2614-26A3 - SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL FLASHER SIGNAL REPLACEMENT - VARIOUS LOCATIONS



Fund Type Programmed (2026) Programmed (2027) Programmed (2028) Programmed (2029)
FEDERAL
BRO (FHWA) $36,000 $36,000 $36,000 $36,000
CRP (FHWA) $1,563,899 $0 $0 $0
I/M (FHWA) $135,000 $0 $0 $0
NHPP (FHWA) $103,823,600 $11,539,200 $28,474,400 $35,855,200
RAISE $24,822,313 $0 $0 $0
SAFETY (FHWA) $10,807,900 $370,800 $262,800 $81,000
SCRP (FHWA) $68,000 $0 $0 $0
SS4A (FHWA) $1,152,000 $0 $0 $0
STBG (FHWA) $23,256,000 $40,000 $1,600 $1,600
STBG-U (FHWA) $16,212,840 $7,254,669 $4,034,881 $846,266
TAP (FHWA) $2,168,164 $134,836 $0 $0
Federal Subtotal $184,045,716 $19,375,505 $32,809,681 $36,820,066
STATE
MoDOT $381,123,206 $8,671,000 $9,217,800 $9,385,800
MoDOT-AC $13,753,203 $21,718,000 $7,078,400 $442,400
MoDOT O&M $6,593,919 $6,745,579 $6,900,728 $7,059,444
State Subtotal $401,470,328 $37,134,579 $23,196,928 $16,887,644
LOCAL/OTHER $394,876,409 $30,389,000 $16,296,200 $9,828,200
Local $7,528,541 $4,196,523 $1,149,004 $220,567
Local-AC $4,744,721 $0 $0 $0
Other $100,000 $0 $0 $0
Local/Other Subtotal $12,373,262 $4,196,523 $1,149,004 $220,567
Total $597,889,306 $60,706,607 $57,155,613 $53,928,277

$591,295,387 $53,961,028 $50,254,885 $46,868,833 $742,380,133
Prior Year FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 TOTAL

Available State and Federal Funding $23,867,000 $568,302,000 $36,997,000 $45,133,000 $45,862,000 $720,161,000
Federal Discretionary Funding $25,974,313 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,974,313
Available Operations and Maintenance Funding $0 $6,593,919 $6,745,579 $6,900,728 $7,059,444 $27,299,671
Funds from Other Sources (inc. Local) $0 $12,373,262 $4,196,523 $1,149,004 $220,567 $17,939,356
Available Suballocated Funding $8,941,340 $11,022,645 $11,124,296 $2,847,873 $11,573,718 $45,509,872
TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDING $58,782,653 $598,291,826 $59,063,398 $56,030,605 $64,715,729 $836,884,212
Carryover $58,782,653 $59,185,173 $57,541,964 $56,416,956 --
Programmed State and Federal Funding ($597,889,306) ($60,706,607) ($57,155,613) ($53,928,277) ($769,679,804)
TOTAL REMAINING $58,782,653 $59,185,173 $57,541,964 $56,416,956 $67,204,408 $67,204,408

FINANCIAL CONSTRAINT

FHWA Sponsored Projects

Ozarks Transportation Organization G-1 2026-2029 Transportation Improvement Program



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 4 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM II.B. 
 

2026 Performance Targets 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
MAP-21 established and the FAST Act and IIJA maintained a performance-based approach to 
transportation investments, creating National Performance Goals.  In keeping with these goals, State 
Departments of Transportation and Metropolitan Planning Organizations are required to establish 
targets.  Each target has its own requirements and timelines.  So far, OTO has elected to plan and 
program in support of the MoDOT targets, rather than set OTO-level targets.  The MoDOT, as well as the 
CU safety targets are described below. 
 
Safety 
Five individual targets comprise the Safety Targets: 

1. Number of fatalities 
2. Rate of fatalities per 100 million vehicle miles traveled 
3. Number of serious injuries 
4. Rate of serious injuries per 100 million vehicle miles traveled 
5. Number of non-motorized fatalities and non-motorized serious injuries 

 
OTO can choose to set local targets or can choose to plan and program in support of the MoDOT targets, 
which are based on a rolling five-year average: 
 

Performance Measure Statewide Target for CY2026 
Number of Fatalities  969.0 
Fatality Rate per 100 Million VMT 1.198 
Number of Serious Injuries  5147.6 
Serious Injury Rate per 100 Million VMT 6.445 
Number of Non-Motorized Fatalities and Serious Injuries 603 

 
 
 
Transit Asset Management 
Four individual targets comprise the TAM Targets: 

1. Equipment 
2. Rolling Stock 
3. Facilities 
4. Infrastructure 

 
OTO can choose to set local targets or can choose to plan and program in support of the MoDOT targets:   
  



MoDOT 2025 Reporting Year Targets 

Equipment: Non-revenue support-service and maintenance vehicles 
(exceeding $50k at purchase) 

N/A 

Rolling Stock 

Automobiles, Minivans, Vans 8 Years Useful Life 45% 

Cutaways 10 Years Useful Life 45% 

Buses 14 Years Useful Life 45% 

Ferry Boats 42 Years Useful Life 30% 
Facilities 

Administrative, Passenger Stations 
(buildings), and Parking Facilities 

30% with a condition rating below 3.0 on FTA’s TERM Scale 

Maintenance Facilities 25% with a condition rating below 3.0 on FTA’s TERM Scale 

Infrastructure 

Only rail fixed-guideway, track, signals and systems N/A 

 
 
FTA TERM RATING SCALE 
Rating Condition Description 

5 Excellent No visible defects, new or near new condition, may still be under warranty if 
applicable 

4 Good Good condition, but no longer new, may be slightly defective or deteriorated, but 
is overall functional 

3 Adequate Moderately deteriorated or defective, but has not exceeded useful life 

2 Marginal Defective or deteriorated in need of replacement, exceeded useful life 

1 Poor Critically damaged or in need of immediate repair, well past useful life 

 
Transit Safety 
City Utilities elected to develop their own Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan rather than 
participate in the statewide plan.  The transit safety performance measures have also been expanded to 
cover multiple metrics.  These are outlined in the agenda packet, rather than listed here. 
 
OTO can choose to set local targets or can choose to plan and program in support of the CU targets. 
 
TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN:  
At its regularly scheduled meeting held on December 17, 2025, the Technical Planning Committee 
recommended the Board of Directors support the statewide and City Utilities performance targets. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to support the statewide and CU performance targets.” 
 
OR 



 
“Move to recommend that the Performance Measures Subcommittee review the targets with the 
following considerations…” 



Missouri DOT/ FHWA/ NHTSA/ Planning Partner 
Annual Safety Target Setting Coordination 

January 2025 
 
MAP-21 was the first transportation reauthorization bill requiring annual target setting collaboration 
between State DOTs and planning partners on national performance measures, which continues through 
the current bill. Targets are required to be established annually for five safety performance measures. 
Targets must be established first by State DOTs, then by each MPO, with the choice of MPOs adopting 
state targets or establishing their own for each measure: 

1. Number of Fatalities; 
2. Rate of Fatalities per 100 Million Vehicle Miles traveled (VMT); 
3. Number of Serious Injuries; 
4. Rate of Serious Injuries per 100 Million VMT; and  
5. Number of Non-motorized Fatalities and Non-motorized Serious Injuries 

The first three performance measures are reported tri-annually but can be amended annually in the 
Highway Safety Plan (HSP) for NHTSA. The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) effective 
Nov. 15, 2021, requires the HSP to include these three performance measures to demonstrate constant or 
improved performance. All five performance measures are reported annually in the Highway Safety 
Improvement Program (HSIP) for FHWA.  
 
SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS: 
If FHWA determines the State DOT has not made significant progress on targets, the State DOT must 
spend the full HSIP allocation from the specified fiscal year and submit an HSIP Implementation Plan to 
the FHWA Division Office by June 30.  
 
Annual Safety Target Setting Collaboration with Partners: 
Sept. – Oct. 2016 MoDOT shared, solicited feedback and gained consensus from the MPOs on the 

safety target setting coordination process during the monthly partner 
collaboration webinars.  

March 2025 MoDOT staff calculates data for each performance measure statewide and 
informs MoDOT Executive Team. 

April 14, 2025 MoDOT staff calculates data trends for each safety performance measure 
statewide. MoDOT shares data with MPOs, FHWA, and NHTSA with 
discussion on data and assumptions for targets during the monthly partner 
collaboration webinar. 

April - May 2025 MoDOT solicits target setting assumption feedback from partners by email. 
May 12, 2025 MoDOT and MPOs finalize assumptions to use for targets during the monthly 

partner collaboration webinar. 
By July 1, 2025 MoDOT applies assumptions to safety data for three safety performance 

measures and submits targets to NHTSA, as applicable.  
By Aug. 31, 2025 MoDOT applies assumptions to safety data for final two safety performance 

measures and submits targets for five measures to FHWA through HSIP. 
MoDOT shares targets with planning partners through email and monthly 
partner collaboration webinars. 

By Feb. 27, 2026 MPOs email MoDOT their board documentation indicating whether the MPO 
determined to support the state target or if they established their own, their MPO 
targets. 

 



MoDOT Statewide Safety Targets
August 2025

Targets based on 5-year rolling average from CY  2022-2026:

2023

Final

2024

Preliminary

2025
(Using Target 

Setting 

Methodology)

2026
(Using Target 

Setting 

Methodology)

Number of Fatalities* 991 955 932 910 1001.2 969.0

Fatality Rate per 100 Million 

VMT*
1.234 1.178 1.138 1.100 1.276 1.198

Number of Serious Injuries* 5053 5397 5269 5140 5147.6 ~5147.6

Serious Injury Rate per 100 

Million VMT^
6.517 6.656 6.433 6.214 6.551 6.445

Number of Non-Motorized 

Fatalities and Serious Injuries^
662 679 663 647 603.0 ~603

Performance Measure

5-year

Rolling

Average

Statewide

Target

CY2026

5-Year

Rolling

Average

Baseline

(2020-2024)

Crash Data

*Performance Measures to be reported in the 2025 Highway Safety Plan.

^Performance Measures to be reported in the 2025 Highway Safety Improvement Program Annual Report.

Target Setting Methodology: Targets are based on half of 2024 by 2045 fatality reduction, half of 2024 by 2045 
serious injury reduction, 1% VMT increase, and non-motorized reduction based on overall fatality and serious injury 

reductions. An exception is made for instances where the baseline 5-year rolling average is less than the calculated 

target using the parameters previously described. When this occurs, the baseline will be used as the target.

~ The Number of Serious Injuries and the Number of Non-Motorized Fatalities and Serious Injuries using the target 

setting methodology resulted in a target above the baseline. Therefore, the baseline was used for the target.



 
 

 

 
  

 
 

 

1.888.ASK MODOT (275.6636) 

Our mission is to provide a world-class transportation system that is safe, 
innovative, reliable and dedicated to serving customers for a prosperous Missouri. 

www.modot.org 

Missouri Department of Transportation 
Ed Hassinger, P.E., Director 

Agency Information 
 

• Agency Name:  Missouri Department of Transportation 
• NTD ID:  NTD 7R03 
• POC:  Janette Vomund  

o POC Title:  Senior Multimodal Operations Specialist 
o POC Email:  janette.voumund@modot.mo.gov 
o POC Phone:  (573) 526-1038  

• Reporting Year:  2025 
• Date Narrative Prepared:  October 26, 2025 

 
Targets 
 

 
Bus Vehicles Target ULB 
Bus 45% 14 years 
Van/Cutaway Target ULB 
Cutaway 45% 10 years 
Van 45% 8 years 
Other Target ULB 
Automobile 45% 8 years 
Minivan 45% 8 years 
Ferry Boat 30% 42 years 

 
Administrative 30% N/A 
Maintenance 25% N/A 
Passenger 30% N/A 

 
NOTE: The established targets represents the percentage of rolling stock that will be more than the 
indicated ULB.     
 
How did your agency calculate these targets?  
With the assistance of the Decision Support Tools template provided through FTA and sub-recipients 
submitting a condition report on federally funded vehicles, gave a starting point with the targets above 
and keeping federally funded vehicles in the State of Good Repair.       
 
How has your agency made progress toward its targets?  
MoDOT, continues to monitor sub-recipient vehicle inventory on revenue vehicles to ensure the Useful 
Life Benchmarks are within established targets.  
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
What challenges did your agency face this past year in making progress toward the targets?  
The ability to replace or expand small accessible or non-accessible vehicles in the past year has been a 
challenge in making progress towards established targets due to limited chassis availailbility, supply 
chain shortages, volitalile pricing and Buy America requirements.  In addition, sub-recipients have been 
challenged with meeting local match requirements due to increase in vehicle prices.  
 
Non-Revenue Service Vehicles (Equipment) 
 
What targets did your agency set? NA  
 
How did your agency calculate these targets? NA 
 
How has your agency made progress toward its targets?  NA 
 
What challenges face your agency in making progress toward the targets?  NA 
 
Facilities – Condition 
 
How did your agency calculate these targets? 
With the assistance of the TERM Rating Scale and Score Card provided through the templates, each sub 
recipient submitted a condition report on all facilities. By analyzing and entering the data received, gave 
a base percentage on the TERM Rating Scale.         

How has your agency made progress toward its targets? 
MoDOT is currently on track with these targets.  

What challenges did your agency face this past year in making progress toward the targets? 
MoDOT has not had any challenges in the past year in making progress towards the established facility 
targets.   

 
Infrastructure – Performance Restrictions 
Only for rail fixed-guideway, track, signal and systems 
 
How did your agency calculate the targets? NA 

 
 



City Utilities Transit Agency Safety Plan
 



. Plan Development, Approval, and Updates

 

 

NameofEntity That George Buchanan, Transit Grants Analyst | and Chief Safety Officer, City

Drafted This Plan Utilities Transit

Signature of Safety Committee Date of Signature
 

connie BapPell L-dke-2S
Safety Committee, Representative

 

Signature of Accountable Executive Date of Signature
 

0... TRA vlou/200s
Matthew Crawfordbirecear of Transit
 

NameofIndividual/Entity That Approved This

 

  
 

 

 

   
 

Plan Date of Approval

Approvalby the Board Adak Onut 4
of Directors or an : se . spon .
Equivalent Authority City Utilities Board of Public Utilities, Chair

Relevant Documentation(Title and Location)

opilig of Individual/Entity That Certified This Dato of Certification

City Utilities of Springfield, MO
Certification of

P:
oeLycentestonet Relevant Documentation(Title and Location)
 

C&A’s in TrAMS
This Agency Safety Plan addressesall applicable requirement and standards

set forth in FTA’s Public Transportation Safety Program and the National Public

Transportation Safety Plan and 49 C.F.R. Part 673 
 

 



3. Safety Performance Targets

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Safety PerformanceTargets

MODE OF TRANSIT SERVICE

Bus Fixed Route (MB) 2022 2023 2024 Target Goal

1a: Major Safety Events (Total) 10 4 6 6

1b: Major Safety Events (per 250k VRM) 2.306 0.919 1.540 1.385

1.1: Collision Rate 2.306 0.689 0.697 4.618

1.1.1: Pedestrian Collision Rate (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0 0

1.1.1: Vehicular Collision Rate (per 250k VRM) 2.306 0.689 1.162 4.618

2a: Fatalities (Total) 0 0 0 0

2b: Fatality Rate (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0

2.1: Transit WorkerFatality Rate (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0 0

3a: Injuries (Total) 6 6 8 20

3b: Injury Rate (per 250k VRM) 1.384 1.379 1.859 4.618

3.1: Transit WorkerInjury Rate (per 250k VRM) 0.000 .0230 0.232 2.309

4a: Assaults on Transit Workers 0 0 0 0

Ab: Rate of Assaults on Transit Workers (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0 0

5a: System Reliability 99 109 114 150

5b: System Reliability Rate (VRM/failures) 10,949 9,982 9,440 7,218

ADAParatransit (DR) 2022 2023 2024 Target Goal

1a: Major Safety Events(Total) 1 0 0 -330

1b: Major Safety Events (per 250k VRM) 0.195 0 0 0.908

1.1: Collision Rate 0.195 0 0 0.908

1.1.1: Pedestrian Collision Rate (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0 0

1.1.1: Vehicular Collision Rate (per 250k VRM) 0.195 0 0 0.908

2a: Fatalities (Total) 0 0 0 0

2b: Fatality Rate (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0 0

2.1: Transit WorkerFatality Rate (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0 0

3a: Injuries (Total) 1 0 0 5

3b:Injury Rate (per 250k VRM) 0.195 0 0 0.908

3.1: Transit WorkerInjury Rate (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0 0.545

4a: Assaults on Transit Workers 0 0 0 0

Ab: Rate of Assaults on Transit Workers (per 250k VRM) 0 0 0 0

5a: System Reliability 7 3 6 8

5b: System Reliability Rate (VRM/failures) 18.339 48,693 23,217 17,203      
 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 5 

 

 
 

 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM II.C. 

Statewide Safe Active Transportation Plan Letter of Support 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION: 
 
The Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT) is currently updating its Long-Range Transportation 
Plan (LRTP), which includes assessing statewide interest in and the need for a comprehensive statewide 
bicycle and pedestrian plan, as well as establishing a potential framework for such a plan.  The non-profit 
organization Missourians for Responsible Transportation (MRT) is requesting letters of support from 
planning partners across Missouri to advance this effort. 
 
A safety based statewide active transportation plan could provide a coordinated framework for 
developing an accessible and safe multimodal transportation system and could strengthen connections for 
communities of all sizes.  Missouri has experienced a disproportionate increase in pedestrian fatalities and 
serious injury crashes in recent years, and it remains the most populous of the four states without a 
dedicated active transportation plan. 
 
Following the completion of MoDOT’s Vulnerable Road User Safety Assessment, OTO staff believes it is 
appropriate to support the development of a statewide safe active transportation plan.  This effort aligns 
with OTO’s current planning goals to create a safe and connected transportation system for all users and 
modes through the implementation of best practices.  Additionally, OTO’s public engagement has 
consistently demonstrated increased community interest in improving safety and accessibility for active 
transportation. 
 
Included is a draft letter of support and an executive summary from Missourians for Responsible 
Transportation on the need for active transportation plan. 
 

TECHNICAL PLANNING COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN: 
At its regularly scheduled meeting held on December 17, 2025, the Technical Planning Committee 
recommended the Board of Directors approve a Letter of Support for the development of a Statewide Safe 
Active Transportation Plan in Missouri. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve a Letter of Support for the development of a Statewide Safe Active Transportation Plan 
in Missouri.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to approve a Letter of Support for the development of a Statewide Safe Active Transportation Plan 
in Missouri, with these changes…” 
 
 



[Insert Date Here] 
 
Director Ed Hassinger 
Missouri Department of Transportation 
105 W. Capital Avenue 
Jefferson City, MO 65102 
 
Dear Director Hassinger: 
 
On behalf of the Ozarks Transporta�on Organiza�on, I’ve written the following letter to express our 
support for Missouri to begin developing a statewide safe active transportation plan (SSATP). 
 
Active Transportation is a core element of OTO’s vision for a safe, connected and accessible 
regional transportation system and OTO prioritizes investments into pedestrian and bicycle 
infrastructure in coordination with local jurisdictions, state and federal agencies. We believe that a 
safety based statewide active transportation plan can support our goals, and those of the state as a 
whole, in the following ways: 
 
Safety: It is clear that we need this plan to better guide our efforts to create safer streets for all Missouri 
road users, especially those who travel without a car. MoDOT has done admirable work with regard to 
efforts like the Show Me Zero Strategic Highway Safety Plan and the update to the Vulnerable Road User 
Safety Assessment, and those documents help outline our path forward. We need a safety based 
statewide active transportation planning framework that provides directions and best practices that can 
be implemented statewide to increase the safety of people who walk, roll, bike, and use public 
transportation. We believe a SSATP will fill this critical gap. 
 
Collaboration: Additionally, a SSATP is needed to facilitate better collaboration on active transportation 
priorities. The Ozarks Transporta�on Organiza�on has excellent collaboration with its members, MoDOT 
and the SW District to plan and prioritize projects within our boundaries, but a SSATP would also help to 
improve coordination beyond our boundaries and support an excellent and cohesive transportation 
network throughout Missouri. This could not only ensure better use of limited resources, but can also 
help to produce better projects connecting people across the Show-Me State. 
 
Economic Development: A SSATP would give us an opportunity to better understand how active 
transportation supports the economy. On this point, the Ozarks Transporta�on Organiza�on would ask 
that any SSATP include funding to conduct a statewide economic impact analysis to better understand 
how much economic activity walking and biking generate for Missouri. This could also be a chance to 
increase local support for taking care of active transportation infrastructure.  
 
In conclusion, the Ozarks Transporta�on Organiza�on supports the development of a statewide safe 
active transportation plan and encourages MoDOT to begin this critical work.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Sara J. Fields, AICP 
Executive Director 



⅓ of Missourians are
non-drivers [1], due to:

Age/Disability
Affordability
Legal reasons
Choice

MO experienced most-recorded pedestrian fatalities in 2024 (120%
increase from 2014) [2; 3]. YTD data suggests 2025 will be worse.

Need for MO’s
First SATP 1

Policy (Growing Maintenance Burden): MO has US’ 7  largest highway system, but
receives 47  most nationally in revenue/mile [5]. Our legislature chips in funding
when STIP funding isn’t available for major projects—$3 billion+ to widen I-70
(potentially $4 billion+ for I-44 expansion). MoDOT District Prioritization Processes
tack on dozens of “capacity improvements” (widenings) into the STIP annually, while
road diets are rarely, if ever, considered. When factoring more lane miles with lower
gas tax revenues, heavier vehicles damaging roads, and no ability to collect tolls,
policy solutions are needed for our transportation system to meet future needs.

th

th

MO ranks among lowest nationally in multimodal transportation
Lowest of all states: Safe Routes to School [SRTS] Policies [6]
2nd-lowest: Bicycle-Friendly State Policies [7]
4th-lowest: Quality of State Transit Support [8]

SRTS/Bike reports call for SATP to improve safety outcomes.

Outsized Impact:
MoDOT owns 25.6%
of MO roads; 64% of
pedestrian fatalities
on state system [9].

This issue brief urges the Missouri Department of
Transportation [MoDOT] to adopt a Statewide
Active Transportation Plan [SATP] to address
critical gaps in safety, funding, connectivity, and
policy for non-motorized transportation across
Missouri.

NEED FOR MISSOURI’S FIRST 
STATEWIDE ACTIVE

TRANSPORTATION PLAN

A SATP is a crucial guiding document to support development of a robust system of accessible transportation
connections for communities of all sizes. With a SATP, MoDOT has the opportunity to build on the MO
Transportation Planning Framework to effectively implement projects for all road users, including the 1.8 million
Missourians without drivers licenses. A SATP enables effective coordination between MoDOT districts and planning
partners, private contractors, and the public so that we can successfully pursue statewide AT policy, design, and
performance goals. MO is the most populous of four remaining states without a SATP.

P. 1: Introduction / Gaps
P. 2: Background / Justification
P. 3: Elements / Best Practices
P. 4: Costs / Implementation
P. 5: Contacts / Glossary / Refs.

What are Key Missouri
Transportation

Challenges?

Connectivity (Geographic Disparities): MO has no statewide AT network vision to
connect between communities and also reach rural/disinvested communities.
Communities like Warrensburg spent decades advocating for the Spirit Trail along
MO-DD—they self-fund to maintain the trail, even though it is on state ROW and
connects municipalities with state assets like University of Central Missouri, Knob
Noster State Park, and Warrensburg’s MO River Runner Amtrak service;

Safety (Safe Infrastructure): Vulnerable road user [VRU] fatalities will continue to climb if we do
not invest in AT projects throughout MoDOT’s system. VRU deaths are an increasing proportion
of MO traffic deaths. In 2009/2010, only 8% of traffic deaths were VRU; in 2024, that number
surpassed 15% [4]. This proportional increase triggers the federal ‘VRU Special Rule’ under the
Highway Safety Improvement Program [HSIP], requiring MoDOT spend at least 15% of HSIP
funds on VRU safety. FHWA developed Proven Safety Countermeasures including 8 that directly
address VRU safety, however AT components are often excluded from MoDOT projects;

Funding (Modal Disparities): MO’s Transportation Planning Framework is
renowned nationwide for identifying/implementing projects, however the STIP
excludes AT: MO has no dedicated state AT funding. Local or federal funding is
needed. For I-70 expansion, entire new interchanges are planned while transit
was excluded and AT will be replaced, but often not expanded. Communities
like Columbia must foot the bill for safe I-70 pedestrian crossings such as the
Hinkson Creek Trail, despite a future connection to Clark Lane (on MO’s VRUSA
‘Safety Projects’ list) and 25+ years of documented need in local planning docs.;

Release Date: December 15, 2025



2

FHWA Guidance: “Most statewide plans are policy plans. Many states want plans that focus more on guidance
and direction than lists of projects. Still, some plans identify specific corridors for statewide bicycling routes and
include project scoping checklists and project prioritizing criteria” [15].

State Health Improvement Plan (MO DHSS, 2024):
SATP is specific activity to achieve SHIP’s Priority Issue 3
[10]; this objective is the impetus for MOCS’ advocacy.
Strategic Hwy. Safety Plan (MoDOT, 2025): Public
Works/Engineering rec.: “Provide safer facilities and
accommodations for [VRU] even if it is not the primary
scope. Remember agencies are responsible for all
modes of transportation—not just motor vehicles” [11];
MPO/RPC rec.: “Emphasize safety when prioritizing
improvements among various modes of transportation,
considering how increased multimodal alternatives and
operational projects can reduce the likelihood of
crashes” [11].
Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Rec. Plan
(MoDNR, 2025): “Partner with community, regional, and
transportation planners to identify sidewalks, bike lanes,
and alternative transportation corridors needed to
connect residents to parks, and facilitate greater
walkability/bikeability within communities” [12].
Master Plan on Aging (MO DHSS, TBD 2025): Draft
directly recommends SATP to improve accessibility for
aging Missourians [13].

BACKGROUND / JUSTIFICATION
The need to develop a MO SATP was outlined as an
advocacy goal more than a decade ago. Missourians for
Responsible Transportation (a statewide grassroots
advocacy non-profit), is leading this initiative. The need was
identified by MO DHSS’ State Health Improvement Plan
[SHIP] and the MO Complete Streets [MOCS] Advisory
Committee. MOCS is a public-private partnership initiated
by MO DHSS with a mission “To provide leadership and
resources that support accessible multimodal
transportation in the Show-Me State.”

SATP is affirmed by the LRTP Citizen’s Surveys
2018 Citizen’s Survey: Safety is paramount and transportation choice is a priority.
Missourians thought it was more important to be "seeking new revenue for other
transportation options" than "expanding the transportation system (adding new
lanes, building new roads and interchanges)." Increased investments in transportation
choice can address the LRTP goal "Improve reliability and reduce congestion."
2026 LRTP Update: 2026 LRTP update incorporates surveys, in-person events, and
stakeholder meetings. Stakeholders such as MACOG stated “Proactive, not reactive”
safety improvement needs. At the MO State Fair  (see graphic, right), Missourians
reaffirmed 2018 survey: most favored—AT/transit; least favored—highway expansion.

Statewide planning initiatives identify SATP need
within MO’s Transportation Planning Framework

  Advocacy Timeline
2010: MOCS established by MO DHSS; strategic
planning identifies SATP need for MO
2022: MOCS met former MoDOT transportation
planner Eric Curtit about SATP need; we followed
up with an initial proposal; he suggested the LRTP
would be appropriate SATP advocacy avenue
2024: MHTC releases RFP for 2026 LRTP update,
including objective for LRTP consultant team to
consider a framework for developing a SATP
2025: MOCS conducted research on other DOT
SATP examples; MOCS met with key cross-division
MoDOT leadership to outline proposal and affirm
statewide interest and need for a SATP
2026: MoDOT will define MO’s transportation
vision for next 25 years by adopting new LRTP

VRU Safety Assessment
(MoDOT, 2025) [14]: 
First MoDOT plan to
outline “Statewide AT
Planning Framework” 

MHTC’s 2026 LRTP update RFP requires
consultants to “Assess the statewide

interest and need for a statewide
bike/pedestrian plan and establish a
possible framework for that plan.”

Need for MO’s
First SATP



Benefits for MO
Proactive Crash Reductions: Communities with
speed management strategies & separate
VRU/motor vehicle infrastructure are safer for all
users [16].  Target VRUSA High Injury Network recs. 
Follow Federal Requirements: Consider MoDOT
VRU office to house ‘Bike/Ped Coordinator’ and
additional staff to target investments required by
HSIP VRU Special Rule.

Where it Works in MO
City of Osceola: Recognized in PAPREN’s Guide to
Activating Rural America through Active Living
Policies. Osceola’s Livable Streets Plan is the
“Complete Streets [CS] blueprint for investments
and capital projects to increase the safety and
accessibility.” Built SRTS incrementally since 2020.
MoDOT STL District/City of St. Louis: Building first
protected bike lanes and intersections (pictured on
p.4) on MoDOT state-owned roadway: MO-100.

State-By-State
Kansas: Safety is the first of six strategies; goal to
reduce the frequency and severity of VRU crashes.
Washington: Examines state ROW suitability for AT
safety solutions; won top AASHTO transportation
award in 2022.

Safety Funding

Policy RecommendationsConnectivity

3ELEMENTS / BEST PRACTICES

Benefits for MO
Identify Funding Mechanisms: Outline plan for AT
to be funded at a larger scale through state gas tax;
issue tiered schedule for multimodal projects on
MoDOT High-Priority Unfunded Needs List, similar
to how road/bridge projects are scheduled for STIP. 
AT Economic Impact Study [EIS]: AT boosts
economic development. A state AT EIS would
demonstrate ROI gained from AT infrastructure.
MoDOT develops EIS for state-supported Amtrak
line; Katy/Rock Island Trails are in the process of
developing EIS’s.

Where it Works in MO
City of Warsaw: A town of 2,200 incrementally built
AT network for locals and tourists alike with braided
local, state, federal, and private funding. With
decades of planning and a demonstrative phased
approach, they proved AT investments in MO bring
strong returns.

State-By-State
Illinois: $1.5 billion in state multimodal investment,
in addition to 100's of millions already directed to
multimodal projects from state gas tax/other
sources.
Indiana: Trail access goal “within 15 minutes of all
Indiana citizens;” infused 100's of millions of dollars
through Next Level Trails initiative, built 200+ miles
of trails to date through program.

Benefits For MO
Outline State AT Network: Develop comprehensive
AT vision map; connectivity is a principle of bicycle
network design [17]. Support AT networks that don’t
end at municipality limits or county lines.
Address Geographic/Resource Disparities: Ensure no
biases toward well-resourced, urban communities.
Connectivity Across Modes: Incorporate AT planning
into projects focused on roadways, transit, and more 

Where it Works in MO
Great Rivers Greenway: 140+ mile interconnected
network of trails across many St. Louis-area LPA’s.
Rock Island Trail: Managed by several agencies, this
trail corridor stretches 200+ miles). The MO State
Parks portion spans four MoDOT Districts, and
Kansas DNR is seeking to connect to their Flint Hills
Trail. When statewide coordination peaked in 2016,
construction moved quickly between Pleasant Hill
and Windsor.

State-By-State
Illinois: MetroBikeLink network cohesively links trail
& transit connections; expansions with state funding.
Iowa: Delineates local, regional, and statewide trails.
Maryland: 2025 Strategic Trails Plan focuses on
“transportation trails” (state shared-use path
network).
Utah: Planned state-funded trail network of 2,600
miles of paved trails in Utah Trail Network Plan.

Benefits For MO
Analyze Existing AT Policy Gaps: MO Leg. adopted
2011 CS 'Resolution:' lacks accountability. SATP can
outline MoDOT CS policy to incorporate AT
upgrades into routine maintenance—more strategic
resource use than retrofitting AT elements.
Establish CS Design Standards: Create consistent
safe/accessible multimodal facility standards [17].
Consider Policy Recs. Beyond MoDOT’s Purview:
Land use and health policy directly impact VRU
safety; foster evidence-based public health
approaches and inter-departmental collaboration.

Where it Works in MO
City of Joplin: Awarded 4th-Best CS Policy (2023).
EWGCOG/MoDOT STL District: Blueprint for Arterials
matches road designs to intended use, applicable in
rural/urban contexts. Model for statewide adoption if
MoDOT decentralization reconfigured for AT
planning framework. Undergoing update to
incorporate long-term AT state system maintenance
strategies.

State-By-State
Colorado: 2025 SATP draft outlines 6 clear pages of
accomplishments (p.20-25), including 8 law updates.
Washington: Their Target Zero SHSP incorporates
“Safer Land Use” into development strategies, which
is built out into SATP through ‘access management.’

Need for MO’s
First SATP



4

We have LRTP, EPG, VRUSA, SAFER Tool, ADA Transition Plan ... Where does SATP live? 
Define Statewide AT Planning Framework: AT doesn’t fit within MoDOT’s Transportation Planning Framework, as AT
responsibilities are scattered across MoDOT divisions, and AT is often excluded from MoDOT Road/Bridge projects
(without local insistence/maintenance agreements). As a first step, the SHSP (2026-2030) State Officials & Agencies
Goal: “Consider an [AT] advisory committee to inform departments of transportation on alternate modes” [8] can be
accomplished. This body can work directly with MoDOT Planning Division to define AT planning framework
parameters, guide SATP development and implementation, and provide a public VRU voice to MoDOT.

Ohio: ODOT recruited an AT Advisory Committee; the committee then collaborated with ODOT’s AT Program to
develop a SATP, then continued to track the plan and ensure continued use of the plan.

Determine how SATP Interacts with LRTP: Whether MoDOT creates a SATP as a standalone document, or whether
SATP is housed within the LRTP (like the SFRP), a SATP needs be seen as the definitive guide for MoDOT and LPA’s to
implement a statewide AT planning framework. Many states have active transportation divisions to oversee plan
implementation; a designated staff support team for MoDOT is an opportunity to ensure SATP goals stay on track. 

Kansas: KDOT houses SATP and supplementary documents within Multimodal Transportation and Innovation
Division’s AT Program; KDOT has extensive staff and direct ability to build out SATP implementation goals.
Oklahoma: SATP was developed within the ODOT Planning branch. 

Stron
g

er ⟶
 W

eaker

SATP development costs depend on desired outcomes: Some go all-in, others not as strong

New York State DOT Active Transportation Plan (ongoing, $800K+): Policy-oriented
(goals/objectives/actions), significant engagement with DOT staff (HQ and districts),
and detailed network analysis (bike suitability, trip potential) statewide. 
Kansas DOT Active Transportation Plan (2023, $481K): Policy-oriented. Public/
stakeholder engagement, state crash analysis, economic assessment, policy/statute
review, video/promotional series, AT planning toolkits (small communities, active
tourism, AT on bridges/overpasses), and robust recommendations. Supplemental plans
developed for CS and SRTS.
Iowa DOT Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (2025, $385k): Advisory committee engagement,
little public engagement. Statewide network GIS analysis. US Bike Route planning and
reclassification of statewide trail network priority tiers. Some facility selection and
design guidance. Evaluation of their program and detailed recommendations.
Arkansas DOT Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (2017, $300K): Minimal in-person
engagement, online survey, and interactive maps. No existing road condition
assessment; mapping mainly around AR’s US Bicycle Routes. Working toward stronger
update based on lessons learned.

COSTS / IMPLEMENTATION

Use for LPAs
Project Prioritization: Transportation Alternative Committees [TACs] within each RPC solicit LPA feedback to
prioritize High Priority Unfunded Needs List and STIP projects. Road/bridge or multimodal TACs can be a direct
conduit between SATP and local/regional AT implementation.
SATP’s Link Local Planning Efforts Cohesively: Most SATPs establish polices to support local communities to fund
and build AT, and supplemental guides are often developed to support LPAs. Many MO LPAs and some MPOs/RPCs
have AT plans. Coordinated AT plans can link local, regional, and statewide efforts, and lay the groundwork to
coordinate other modes, such as the RPC-level “Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plans.”

Illinois & Kansas: IDOT released draft ‘Local Implementation Guidebook’ with clear guidance/examples for
funding, education, design, micromobility, maintenance, etc. KDOT developed “Active Transportation Planning
Toolkit for Small- and Mid-Sized Communities” (pop. up to 20,000) to develop their own AT plans.
Michigan: Regional approach to include AT components in state, regional, and MPO transportation plans.

Technical Assistance and Design Guidance: Training MoDOT District-level and LPA staff on AT needs, best practices,
and outlining specific design guidance can guide local implementation ‘from paper to pavement.’ Existing MO tools
that can be expanded/incorporated into MO’s SATP are MoDOT STL District’s Blueprint for Arterials (first priority) and
MOCS’ ‘AT Toolkit and Template’ (which outlines how LPAs can develop AT plans).

Ohio: ODOT offers program to counties at no local cost to contract with consultant for a county-level AT plan. 
Minnesota & Kansas: Catalogue and link their local and regional ATPs on statewide databases.

MoDOT’s 1st Protected Intersection
(Partnership with STL):

CDBG; HSIP; State Legislature (MHTC request); TAP + more via Federal Gov. [18]:
Funding to
develop SATP?

Need for MO’s
First SATP



5
One-Page Overview and Letters of Support

are supplementary to this document

REFERENCES

Questions for MOCS SATP Campaign:
Jackson Hotaling (Missourians for
Responsible Transportation):
jackson@movingmissouri.org
Michael Kelley (BikeWalkKC):
michael.kelley@bikewalkkc.org

Questions for SATP in other states:
Ken McLeod (League of American
Bicyclists): ken@bikeleague.org
Matt Messina (Kansas DOT):
Matthew.Messina@ks.gov
John Miller (FHWA):
john.p.miller@dot.gov

1.U.S. Census Bureau. 2024. QuickFacts: Missouri. Accessed November 17th, 2025. https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/MO/RHI825223
2.  Missouri Department of Transportation. “Missouri Roadway Fatalities Continue to Trend Downward.” News release, February 4, 2025. Accessed November 17, 2025.

https://www.modot.org/node/62240?utm
3. Missouri State Highway Patrol. Missouri Traffic Crashes: 2015 Edition – 2013/14 Statistics. Department of Public Safety, State of Missouri. Jefferson City: Missouri State Highway Patrol, 2015, p.

24. https://www.mshp.dps.missouri.gov/MSHPWeb/SAC/pdf/2015E.pdf.
4.Missouri Department of Transportation. 2025. Number of Vulnerable Roadway User Fatalities (1c). Accessed November 17th, 2025. https://www.modot.org/number-vulnerable-roadway-user-

fatalities-1c
5.  Missouri Department of Transportation. Citizen’s Guide to Transportation Funding in Missouri 2025. Jefferson City, MO: Missouri Department of Transportation, 2024, 4. Accessed December

12, 2025. https://www.modot.org/sites/default/files/documents/Citizen%27s%20Guide%20to%20Transportation%20Funding%20in%20Missouri%202025.pdf
6.  League of American Bicyclists. “Policies to Support Safe Routes to School.” Safe Routes Partnership. Accessed November 18, 2025. https://saferoutespartnership.org/safe-routes-school/srts-

program/policies
7.  League of American Bicyclists. “State Ranking and Report Cards.” League of American Bicyclists – Bicycle Friendly America. Accessed November 18, 2025.
8.  T4America. “Transit Report Card.” T4America. Accessed November 18, 2025. https://t4america.org/transit-report-card/
9.  NHTSA. “Fatality and Injury Reporting System Tool (FIRST).” Accessed December 2, 2025. https://cdan.dot.gov/query

10.  Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services. Missouri State Health Improvement Plan 2024. Jefferson City: Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services, 2024, 34. Accessed
November 17, 2025. https://health.mo.gov/accreditation/pdf/improvement-plan.pdf

11.  Missouri Department of Transportation. 2025 Missouri Strategic Highway Safety Plan: Blueprint for Excellence. Jefferson City: Missouri Department of Transportation, 2025, 49. Accessed
November 17, 2025. https://www.modot.org/sites/default/files/documents/SHSP_Blueprint_2025%20EP.pdf

12.  Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Division of State Parks. 2026–2031 Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (SCORP), 61. Jefferson City: Missouri State Parks. Accessed
November 17, 2025. https://mostateparks.com/media/pdf/2026‑2031‑statewide‑comprehensive‑outdoor‑recreation‑plan

13.  Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services. A Master Plan on Aging: Aging with Dignity – Missouri’s Master Plan on Aging, 71‑75. Accessed November 17, 2025.
https://health.mo.gov/seniors/masterplanaging/

14.  Katy Harlan and Jay Aber. Vulnerable Road User Safety Assessment. Jefferson City, MO: Missouri Department of Transportation, November 2025.
https://www.modot.org/sites/default/files/documents/MoDOT_Statewide_VRU_Safety_Assessment_PDFUA.pdf

15.  Federal Highway Administration. Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning Handbook. U.S. Department of Transportation, accessed November 17, 2025, 8.
https://transportation.ky.gov/BikeWalk/Documents/FHWA%20Bike%20Ped%20Planning%20Handbook.pdf 

16.Vision Zero Network. “Vision Zero Success Depends on Managing Speed for Safety.” Vision Zero Network. Accessed November 21, 2025. https://visionzeronetwork.org/resources/speed-
management/

17.  Federal Highway Administration. “International Collaboration Strengthens Bicycle Planning, Design, and Safety.” Accessed December 2, 2025. http://www.international.fhwa.dot.gov
18.  Federal Highway Administration. Pedestrian and Bicycle Funding Opportunities Table: U.S. Department of Transportation Transit, Safety, and Highway Funds. Washington, DC: Federal

Highway Administration. Accessed November 21, 2025. https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/bicycle_pedestrian/funding/funding_opportunities.pdf
19.  Kansas Department of Transportation. “Walk, Bike, Roll Kansas Series.” Kansas Active Transportation. Accessed November 21, 2025. https://www.ksdot.gov/about/our-

organization/divisions/multimodal-transportation-and-innovation/kansas-active-transportation/walk-bike-roll-kansas-series
20. Colorado Department of Transportation. “State DOT Bike Ped Plan Research.” Excel Spreadsheet, internal research. Accessed August 11, 2025.

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1RWC6ZhKWERQ_UXU-S7m91V22T-l9jQJj/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=117937923844543654659&rtpof=true&sd=true
21.  Alta Planning. “Statewide Active Transportation Planning: Lessons Learned.” Accessed November 24, 2025. https://blog.altaplanning.com/statewide-active-transportation-planning-lessons-

learned-1e78077211c1
22.  League of American Bicyclists. “State: Plans & Policies.” Benchmarking Report – Data Hub, League of American Bicyclists. Accessed November 21, 2025.

https://data.bikeleague.org/data/states-plans-policies/
23.  Rails-to-Trails Conservancy. “Webinar – Leveraging Statewide Planning to Advance Trail Development.” Accessed December 2, 2025. https://www.railstotrails.org/webinars/.
24.  YouTube. “Missouri's Need for a Statewide Active Transportation Plan (Moving Missouri Forward Panel).” YouTube Video, 1:12:22. Posted by Missourians for Responsible Transportation, April

18, 2025. Accessed November 21, 2025. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=57hHQTX5vJM

Note: Not all sources referenced; state references come from their SATPs

MO SATP PresentationsGlossary State/National Resources

AT: Active Transportation
CS: Complete Streets
EIS: Economic Impact Study
HSIP: Highway Safety Improvement
Program
LRTP: Long-Range Transportation Plan
MACOG: Missouri Association of
Councils of Government
MOCS: MO Complete Streets Advisory
Committee
SATP: Statewide Active Transportation
Plan
SHIP: State Health Improvement Plan
SRTS: Safe Routes to School
STIP: Statewide Transportation
Improvement Program
VRU: Vulnerable Road User
VRUSA: VRU Safety Assessment

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

April 17, 2025:
‘Moving MO
Forward’
Transportation
Summit Panel
recording [24]

Jul./Nov. 2025:
MHTC meeting
comments
(Jackson Hotaling,
Michael Kelley)

CDOT: SATP Research conducted
for their 2025 SATP update [20]

 Bike League:
Statewide Bike

Plans report [22]

KDOT: Walk, Bike, Roll
Kansas Webinar Series [19]

Alta Planning:
SATP: Lessons
Learned blog [21]

 December 10, 2025, RTC: “Leveraging
Statewide Planning to Advance Trail

Development” webinar [23]

Need for MO’s
First SATP

Letters of Support from organizations across MO highlight SATP
statewide interest and need:

Advocacy Organizations
Elected Officials
Health-Focused Organizations
Local Community Groups
Local Government Entities (City Offices; Commissions; School Districts)
MoDOT Planning Partners (MPO’s, RPC’s)
Small Businesses

Letters of Support will be submitted as part of MoDOT’s 2026 LRTP update
public comment period (Jan. 14-Feb. 13, 2026)

Contacts

https://www.canva.com/link?target=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.fhwa.dot.gov%2Fenvironment%2Fbicycle_pedestrian%2Ffunding%2Ffunding_opportunities.pdf%3Futm_source%3Dchatgpt.com&design=DAG6enXLvPw&utl=h3582b25714&accessRole=viewer&linkSource=document


 

 

 

 

 

TAB 6 

 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM II.D. 
 

Federal Discretionary Grant Support 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   
 
The USDOT announced the Notice of Funding Availability for the Better Utilizing Investments to 
Leverage Development (BUILD) grant in November 2025.  Federal discretionary funding requires 
a project to appear in a Transportation Improvement Program or have a commitment that a 
project will appear in the TIP if funding is awarded.   
 
The Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) is working with the City of Republic to reapply for 
a BUILD Grant for the MM Corridor of Opportunity. OTO staff will be writing the grant 
application. The request will be for a grant of $25 million for a project that will create 4-lanes 
from Haile Street to I-44.  
 
The City of Springfield will be applying for a BUILD Grant for Sunshine Street from Kansas 
Expressway to Glenstone Avenue.  The request will be for a grant of $25 million for a project 
that implements findings from the recently completed corridor study to improve a vital arterial 
through Springfield.   
 
If any of the above projects are eligible for additional types of federal discretionary grants, the 
resolution of support will be valid for any federal grant. 
 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to approve the included resolutions and TIP inclusion certificates as provided.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to approve the included resolutions with amendments as follows………………………………..…” 
 
 



B

MM

360

60

44

Sawyer Rd

Un
io
n 
Pa
ci
fi
c 
Rr

Un
io
n 
Pa
ci
fi
c 
Rr

Farm Road 156  

Farm Road 140  

F
a
r
m
 
R
o
a
d
 
9
7
 
 

Farm Road 148  

L
o
n
g
 
D
r

Orr St

Farm Road
144  

Haile St

D
r
u
r
y
 
L
n

Y
o
r
k
 
A
v
e

F
a
r
m
 
R
o
a
d
 
9
7
 
 

Farm Road
156  

Farm Road 140  

F
a
r
m
 
R
o
a
d
 
9
7
 
 

Farm Road 144  

Carnahan
St

F
a
r
m
 
R
o
a
d
 
1
0
7
 
 

Hankins Rd

Farm Road 160  

Ruben Ln

F
a
r
m
 
R
o
a
d
 
9
9
 
 

Inde
pend

ence
 Dr

Un
io
n 
Pa
ci
fi
c 
Rr

Hwy MM Project Corridor

Route MM BUILD Project Corridor Location

0 0.5 10.25

Miles



Ozarks Transportation Organization      Resolution # 2026-01 

           

 

OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION RESOLUTION  
OF SUPPORT FOR THE MM CORRIDOR OF OPPORTUNITY PROJECT 

 

Whereas, the Ozarks Transportation Organization has identified the MM Corridor as a regional 
transportation need; and 

WHEREAS, development is rapidly occurring along the MM corridor leading to increased safety hazards 
and capacity concerns 

WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Transportation, the City of Springfield, nor Greene County have 
been to able to identify adequate funding sources to complete the improvement; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Transportation is making available funds for the purpose of 
improvements to America’s infrastructure; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ozarks Transportation Board of Directors agrees to add the 
MM Corridor of Opportunity project to the Transportation Improvement Program upon receipt of a 
federal award. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Ozarks Transportation Organization hereby supports the MM 
Corridor of Opportunity project and authorizes staff to provide letters of support and certification for 
inclusion in the Ozarks Transportation Organization Transportation Improvement Program. 

I, Eric Franklin, Secretary of the Ozarks Transportation Organization, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
resolution was duly passed and adopted at the regular meeting thereof assembled this 15th day of 
January 2026. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Eric Franklin 
Secretary of the Ozarks Transportation Organization Board of Directors 
 



 

 

CERTIFICATION FOR INCLUSION IN THE  

FY 2027-2030 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 

The Ozarks Transportation Organization, which is the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Springfield, Missouri Urbanized Area hereby 
certifies that upon award of federal discretionary grant funding, the Highway MM Corridor project will be included in the FY 2027-2030 
Transportation Improvement Program.  The local match funding has been identified and approved. The OTO recognizes the importance of this 
project and welcomes the federal investment in the region.  

 

 

              

_________________________________      __January 15, 2026__  

Travis Cossey, Chairman         Date 
Ozarks Transportation Organization  
Board of Directors 



Ozarks Transportation Organization      Resolution # 2026-02 

           

 

OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION RESOLUTION  
OF SUPPORT FOR THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD SUNSHINE STREET CORRIDOR BUILD PROJECT 

 

WHERAS, the City of Springfield is completing a comprehensive Sunshine Street Corridor Study; and 

WHEREAS, the BUILD grant provides an opportunity to implement findings of the corridor study to 
improve a vital arterial through Springfield; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Springfield has not been able to identify adequate funding sources to complete 
the improvement; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Transportation is making available funds for the purpose of 
improvements to America’s infrastructure; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ozarks Transportation Board of Directors agrees to add the 
City of Springfield’s Sunshine Street Corridor BUILD project to the Transportation Improvement Program 
upon receipt of a federal award. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Ozarks Transportation Organization hereby supports the City of 
Springfield’s project and authorizes staff to provide letters of support and certification for inclusion in 
the Ozarks Transportation Organization Transportation Improvement Program. 

I, Eric Franklin, Secretary of the Ozarks Transportation Organization, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
resolution was duly passed and adopted at the regular meeting thereof assembled this 15th day of 
January 2026. 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Eric Franklin 
Secretary of the Ozarks Transportation Organization Board of Directors 
 



 

 

CERTIFICATION FOR INCLUSION IN THE  

FY 2027-2030 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 

The Ozarks Transportation Organization, which is the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Springfield, Missouri Urbanized Area hereby 
certifies that upon award of federal discretionary grant funding, the City of Springfield Sunshine Street Corridor project will be included in the 
FY 2027-2030 Transportation Improvement Program.  The local match funding has been identified and approved. The OTO recognizes the 
importance of this project and welcomes the federal investment in the region.  

 

 

              

_________________________________      __January 15, 2026__  

Travis Cossey, Chairman         Date 
Ozarks Transportation Organization  
Board of Directors 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 7 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM II.E. 
 

Ozark Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project  
Memorandum of Agreement Addendum 

Engineering Services Contract 
Budget Amendment 

  
Ozarks Transportation Organization 

(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:   

Project Background - The Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) entered into a Memorandum of 
Agreement (MOA) in June 2024 with the City of Ozark to provide engineering services administration for 
four trail projects.  These projects had been awarded Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) funds for 
preliminary engineering.  
 
The OTO would like to enter into an addendum to the Memorandum of Agreement with the City of Ozark.  
The original projects preliminary engineering have been completed.  The City of Ozark would like to add 
additional scope to two of the projects: Blue Stem Trail and Kali Springs Trail. OTO will continue to 
administer the consultant contract for the City of Ozark.  The June 2024 Multi-Trail Planning and Design 
Project included the following projects.    
 

Agency Project Name Selected Firm  Original 
Amount  

Proposed 
Amendment 

#1 

City of Ozark Chadwick Flyer-Jackson St 
Connector 

Crawford 
Murphy & 
Tilley (CMT) 

$11,838.57 N/A 

City of Ozark Kali Springs Connector CMT $43,458.35 $55,776.37 

City of Ozark Blue Stem Phase 1 CMT $72,264.04 $104,409.54 

City of Ozark Finley River Trail-Western 
Expansion 

Toth & 
Associates $114,269.61 N/A 

 
A. Project Memorandum of Agreement 

The OTO will enter into a Memorandum of Agreement Addendum to continue the engineering 
services administration for the Kali Springs Connector and Blue Stem Phase I Trail projects 
additional scope.  The City of Ozark will fund the additional scope.  OTO will invoice the City of 
Ozark for the additional $44,463.52 upon the signing of the consultant contract amendment.  No 
additional OTO funds will be used on the project.  The original MOA and the proposed addendum 
are included in the agenda packet for your reference.   
 

B. Engineering Services Contract 
The OTO will need to amend the current consultant contracts to add the following: 

a. Kali Springs Connector Scope and Fee Increase of $12,318.02 (from $43,458.35 to 
$55,776.37) 

b. Blue Stem Phase I Scope and Fee Increase of $32,145.50 (from $72,264.04 to $104,409.54) 
 



C. Budget Amendment  
The Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) maintains an operational budget that is comprised 
of the various grant budgets. An amendment is proposed the OTO Annual Operational Budget Class 
610 – Carbon Reduction Program (CRP) Trail Projects for FY2026.  The following additions are part 
of the budget amendment. 

 
The following Revenue has been added to Class 610 (Carbon Reduction Program (CRP) Trail  
Projects):  

• Local Jurisdiction - $44,463.52 
 

The following Expense has been added: 
• Transportation Consultants - $44,463.52 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED (3 Motions Needed): 
That a member of the Board of Directors makes one of the following motions for each section: 
 
A.) Project Memorandum of Agreement Amendment 
 
“Move the Board of Directors authorize the Executive Director to execute an addendum to the existing 
Memorandum of Agreement with the City of Ozark to increase the scope and fee of the Engineering 
Services Administration for the Multi-Trail Project.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move the Board of Directors direct the Executive Director to…” 
 
B.) Engineering Services Contract 
 
“Move to authorize the Executive Director to amend and execute the amended consultant contracts with 
the increased scope and fee for Kali Springs Connector and Blue Stem Phase I.” 
 
OR 

“Move to authorize the Executive Director to...” 
 
C.) Budget Amendment 
 
“Move to approve the FY2026 Operational Budget Amendment #4.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move approve the FY2026 Operational Budget Amendment #4 with the following changes…” 



PAGE 1 OF 4 Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project Memorandum of Agreement Addendum  
 

City of Ozark, Missouri 
205 N. 1st Street, PO Box 295 
Ozark, MO 65721 
Attn: Sara Fields, Executive Director. 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
2208 W Chesterfield Blvd., Suite 101 
Springfield, MO 65807 
Attn: Sara Fields, Executive Director. 

 
ADDENDUM TO MEMORANDUM OF 

AGREEMENT FOR 
Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project 

 
Entered into this ________ day for good and valuable consideration, the undersigned hereby 
agree that this Addendum shall become part of that certain Memorandum of Agreement 
executed on June  

 
WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the original Memorandum of Agreement included City of Ozark Matching 
funds identified as not to exceed Fifty Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Four and No/100s 
($50,194.00); and 

WHEREAS, Kali Springs Trail cost increased by Twelve Thousand Three Hundred 
Eighteen and 2/100s ($12,318.02) due to trail alignment changes to be more cost efficient 
and achieve project goals; and 

WHEREAS, Blue Stem Phase I Trail cost increased by Thirty-Two Thousand One 
Hundred Forty Five and 50/100s ($32,145.50) due to trail alignment changes to avoid the 
flood plain; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ozarks Transportation Organization (“OTO”) has wishes to add the 

additional work to the scope of work which increases the Project Cost by Forty-Four Thousand 
Four Hundred Sixty-Three and 42/100’s ($44,463.52) and the  City of Ozark funding Forty-Four 
Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Three and 42/100’s ($44,463.52) of these additional costs; and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the original Memorandum of Agreement to reflect 
these additional Project Costs and to update the project scope of work. 

The parties agree as follows: 

1.) “Schedule B” is added to the Memorandum of Agreement, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

2.) Paragraph 2 is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with language to read as 
follows:   



PAGE 2 OF 4 Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project Memorandum of Agreement Addendum  
 

 
City of Ozark Matching funds for Engineering Services Consultant 
a. The City shall provide funds for the consultant contract up to the amount of 

  Ninety-Four Thousand Six Hundred Fifty-Seven and 52/100s ($94,657.52). 
b. Upon execution of Engineering Consultant Contracts Amendments, OTO will invoice 
the City as follows: 

i. The City will be invoiced twenty percent (20%) match of the total 
    negotiated engineering services contract up to Fifty Thousand One 

                    Hundred Ninety-Four and No/100s ($50,194.00). 
                ii. The City will be invoiced one hundred percent (100%) match of the  
                     remaining Forty-Four Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Three and 52/100s  
                     ($44,463.52) 

iii. In the event the twenty percent (20%) is higher than the outlined Fifty  
     Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Four and No/l00s ($50,194.00) an   
     addendum to this Agreement will be prepared and a secondary invoice will   
      be generated after Addendum execution. 
iv. The City will provide OTO with the invoiced funds as invoiced within 45 
      business days. 

c. Upon project completion, OTO  
i. will provide a refund of any unused match. 
ii. OTO will provide the City with the unused funds within forty-five 
 

3.) Addendum Term.  The total period of service is expected to be completed by 
December 2026. 
 

4.) Addendum Project Schedule.  The tentative schedule for the increased scope is as 
follows: 

 
• Preliminary engineering – August 2026 
• Final Plans, Specifications, and Estimates – December 2026 

 
5.) That all other provisions of the aforementioned Memorandum of Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect.  
 

6.) That this Addendum together with the Memorandum of Agreement contain the entire 
agreement of the parties.  No modification, amendment, or waiver of any of the 
provisions of this Memorandum of Agreement shall be effective unless in writing 
specifically referring hereto and signed by both parties.  

 
 
 
 
 



PAGE 3 OF 4 Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project Memorandum of Agreement Addendum  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals on the day and 
year provided below. 

 
City of Ozark OZARKS TRANSPORTATION 

ORGANIZATION 

By:   By:   

Date:   Date:   
 

Name:  _________________ Name: Sara Fields 
Title:  Mayor Title: Executive Director 



SCHEDULE B  Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project Memorandum of Agreement 
 

                                  Kali Springs Trail Connector Addendum Scope and Fee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Schedule B 



SCHEDULE B  Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project Memorandum of Agreement 
 

                                 Blue Stem Trail Connector Addendum Scope and Fee 

 



Annual Budget

YEAR 2026

July 1, 2025 to June 30 2026
BOD Adopted May 15, 2025
Amendment 1 BOD Adopted July 17, 2025 
Amendment 2 BOD Adopted September 25, 2025 
Amendment 3 BOD Adopted November 20, 2025
Amendment 4 BOD Adopted January ___, 2025

www.ozarkstransportation.org



A
NN

UAL

B

U D G E
T

Carbon Reduction
Program (CRP) Trail
Projects Budget 

Revenues

Expenses



BILL N0.3569 ORDINANCE N0. 24 - 042

AN ORDINANCE
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH

THE OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION FOR SERVICES RELATED TO
TRAIL PROJECTS

WHEREAS, the City ofOzark, Missouri, (City) vvishes to enter into a contract with the
Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) for services related to trail projects; and

WHEREAS, appropriations have been made piirsuant Fiscal year 2024 Budget, Budget
Code/Line Item No. 101 030-715.200and 101 030-717.100.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN
OF THE CITY OF OZARK, MISSOURI as follows, that:

SECT10N 1 - The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into a Contract vvith the Ozarks
Transportatioii Organization, for services related to trail projects, said agreement substantially in
the tbrm ofthat document attached hereto and incoi-porated herein as "Exhibit 1."

SECTION 2 - This Ordinance shall be in full torce and effect from and after its passage and
approval.

PASSED ON JUNE 17, 2024.

AYE NAY ABSENT/ABSTAIN

ALDERMAN BRUCE GALLOWAY X
ALDERMAN JEAN ANN HUTCHINSON X
ALDERMAN DAVID SNIDER X
ALDERMAN EUDIE CAMPBELL X
ALDERMAN J1M METCALF X

APPROVED THIS 17"' DAY OF JUNE, 2024.

•y^^-Let
CDN CURRENCE, MAYOR

VM^

ATTEST:

CHANDKA HODGES, K



Exhibit 1

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
FOR

Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project

This Agreement is made and entered into upon its execution by both parties as set forth
below, with the Effective Date corresponding with the last signature to this Agreement.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, on May16,2024, the Ozarks Transportation Organization ("OTO") approved
Applications for Trail and Sidewalk Engineering Projects funded with Carbon Reduction Program

(CRP)funds;and

WHEREAS the City ofOzark ("City") has applied for CRP funds to be used fortrail and
engineering services for multiple trail proj'ects (Jackson Street Connection/Chadwick Flyer
Phase I, Kali Springs Trail Connector, Blue Stem-Phase 1 of North Ozark Greenway Trail,
FinelyRiverTrail-Western Expansion); and

WHEREAS the Ozarks Transportation Organization ("OTO") has proposed a partnership
with the City to hire an engineering consultant to conduct planning and engineering services for
the multiple trail projects as outlined in "SCHEDULE A"; and

WHEREAS the City has agreed to partner in the preliminary engineering of the trail as
outlined in the "SCOPE OF SERVICES".

WHEREAS, OTO has agreed to oversee the Preliminary Engineering and to utilize eighty

percent (80%) CRP federal funds along with twenty percent (20%) ofthe actual costs to be

provided by the City in local match to fund the Preliminary Engineering.

NOW, THEREFORE, in exchange for valuable consideration each received from the other
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby agree as
follows:

Scopeof_Services
1. OTO Engineering Services Administration Responsibilities

a. Project Administration. OTO shall, at its sole cost and expense,act as the project
administrator. OTO's project administration assistance includes the following:

ac
Multi-Troil Planning ond Deslgn Project Memorandum of Agreement PAGE10F4

CityofOzark
205 N. 1st Street, PO Box 295
Ozark, MO 65721
Attn; Jeremy Parsons

Ozarks Transportation Organization
2208 W Chesterfield Blvd., Suite 101
Springfield, MO 65807
Attn: Sara Fields, Executive Director.



i. Entering into a Program Agreement with Missouri Department of
Transportation (MoDOT) to administer the multiple trail projects with the
use of CRP federal funding and local match.

ii. In cooperation with the City and in compliance with the City's

procurement process, select a consultant for Engineering Services
consistent with the City's procurement policy and federal grant
requirements; and

iii. Provide copies of all procurement practices and documentation of costs
tothe City; and

iv. With City assistance, prepare the engineering services scope, with the trail
specifications andscope subjectto the inputand final approval ofthe Clty's
Public Works staff; and

v. Enter into a contract for Engineering Services for the proposed public
fadlities with the selected Engineering Consultant, with said contract
includingthe requirements oftheCitythatareset out in attached
Exhibit 1; and

vi. Fund payment of engineering servjces upon approved invoice and as
outlined in executed Engineering Services contract; and

vii. Oversee the engineering services provided by the selected consultant and
report to the City on the status of such services.

viii. Provide the City Plans, Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E) for the
trail project upon project completion.

ix. Provide all copies of paid invoices and canceled checks within 60 days of
consultant project completion or by October 21, 2025, whichever date is
earlier.

2. City of Ozark Matching funds for Engineering Services Consultant
a. The City shall provide funds for the consultant contract up to the amount of

FiftyThousandOneHundred Ninety-Fourand No/100 ($50,194.00).
b. Upon execution of Engineering Consultant Contract, OTO will invoice the

City as follows:
i. The City will be invoiced twenty percent (20%) match of the total

negotiated engineering services contrart up to FiftyThousand One
Hundred Ninety-Four and No/100 ($50,194.00).

ii. In the event the twenty percent (20%) is higher than the outlined Fifty
Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Four and No/lOOs ($50,194.00) an
addendum to this Agreement will be prepared and a secondary invoice
will be generated after addendum execution.

iii. The City will provide OTO with the invoiced funds as invoiced
within 45 business days.

c. Upon project completion, OTOwill
i. will provide a refund of any unused match.
ii. OTO will provide the City with the unused funds within forty-five

ccc
Multi-Trail Plannlng and Design Project Memorandum ofAgreement PAGE20F4



business days of engineering services closeout.

3. City of Ozark Oversite Responsibilities
a. The Cityshall assistwith the developmentofengineeringservices project scope;

and
b. The Cityshall participate in regular meetings to ensure project is performed

per the terms and conditions of the Carbon Reduction Program funding
award; and

c. The City shall provide data and staffing support as necessary for the OTO to

perform the OTO Engineering Services Administration.

1. Term. OTO shall commence project management as soon as practicable after the execution
of this Agreement, unless otherwise directed in writing by the City, and the term of this
Agreement shall expire on October 22, 2025, unless an Addendum to extend the Term of
this Agreement is executed by the parties prior to this date.

The project administration services provided by OTO will be considered complete upon fjnal
Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) receipt and contract closeout, and upon the City
of Ozark's satisfaction with all deliverables indicated in the PS&E.

The total period ofservice isexpectedto becompleted byJune30, 2025.

2. ProjectSchedule. The tentativeschedule is asfollows;
• Consultant Selection - July 12,2024
• ProgramAgreementand RequestforQualifications EngineeringConsultant-July

2024
• Engineering Consultant Notice to Proceed - End of August 2024
• Preliminaryengineering-January2025
• Final Plans, Specifications, and Estimates - May 30, 2025

3. Liability and Indemnity. In no event shall the OTO be liable to the City for special, indirect,
or consequential damages, except those caused by the OTO's, or its agent's or official's

gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct. In no event shall the City be liable to the
OTO for special, indirect, or consequential damages, except those caused by the City's, or
its agent's or official's gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct.

4. Conflicts. No salaried officer or employee of the City or OTO and no member of the City or
OTO Board shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. A violation of
this provision renders the Agreement void. Any applicable federal regulations and
applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq. RSMo. shall not be violated. OTO covenants
that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services to be performed

^r^
Mutti-Trail Ptanning and Design Project Memorandum ofAgreement PAGE30F4



underthisAgreement. OTOfurthercovenantsthat in the performance ofthisAgreement no

person having such interest shall be employed or compensated by OTO.

5. Termination for Convenience. Subject to the rights of the City, as set out in this
Agreement, the OTO or the City, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole
or in part, when it is in the City's or OTO's interest. If this contract is terminated, the OTO
shall be liable only for service deliverables of this contract rendered before the effective
date oftermination. TheCity, bywritten notice, mayterminatethis contract, in whole
or in part, when it is in the City's interest.

6, Compliance with Laws. OTO agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local
laws or rules and regulations applicable to the provision of services and products
hereunder. OTO affirmatively states that payment of all local, state, and federal taxes and
assessments owed by the OTO is current.

7. Jurisdiction. This Agreement and every question arising hereunder shall be construed or
determined according to the laws of the State of IVIissouri. Should any part of this
Agreement be litigated, venue shall be proper only in the Circuit Court of Christian
County, Missouri.

8. The sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, transferee, and assignee shall
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rjghts Act of 1964, which prohibits recipients of federal
financial assistance from excluding from a program or activjty, denying benefits of, or
otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national origin (42
U.S.C. §2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department ofthe Treasury's Title VI
regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of
this contract (or agreement). Title VI also indudes protection to persons with "Limited

English Proficiency" in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42
U.S.C. §2000d et seq., as implemented by the Department of the Treasury's Title VI
regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this
contract or agreement.

9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties. No
modification, amendment, orwaiverofanyofthe provisionsofthisAgreementshall be
effective unless in writing specifically referring hereto and signed by both parties.

10. Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00. That pursuant to IVIissouri Revised Statute Sections
285.525 through 285.550, if this contract exceeds the amount of $5,000.00 and Contractor is
associated with a business entity, Contractor shall provide an acceptable notarized affidavit stating
that the associated business entity is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization

program with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services, and
that said business entity does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in
connection with the contracted services. Additionally, Contractor must provide documentation for

ccc
Mutti-Trail Planning andDeslgn Pro'fect Me/norandum ofAgreement PAGE40F4



said business entity evidencing current enrollment in a federal work authorization program.

11. Affidavit for Compliance with Anti-Discrimination against Israel Act. That pursuant to
Missouri Revised Statute Section 34.600, if this contract exceeds the amount of $100,000 for
Contractors with ten or more employees, Contractor shall provide an acceptable notarized affidavit
stating that the associated business is not currently engaged in and shall not for the duration of the
contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from the State of Israel; is not currently engaged
in and shall not, for the duration of the contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from
companies doing business in or with Israel or authorized by, licensed by, or organized under the
laws of the State of Israel; or is not currently engaged in and shall not for the duration of this
contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from persons or entities doing business in the
state oflsrael.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals on the day and

year provided below.

City of Ozark

By: ^L^yyi!^. ^-Ct^O^ru^.

Date: ^-^-^Oft)'/

Name: Don Currence
Title: Mayor

OZARKSTRANSPORTATION

ORGAN12ATION

Date: ^- 1^-^02^

Name: Sara Fields
Title: Executive Director

tt>
Mutti-Traii Ptanning ond Design Project Memorandum ofAgreement PA6E50F4



EXPLANATION TO COUNCIL BILL N0; 3569

FILED: 6/3/2024

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS

PURPOSE: AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT WITH THE OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION FOR SERVICES
RELATED TO TRAIL AND SIDEWALK PROJECTS.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Thc City of Ozark (City) wishes to enter a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) for professional grant and engineering services vvith the Ozark Transportation
Organization (OTO). The MOU will establish our working partnership and outline how our organizations
collaborate on the planning and design ofcertain projects related to the Ozark Pedestrian Master Plan, and
future phases ofa multi-modal trails identified within the Regiona] Bike and Pedestrian Trail Investment
Study (RBPTIS).

The City of Ozark has applied aiid received approval for Carbon Reduction Program (CRP)
funding to be used for trail and engineering services. Four trail projects were identified by City
Staff: Jackson Street Connection/Chadvvick Flyer Phase I, Kali Springs Trail Connector, Blue
Stem-Phase 1 ofNorth Ozark Greenway Trail, and the Finely River Trail - Westem Expansion.

OTO has proposed to oversee the Preliminary Engineering and to utilize eighty percent (80%) CRP
federal funds along with twenty percent (20%) of the actual costs to be provided by the City in
local match to fund the Preliminary Engineering. If approved, the OTO will provide a list of
services including but not limited to the follovving:

i. Project Administration
ii. Financial Services in Coordination with MODOT & Ozark

iii. Engineering Consultant Selection
iv. Manage Engineering Services
v. Provide City Plans, Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E)

This MOU will allow our agencies to complete the planning and design serv'ices in collaboration with one
another to advance the City's goal ofproviding multi-modal connections throughout our community. Our
organizations will collectively provide the Board ofAldermen with updates as the design and engineering
projects moves forvvard. The agreement for these services shalt expire on October 22, 2025.

R.EMARKS: The Public Works Department is requesting approval ofa Memorandum of Understanding
with the OTO to assist with the approved CR.P projects. 20% Matching funds have been allocated in the
Transportation Planning and Engineering Line Items, 101 030-715.200 & 101 030-717.100.

Submitted by:

Jeremy l^fisohs, Public Works Director Ben D^CIue, Interim City Administrator



I.CTOKJSXE'ST TRAil.EXHIBIT
2024 TAP PROJECT

RECRE/1110NAL TRAILS

C17YOFOZ.-IRK

o
n
3
t\J

y
00
!^

M
^
^

fa1~-<

y;(repcHfiflN



Trail and Sidewalk EngineeringApplication Form
Please provide thefollowing Information, do not leave any part blank.

Part 1: Applicant Information

Part 2: Location
Location

This major trail expansion will begin on the Southwest side ofthe Ozark Community Center and continue west
across land that is primarily owned bythe City ofOzark. Ifapproved, the multl-modat trail would run parallel along
Finley River and ultimately provide a significant extension to Ozark' s most utilized linear park known as the Finely
River Trail. Additionally, this substantial phase would provide fufure connectivity to the Ozark Technlcal College,
andthedtyofNixa. All of this area is located vrithin the OTOjurisdictJon.

Part 3: Budget
Total Projert Cost Estimate $112,142.25
Federal Fundlng Amount $89,713.80

CountyM5i^(/pthei| (Please select one),
Local fundambunt: $ t-i-^-et-v.-

Source of Local Match and amount

part4: Project Description
Description of proposed Improvements, including length and proposed wldth

Ttiisprojoctwiltconsiitofa 10-rcct-witioCTncTeieirailltiatwiil runivithinaSO-footcasemantthatIslocatedonlEnd andeasomonlsUiatafecun'erttlyownwiandmalntained
fay Iho Cily of OzarSt. This tra'1 WI11 be app(0)dma loly 4.853 foot tn langlh. ond nm along tha bBautifUI Flnley River. To pro'/Ida a loslcal term;nu6, ftls greenwsy will provlda s
poinl orconnection ivfth exisling righl.of-way in Iho 300 b!och oF Sculh 22nd SlreeL

Thls projsct wOt help wllh ths conUnued axpenston ofttia beloved and hlshly ubtlied Ozark Trail Networtt. TTits llnaar parh wlll also setva as a erade-sapBiated crosstng
(unnlng undetnealhWfff 65 and providc a much morc pieosont pedestrian and cyding oxpcrienco (or lhoi& looklng lo crow cne o( SouUiw<wl MiMouil' s most
well-lravcled highways. Thc (ilianiT-ont elso providos on Qliornsthc roule forpcdaairiafit an<f cycfisls toohing lo avo:d lrovere!rig thc MWY 14 aiid HVW 65 Inlerchange.
Ullinialety. tho FInloy RiverTrail Weslgm &tpanslcn vfll) sem as Phgse 11 of the Flnley River Tfsfl, and provldo 3 substantiai futuro segment of o mulfrmodst Irall Identifled
w;lh;n <ha Regicnal 8i)(6 and Potfesirisn Tnall tnvesdnont Study (RBFTIS).

Project Name FINLEY RIVER TRAIL-WESTERN EXPANSION
Projert Sponsor City of Ozark - Public Works
City/County Ozark/Christian County
Street/Route/Trail Ozark Community Center to South 22nd Street
Project Sponsor Contact Person Valerie Carr, LPA



iy\'7.0 dO U13

S^lt·Vl 7I/iVOU.i<?y3.TO

j.saroiid jyj. KO!:

iKli>M^SS]SsiE^' 1

SSff*^:
<^SSeM

 9
((iiE.2'l!}ili^:::s"'a"y^i@ii

'•'.'•
f- :^A3'S^^^^-^iv^^-^"

'.

^'^y^^^J.S^5^^5'^fe^.a®SS.iaigsgggaial..iM3il"^^F"ri^^^4:-.^£i2^^^

^isiiSSSsSBi

-——i^W :SMSS'
r.5' '••

vfi^mKSef.^.^.-^j . ^f^SS'"1fj~^!?i^B'}u=<'-'^L ;!^^'^i^£^;ru@if
\~";SS'i.i:B- '.fifiiSll ^^r\ n'r?f^T~r;!

SB?^Will

-•l;'i"' c". .i"il -•• •~.



Trait and Sidewalk EngineeringApplication Form
Please provide the following informatfon, do not leave any port blank.

Part 1: Appticant Information

Part 2: Location
Location

This major trail expansion wilt begin on the Noriheast slde of 02arR and contlnue west across fand that Is primarily owned by
Properiy Owner' s Associations. The proposed alignment wtll utllize tha exisling drajpage easament (hat conveys stormwatar to
a reglona! retentlon pond located on ihe northeast comer of the HW6S & HWY CC Interchanga. (f approved, the multt-modal trail
would run paraltel atonfl the shared drainage easement'and ultimately provide cpnnectivity to several corrmercial and fesidential
subdivtsions. Additk»nally,thls substanlial phase would pr&vide future conneclivity to the Chadwick Flyer, and ths City of NExa.
This enlire oorridor )s lacated withln the OTO jurisdicUon,

Part3:Budget
Total Projert Cost Estimate $73,030.50
Federal FundIngAmount $58,424.00
Source of Local Match and amount Countyj^i^l/^thei^ (Please select one)

Local furia'amount: $ i-r,uuu..

part4: Project Description
Description of proposed improvements, includlng length and proposed width

This (ffst phase of the prq)ect will coruistofa 10-fcot-wldn cwcrcta traB that uriil njn withln a 30.f6ot essemmt tocated poratlel toaiiopeft ciilch coiridcr Ihal cuminUy servw
osatafgBStotmwalcrccnvoyBnca systejn, ThIslrallwiUbaBpprexifnaloty'1,323 foetlnlgflgth, ThBfIrstphflsownibcglnatthsSSOOblocicatNorthBluestemoridinoTderto
pfwitte a loglcal (giminus, Ifite greanway will provye ? polnl c( connwfion with tho eristing irfght-of-way In (ha 5SOQ bloch of North 17th Street.

Th?s lineaf pflrt; (ffK Also swv^ as a muttl-modaf snertway Iftat pnivirfes a much mcre ptaasant pedeslrfan ani) cydlng experfflncc (w thosa looklng tfl navtgata fwn sfiy of
tho down fesldenlialsnd/of commerctal sutHfMtiaits localed to the Korth of Uw HWY NN Cooldor. Tti6 alignment also prowdes en altciMth'o fauto f0f pedestrians and
cydists fooUng to avdd travfifslng afong KWY NN. Cuwentfy there sre vciy Ihrlled pfldestriao services ofiofrasinicturo io Fiaco atong lh.!> raiildly devotoplrtg canfdw. Sa. by
mglilng ihla connectton lo 17th Stnel you prmtde a pedasbfan paih to esdsGng ADA compltont s.yewalte anii crosswafts thal can Itien bo utSiad to wfe)y cwss HWY NN
an<J conlinus lo (ho saulh vrfiera U,$. SatlpaA currenttyflperates on a silc wbero several add'rtfonal ontenaInniffftKipponunitles are being propossd. Addiltonatty, Ihts traD
wifl finlt upwtth the proposed iircsnwayalong tha narth slda ofHWY CC. Thoss roadwa^ awi padtstrtan tmproveftients havo been klentdled wftliinan executerf MoDOT
Cost Shjins whtdi ttcwrenSly projected to bo eoffipiotisd by 2028. UIUfnalcIy> >be BlusstBm TfaH wiU senffi ss Phase 1 ofa North Oiarit grecnway notwoik and pfmido a
sutelantial foiuro segmcnt of a mulU-nifxlal (rail whkh has befld yonlifwd widiln Ihc Ozark Adfro TianBportaBon Pfao,

Project Name Blue Stem-Phase 1 of North Ozark Greenway Trail
Projert Sponsor City of Ozark - Public Works
aty/County Ozark/Christian County
Street/Route/Trail 5600 N. Bluestem Road to 5500 N. 17th Street
Project Sponsor Contact Person Vaterie Carr, LPA



'iJ^^K^

fSK^S,

W'S{S3SslS!t,

•'•-v^

ViSaSS'K"! 

S)1® 11'iB'sas sssssss !ssi

4L! SPRIWSTR^UL EXWRIT

rr.
>\J ^ •

">-
2024'l'AP I'ROJECT

RECREATIONAL TR.'IILS

CHYOFOZ.-tRK
OCHRfiN



Trail and Sidewalk EngineeringApplication Form
Please provide thefollowlng Information, do not leave anypart blank.

Part 1: Applicant tnformation

Part 2: Location
Location

Thls project is located on the West side of Ozark and within the City limits. If
approved the multi-modal trail would run parallel along Fremont Road and ultimately
provide a portion oftrail with future connectlvity to the Chadwick Flyer, Ozark
Technical College, and the City of Nixa. All of this being within the OTO jurisdiction.

Part 3: Budget

part4: ProjectDescription
Description of proposed improvements, including length and proposed width

TTil$ projert wffl constet c( a 10-fool wyo concreta tniil that wBI njn wflhin tha 3(W»lflasoment that is aiready acqufred aiong Itio commtin area owncd by ths Kali Spriogg
Subd'iviston Homo 0*nen Asrodatton. Thb 1 ) wltl ba approxtroatdy l.762 frot lnlon9th. and mn afong tho KaB Sprfngawot weatherstrasm and paraBel wlth Ffflinont
Road. To provtdo a loglcal Ufmlnus, Uw new alignment witl provld? a fxrfnt of CTnnecflon wth lh& rtght-of-way hi the NwlJi 3000 titock o[ 30Ui StracL

Thl»(>ro]aciw(fl tiolp w'rth subdlvtetafl inlefconnaetlviiy and pnwfda a oelghbortnod amonlEy ihat Inlho futuro provtdes scce&s lo Iha Chaitwlck Flyer. Thtg ifafl^vftl also sanfa
as Iho firsl phosa &t a mutii-fnodat conmction wilh Otafks Technfcfit Coltego to Ihe South, provjde fnteftMnnectisnly to five [5} Oaarfi subdiviiJons dc'/eliiped aloiq Frsmonl
Road, llnk lo Iho Ctty o( Nixa to thg Wftsl. and llfrin 10 the proposod (uturo Lcngvtew Ovo'pass vifhlch coukl serro sa a vits) cast-wost contdor fof Northem Christi.an County.

Project Name Kali Springs Trail Connector
Project Sponsor City of Ozark - Public Works
City/County Ozark/Christian County
Street/Route/Trail Kali Springs Common Area to 3000 Block N. 30th Street
Project Sponsor Contact Person \/alerie Carr, LPA

Total Project Cost Estimate $32,388.00
Federal FundingAmount $25,910.40
Source of Local Match and amount |Coun1





Trail and Sidewalk EngineeringApplication Form
Pfease provSde thefo!low!ng information^ do not feme any part Uonk,

Part 1: Applicant Information

Part 2: Location
Location

This proposed trail connector will begin on the Northeast side of the intersection at
Jackson Street / HWY 14 and North 16th Street. The proposed alignment wilt utilize
the existing Jackson Street / HWY 14 Right-of-Way and make a multi-modal
connection to Phase 1 of the Chadwick Flyer. If approved, the connection would run
parallel along the north side of Jackson Street / HWY 14 and ultimately provide safe
access to several commercial businesses.

Part 3: Budget

part4: Project Description

Description of proposed improvements, induding length and proposed width
Theproject wS aifislsl of a 6-fo<it'wy<* CM>ct'e(atra3 that wM nin wilhirt the spproxlfflatdy 150' cf riflht-of-way tocalod along U»jfldiAin Stnaci/HWY 14 cooidof.  15 tra'l
wil t»art est'matod 550 feei In lcoglh. Tha connediort «3twflln ai tha 1 £00wesl block of Jackson Sfrwt / KV/y 14 and njn parallel to ihe wsstboijnd lana of (hls major
arlg(ial. TTie tenrinus foclhfl connectorwltt be locaiedjust north ol ihe OMfk Comfnunity Cfloler undarpaas l&cslod tvilhin Phasa I oflha Chadwlch Flyor.

CufrenBy thero vw vsiy b'mitad pedestrian sarriccs In place al&ng ma iWth gida of ihts main comnsftia) conidor. Thts connocti&n wHI slso sonfg to B) the gap between tho
nxlsttftg shlawalk locgled furthsr wcal olong th& Hfghwa)' gnd Iha nawty constnided ChadwIdtFlysr Phase I. TT>i3 aitdjtIonwT] pKiv'de a much niore pteasanlpedsstriw and
cycting eKpcriwca ^nd ensurs salo pa&safla (o wvcrat oflhe estabtished cofflfflflrdat bus[(ws$esvia tho ngwfy coflitnjctod underpass. 'fliis

pfoposcd project atso prowjes
analtemsfivetoutflfofpedostrignsendcycfiststoftktng toflwoyiraversIngaftat'yadecrosslfigaIonglhtJactaonStrefllfHWY WcortfdofwtilchaKommodatBSnwreUwi
16,000 vahtdos per day. Ulllmaiely, Ihe Jackson Sifwil Connection will scfvs ss a signlDcsnl Improvanwitfor ouj'residerls and studenls by provKilng 3 subslgntlal
pMeslrian ainnectorwhyi hag becn Identified withln Ihe Oitarii Activc Transportaffon Plan.

Project Name Jackson Street Connection / Chadwick Flyer Ph. 1
Project Sponsor City of Ozark
City/County City of Ozark/Christian County
Street/Route/Trail Jackson Street/Hwy 14 to N 16th Street
Project Sponsor Contact Person Valerie Carr, LPA

Total Project Cost Estimate $33,403.76
Federal FundlngAmount ^26,723.00
Source of Local Match and amount |County|<|^/|3the;

Local fund am5unt: $ u,uuu.



Trail Engineeririg Proj^etqLo.patjons
\. ..•*7=7^ "a ^s^'' . <- "'*....

....7 ^

r/,
'/^

'-'/>•//-.'7.

M^
F'^/^?"'^

..,fff:'^W77y.-i]
$"'®^&'z/''~y

W.^yW^/W/////^/,^'^y'^^7%^y7///^:y//WK-v.^i^^'':77,/^'/,y/^v///w/,&/.i.-'W^MS^MM^^MSi''Z//^W/^^'y//Z/Y^''//^y^y^^^^/^.^^
Y£^<S^'Z%C^:'//^S^^^^".^;-'-^-;

^D-,,.%.'-'^i:;7^%

^Qh^J^J!^MM^M^;%%'LPJi"-%^y^yaM^

%2^C^L-!L..->- -..S'^.^-fl''-"^"f";-'i>'

9%^^ .^,77).

Miie;.

J%.lB•^•.r''^''~''/'1,
^J-

'^-•'^'

,'w./'.<yj'//,t'////. v,\._s-'-(//ysA i {•'i'-&

 

Trail Project Areas

Existing Trails

- • • PIanncd Trails

- Fundeci Trails

/-^f^b Rivers & Creeks

•^,<- •' City Limits

^3 Lakes

South Creek GreenwayTrail

FassnighL Creek Greenway Trail

3ordan Creek CreenwayTrai!

Wiisons Creek GreenwayTrail

Ward Branch CreenwayTrail

Jackson Street Connector

Kali Springs Conncetor

Blue Stem Phase!

Fintey RiverTrail Westward Expansion

FassnightTrai! - Bennetl



ircianCweli Inil

lAt.VL'rnun toColleEP

0'toncrei<'tf.lilfrnmc);isti(i(;lr,)ilnQrthe3italonEJor(lnn
'('(•kloW.ilnul Sl.withuiiderpasscs.it Ml. Uumofi and Kans.is

ipfessr/av an0 r?l,lininE walli

.;^CBiMt!ltaotSe(v]»ipe([ti)red-
inreylitg-AII fiolrisurveylnEmdutt[nE">i'ppln& bride^ su"L'y frpo"-Geolrcl'n ic.il l.iyoiit. ri(^iio(w,ivst.>kl"|;& locatiDii

irylonhc pro)ec(iii[lu(lli>i;li"'lus.i(id|)(>lenUAlrri3inlrtEW.ill!, publlcOutK'ach-.iswl

iitli ln.[)eisoii a vlitual publit rtiri-]lii(;i/>ie,itl»([s.TraU/Sllcw.dK Dnlin.iinip.irnlinnofprellpiiii.irv. ncl" o' visv iiid liiial

Issi);" pl^rs. Rftalnlnj Wall Dcilen-l.iyout ,iiiri reiainiiie wall dL".len (ar nevi relaiiiine wal[s. Right DlWav Acqulsilion-

irii* |iropeilv ^hhibits, Irtti.i] ^< •ri. Eniiir 11 Ci llll

iteii nen. 2!U IOC

lulliCtrrh Gn'mwav-

'mrfnlif Giip

O' wi;lu concrefc irail willi ilion st't;tiii>«tot bDarrtwalk tr.iil.

'[lcstrian hridr.e anri undernass at WeslBypass ta connecl

luttiCreekTrailloWllwfi'sCreelitfail

iivc^Irg-AII lield lui-uL-viiig includlnl; mappine, hiritlEc surwy (efior). gL-nlcchnii.dl iavoul, ri|;htol way st.ikine & loE.itton

nitfv.Gtn>i!thnical-.i"»'crknMes^arv(nr[lie (iioiecl Inclutlmebrldeeand pnlnili.il rctainin|;wil[i. Pubtli: Oulrcach.isiKi

ilti in-[>eFiO[i & vittu.il puMlc ffleetiniiS/liii.itines. Trall/SldEwaKi Dcsljin-pfep.iutioiinlpreliininary. rljjtiiul IUHV iinddna]

11t;n 1) f.111t. BridBC Dctlgn-prcn.ir.Kion ol blldga nirnic. llyBut, fm.il hiidfir iirtlG" for niiwbiidgns. Rlght ofWay Acqulfltli

iniiultsni In iircvide fMopenv e»hlt)l(s,)eBal deicilpljoni ,ind nioiiuineiitiition .is fequired. EnokCinmcnul-Coiiiull.Dii will

ouidr limnrODmdiinlAicunieiilatiwi to compleie tt;e RER. iiicliiriliii; Seclion 106 clparance.

Afi-irri [iranctit.reenw

lational lo rremonl

I'witlp concrete [rail near Bun'c!! Honllh LuHdines Iro'

:i4ti[iRlrailtoFFemontAiirSh.ircd Use Pdlh

rvcyliie-AII teld iufv^ii'eincludinl; m.i()|'"ic, linilr.esuniey irport. |ie<>iecl]i)ic.il lavoiit. riRlitol way siakiiiE tt loc.iiim

rey. Public Outrca<h-*i^sfst wilti in-persoik & uirnifll publk merilin£;s/h(*nTin[i<.Trair/Sidcwjirh Oeslgn-pre^ar.ition ot
•llmlii.irv. Fi|;til of wiM and (jiul (ti-.iEn fil.ins. RiE^t tt[ W.ivAtquliition.Coiiiull.lnl to pfoulde pruiii.Tly ohibils, lee.il

omplel^ II"' RER, IncikNliniiS^^ian IDG clonrancfc

ikiiiR&l

lO/.irkGreenw.w
Wiluin'lCn

liiitlrdcj.'-Wilion rk wilh tuuO pe<ir-l(('iiin L'ritlflei and underp3»->nl Vi/rsl [Ivnass

u]Ih lo-persun S uinual puhllc miiutmns/lieannEi. Trall/Slilcwallt Dcslfin.prepnraiion of prehfnm.irY. riBhl ofway andflnnl

ItSIEn p'aii. Bi'ldgeDesiEn-pii'p.ir.DionofbtitlEememB. hvout, (inal brljgu [Jeslgn (or new brldec',. Hlght of Wuy AcqLiiiltiDn.
"ontiilt.inl

to [iroulde laropntv eihlbili, tet;al deicriiilions .indnionumiwtiiuoiia! requlwri. Envlronmtntal-CoiiMiltiini will

IfOvirieanuirnniniiit.ildnciiinentationtotBmislctelliliFlEn.mcliirtlnBSeciloti 106 clriir,i»EC.

lO/.iikGm'tiw.iVi
aisniF.I't lrai\-

UwfarktDfort

O' i-uncrolc trail (rom Slf.ilf f.irk to S, For! Avo with one

iedeslri.in briri);e a"<l ri'taini'iR wadi
S 1,090,000

lyout. nent o( way ii.ikirie (• loriitioii

tivty. Gi'«)i<;chnlc3l..illwofk necew.iry lor Ihe piojecl induriln(; t>ri(lceandpntpnllilfeiaimn|;wnlli. I'lftillcOutnach.nms!

itli In.pCTSOn B uirtu.il pHblicmeelines/liciiiliiiii. Trall/SldtiMaIliOcilgn.iirepii.ilionofpTcIimin.ity. liutit of nr.iy and linal

;il(;n pl.ins. Sr)dBcDislen-pw|).ifalionofbfK)|;emi!im>,>.ivoui, final bnilcr (lpii(;»fof niiw bri(tl;n. RlghtofWayAtquliltli

[wiEutuiil to ptOvidftpfflpwlysKhibits, lcgfll dt?scfi[ii*ons M\d nioniimciilahonJi f<t(]u[rpri, EiwIfOrtmcnial^Coii^ulunt tivFII

ininenl.ll (locummtilliOll locomtllt'di tlic IIEn, ii>c[iidin(;Sr.[tinn 106 cle;

ggoi(K7';| ICilyufOrarli
.Ch.'i<lw.[kl'lv'< i' contrelr trail frnm CliiXMict; riyiT Trail lo nonheast qu.idrani

:tl0fk

iunfcvlni-AII field iunfEyinfi liiclurilnc iruiipiiifi, bililge suivey lepwt. Ei-otuclmlcal lavoui, rielilcf way li.iliini; & locaimn

urv&v- Gcotcchnld
•<!tln|;s/l ann|;s. Tralf/Sldewalh ODlgn.fiicpaialiOdofprcliminifV, riE'" of w"f and linal dcsign plani. RttalntnEWDll

•«lill)Ds.le|;alilf)cft|>linns aiid inonumcntaiiDii as irqutn'tf. Envlronmmtal.Cuii'iUtt.ini wllt pfouidr mwroiiiiwiiial
lociimt.nt.illon tc inmplete the REfl, IFW:IU()|I)R Settioii lOSdcar.ijice.

ICilvo'Of.iFh [Kalj'l|iriii[;s ri.iHCuiiri.'cto 10'concreteirailfroni N. 30th Sl loW. Trevor 7r;iil

iuncvlnE-ftll field sunityiii|;liictudiiie mii|)pinE, bnrice suruevifpotl. Eottt^cliiiical layoiit. ilEKI 0) w.iy it.ikine & locilii

iurucv.Geotnhnlcal-itlwork nitesiiry for itie projeci IntluiiinE I'ridce and poientul ret.imini; w.ilh. PuUicOutrMthr.it'.w

ui«hin.fWKun S. virtusl puUic ineptiiiiis/ficaniies. Trall/SWcwaKi Dedgn.pfepaiationof prtliininaty, liehT ol w.if anttflniil
drii|pi pl.ins, BridteDcslBn-pri!paratlnnoflirldBi!mcmo,layout,nnalbriit(cdeslEnlorneiNi>rtdgts.RlEhtO(WavA[i]UliJtl<

Coniultani t( .1113111 will

ItieREf isj
irvcv'nS'^^ ^li

irvey, 6cDtc(hnlcal-allwo[knr iiylc' ihcftoflu includiMgbrldf!can(li>o;enl^lf

lyit.itinc&lotiitii

alls. Publlc Ovlrcach.

iCN3Jiai-^')A.)
IniiirStcniPh.ise 1- 17[hStloBlii('5temno.i(i.wil»i.itia(.|;rariccroisincatN.

•!l Rfl desllin phni. BrldaeDcslgn-prcp.irBtlonnfbrldecnicmo.lByout, flnal lirldgc dcilB" Inr new brldECt.. RlghtofWav
Act|Lili)tlon.Ct>nsiil[aiit lo [iinuiilc |)[D)>ertv EBlifhili, lagal desciiplions ind inoiiumenl.itian af rMiuireil. Eniflfonincn

IflletnhgRER.indtiline!
ial.

[i'jmia?ai |r,nlf>/Kiwr Tr.li

IWc-iirinFiiti.iii-i

lO'cnncrcicirffllfroiii N. .inil St lo llie OC uiiLli twu Dcrieslii

hrifl(;i?!i
$8GO,OOi

iunrcvlng-AII fleldsurufiflnEincludinC m.l|ipln(!. hndce suiwy fcpoit. eeoiethmul liivout.rielitol w.-iv stakinE & Incaiioi)

srvey. Gcotcchnlcal.allivorknBCfii.iFvfonhd PIO]UCI Intludli^; l>iid(;ti.ind poienll.il rrtaiiilnEwiilli. PublIcOuitcach isiilM

witli In.persun a ·lilu.il puhlic  !etin|i</heafln(;s. TrnU/Sldi-walli DiHlgn.iircri.iiBlidti o(>irullinitiarv. rlel't of vr-if fliid [insl
du^lpiplAns. OrIdBeDcElenLpreFuralioiio/hri^iiLlii^iiio, lavoui,11niilbfKJ('^(lfrs'E[l<orrti;wbFi[(ces. ItlehtofWavAcqulslKi

uli*irtt lo provjdi? |3ropwiy i^ihtliits^ lcc^l ijiiscfifitiors dnd moiiumi'ntiittDfi AS f<*<jLfiftlilt (nvlTonnftcntal-ConsiiItiini will

pfCMilde cnuironmp ni.il [locunitintiition tocomiilMetliB BEn. inclutiini; Seclion l06 de.iriincL-.

|CiIV"<Spnnnlield
IGIen>toiielDl:ntef[ir.

S.ID' Lrail nloiic llennrli St t'-OT' Glensione Aw tn frlrriiri

AvowiihRRrn

Sunrcylng-AII field survfvine includliu; mapplng. brldEesuwvrB[)Ott,Eecletliracall,ivout,flBlil<'(wj/';i.ikinEKI°i'.ition

tuiui!v.(io»tc'chn!cal-allwoil(neEess-iryfor Ihc pfoiocl i[iduitmel)ndEeand[iotcnti.ilretaimii|;vu.ills. Pulillc OutrcDch-.iislsi

fnli in.peiscn & uinual public fTitWtines/heiinnes. 7rall/SldcwalkE)eslEn.f)n;ff.iO!lonolprf[imin.irv. rinlii ofn'.iv .nrt dn.il

nlal.Coiiiult.ini will

[ilntff thr RER. includlni! SPCtiojl IQGLle.irar



6. Forpersons with disQbilities needing reasonable accommodations please contactOTO at 417-
865-3042 atleast^ShoursinadvanceofthGquestiondeadline. ffyouneedrelaysen/icesplease
call the following numbers: 711 - Nationwide relay ser/ice; 1-800-735-2966 - Hissoun TTY
sen//ce; 1-800-735-0135 - Missouri voice carry-over



Insert CRP Applications

Jackson Street Connection/Chadwick Flyer Phase 1 (CRP Application)

Kali Springs Trail Connector (CRP Application)

Blue Stem - Phase 1 of North Ozark Greenway Trail (CRP Application)

Finley RiverTrail - Western Expansion (CRP Application)

;Li.
Mutti-Traii Ptanning and Design Project MemorandumofAgreement SCHEDULEA10F4

i ^I e )Bl9Ji]^!.'



EXHIBIT 1

CITY OF OZARK CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS RETAINED BY OZARKS
TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION TO WORK ON THIS PROJECT:

1. General Independent Contractor Clause. This Agreement does not create an
employee/employer relationship between the parties. It is the parties' jntention that the
Contractor will be an independent contractor and not the Clty's employee for all purposes,
including, but not limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum wage
and overto'me payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the
Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, Missouri
Revenue and Taxation laws, Missouri Workers' Compensation and Unemployment Insurance
laws. The Contractor will retain sole and absolute discretion in the judgment of the manner
and means of carrying out the Contractor's activities and responsibilities hereunder. The
Contractor agrees that it is a separate and independent enterprise from the public employer,
that it has a full opportunity to find other business, that it has made its own investment in its
business, and that it will utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform the work. This
agreement shall not be construed as creating anyjoint employment relationship between the
Contractor and the City, and the City will not be liable for any obligation incurred by the
Contractor, including but not limited to unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums.
Additionally, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any of the benefits established for the
employees of the City nor be covered by the Worker's Compensation Program of the City.

2. Liability and Indemnity. The parties mutually agree to the following:

a. In no event shall the City, its agents and employees, be liable to the Contractor for

special, indirect, or consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross
negligenceorwillfulorwanton misconductarisingoutoforinanywayconnectedwith

a breach of this contract. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the

amount of money it paid towards the completion of this project.
b. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its agents and employees,

harmless from and against all claims, losses, costs (including attorney fees), and
liabilities, including but not limited to, those of any persons for personal injuries,
including death, and damage to property, which are caused by the Contractor, its
agents or employees arising out of or in any way connected with this contract.

c. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold City harmless from all wages or overtime

compensation due its employees in rendering services pursuant to thjs agreement,
includingpaymentofreasonableattorneyfeesand costsin defenseofanyclaim made

under the Fair Labor Standards Act or any other federal or state law.

3. Attorney Fees. In the event of any litigation arising from breach of this Agreement, the City
shall be entitled to recover from the Contractor all reasonable costs incurred for such
litigation, including staff time, court costs, attorney fees, and all other related expenses
incurred in such litigation.

4. Insurance. Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of the Contractor, the



claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence and at least Five Hundred Five

Thousand Five Hundred Twenty and no/100 Dollars ($505,520.00). Contractor agrees to

cause its insurer to name City as an additional insured on such insurance policy.

d. Errors and Omissions Insurance. The Contractor shall maintain a professional liability

insurance policy in the amountof Three Million Three Hundred SeventyThousand One

Hundred Thirty-Seven and no/100 Dollars ($3,370,137.00) for all claims arising out of a

single accident or occurrence and at least Five Hundred Five Thousand Five Hundred

Twenty and no/100 Dollars ($505,520.00). This policy shall remain in full force and

effectfora period ofoneyearaftercompletion and acceptance bythedtyofthe

construction ofthe project. Ifinsurance iswritten on a claims-made basis, vendor must

maintain continuous coverage with 3 retroactive date prior to the effective date of the

contract.

e. Subcontracts. In case anyorall ofthisworkis sublet, the Contractorshall requirethe

subcontractorto procure and maintain all insurance required in subparagraphs (a), (b)
and (c) hereof and in like amounts. Contractor shall require any and all subcontractors

with whom it enters into a contract to perform work on this project to protect the City of

Springfield through insurance against applicable hazards or risks and shall, upon request

of the City, provide evidence of such insurance.

f. Notice. The Contractor and/or subcontractor shall furnish the City prior to beginning the

work, the policy as specified in subparagraph (d), and satisfactory proof of carriage of all

the insurance required by this contract, with the provision that polides shall not be

canceled, modified or non-renewed without thirty (30) days written notice to the City of

Springfield.

g. LeRJslative or Judicial Changes. In the event the scope or extent of the City's tort liability

as a governmental entity as described in Section 537.600 through 537.650 RSMo is

broadened or increased during the term of this agreement by legislative or judicial
action, or if the City determines it is in the best interests of the City to increase the

liability coverage and/or limits above what is set out and required in this Contract, the

City may require Contractor, upon 10 days written notice, to execute a contract

addendum whereby the Contractor agrees to provide, at a price not exceeding

Contractor's actual increased premium cost, additional liability insurance coverage as

the City may require to protect the City from increased tort liability exposure as the

result of such legislative or judicial action, or liability and/or risk determination by the

City. Any such additional insurance coverage shall be evidenced by an appropriate

certificate of insurance and shall take effect within the time set forth in the addendum.

5. Ownership of Documents. All files and information will be submitted before or upon final

approval and acceptance ofthe contract documents. All documents, includingoriginal



Contractor shall secure and maintain, at its own cost and expense, throughout the duration
of this Contract, and until the work is completed and accepted by the City of Springfield,
insurance of such types and in such amounts as may be necessary to protect it, and the
interests of the City of Springfield, against all hazards or risks of loss as hereunder specified,
orwhich may arise outofthe performance ofthis Contract. The form and limits ofsuch
insurance, together with the underwriter thereof in each case,are subject to approval by
the CityofSpringfield. Regardless ofsuch approval, itshall bethe responsibility ofthe
Contractor to maintain adequate insurance coverage at all times during the term ofthe
Contract. Failure ofthe Contractorto maintain coverage shall notrelieve itofany
contractual responsibility or obligation or liability under this Contract.

The certificates of insurance, including evidence of the required endorsements hereunder,

or the policies, shall be filed with the City at the time that this contract is signed by the
Contractor. All insurance policies shall provide thirty (30) days written notice to be given by
the insurance company in question prior to modification or cancellation of such insurance.

Such notices shall be majled, certified mail, return receipt requested, to:

City ofSpringfield -Attn: City Manager's Office, P.0. Box 8368, Springlield, MO 65801-8368
As ofJanuaryl, 2024, the minimum coverage forthe insurance referred to herein shall be ss
setoutbelow:

a. Workers' Comoensation ....Statutory coverage per RSMo 287.010 et seq.

Emplover's Liabilitv.......... $1,000,000.00

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including coverage for Contractual Liability and
Independent Contractors Liability. Such coverage shall apply to bodily injury and

property damage on an "Occurrence Form Basis" with limits of at least Three Million

Three l-1undred SeventyThousand One HundredThirty-Seven and no/100 Dollars

($3,370,137.00) for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence and at least
Five Hundred Five Thousand Five Hundred Twenty and no/100 Dollars

($505,520.00). Contractor agrees that the proceeds of such insurance policy shall first

be used to pay any award, damages, costs, and/or attorneys' fees incurred by or
assessed against City, its employees, officers and agents, before payment of any award,

damages, costs or attorney fees of Contractor, its employees, officers or agents.

Contractor agrees to cause its jnsurer to name City as an additional insured on such

insurance policy, including the City as an additional insured for coverage under its

products-completed operations hazard, and said policy shall be primary and

noncontributory.

c. Automobile Liability Insurance covering bodily injury and property damage for owned,
non-owned and hired vehicles, with limits of at least Three Million Three Hundred

Seventy Thousand One Hundred Thirty-Seven and no/100 Dollars ($3,370,137.00) for all



OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION
A METROPOLITA^ PLANNING ORGAN1ZATION

Ozarks Transportation Organization

2208 W. Chesterfield Blvd., Suite 101

Springfield, MO 65807

Phone: (417) 865-3042 Ext. 1 00

REQUESTFORQUALIFICATIONS: RFQ 2024-1 Trail Engineering Projects

FEDERALAIDNUMBER:SeeTable

DEADLINE: June21, 2024, at4:oopM, CentralStandard Time

PURCHASING AGENT: Debbie Parks, 41 7-865-3047 x 106, dparks(aozarkstransporta_tiQrLorg

DATEOFISSUE: Friday, May 31, 2024

DearConsultant:

TheOzarksTransportation Organization (OTO) is requestingservicesofconsultingengineeringfirms
toperformthedescribed professionalservicesformultipleprojects as shown on the attached llst.
Proposerscansubmitforanynumberoftheprojectpackagesoralloftheprojectpackagesin one

statement of qualifications. The projects can be awarded to any number of proposers, or one

proposer. Please reference the cover sheet for the list of projects, as well as the attached project
detailssheet.

Ifyourfirmwould liketobeconsideredfortheseconsultingservices.provideyoursubmlttaltoJen
Thomas atjthomasfaiozarkstransportation.Qrs. A confirmation emailwill be sent once the submittal
isreceived.

Below are the requirementsforthe statement of qualifications:

* A page will be considered one side of an 8.5"x11" size sheet of paper

Please clearly indicate on the provided Cover Sheet which project(s) yourfirm is interested in.

Pages 2 and 3 of the submittal should include any company information which might help the

selection procsss, includinggeneralexperienceofthefirm.familiarily/capability, accessibilityof
firmand staff, pastperformance, qualifications and backgroundsofkeypersonnelyouwould
assigntothe project.An explanationofyourfirm'sapproachtopromotinganddevelopinga diverse

workforce. Page4ofthesubmittalshould includedetailed informationonsimilarprojectsyourkey

personnel have worked on. Indicate the role your key personnel played in the projects and include
reference contactinformation.

Maximum No. Pages*
CoverSheet-ListofProjects indicatingforwhich project(s)the
consultantisinterested

1

General Experience of Firm, Familiarity/Capability,AccessibilityofFirm&
Staff, Past Performance, Qualifications of Personnel Assigned, Workforce
Diversity, Similar Projects

3

Project Understanding, Innovation &Schedule 2 pagesperproject
package



drawings, calculations, computer runs, field notes, drawings, estimates, specifications,
written design criteria and written reports are and remain the property ofthe Contractor

until such time as this Agreement is, for any reason, terminated, at which time they become
the property of the City. The Contractor shall furnish to the City one set of reproducible
record Mylars of drawings, AutoCAD files and copies of estimates, specifications, written

reports, and written design criteria, in consideration of which the City will use them fully in

connection with the project and will not sell them.

6. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state
and local laws, rules and regulations applicable to the provision of services and products
hereunder. The Contractor affirmatively states that payment of all local, state, and federal
taxes and assessments owed by the Contractor has been paid and is current.

7. Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00. That pursuant to Missouri Revised Statute
Sections 285.525 through 285.550, if this contract exceeds the amount of $5,000.00 and
Contractor is associated with a business entity, Contrartor shall provide an acceptable
notarized affidavit stating that the associated business entlty is enrolled in and participates in a
federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with
the contracted services, and that said business entity does not knowingly employ any person
who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. Additionally,
Contractor must provide documentation for said business entity evidencing current enrollment
in a federal work authorization program.

8, Affidavit for Compliance with Anti-Discrimination against Israel Act. That pursuant to
Missouri Revised Statute Section 34.600, ifthis contract exceeds the amount of $100,000 for
Contractors with ten or more employees, Contractor shall provide an acceptable notarized
affidavit stating that the associated business is not currently engaged in and shall not for the
duration of the contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from the State of Israel; is not
currently engaged in and shall not, for the duration of the contract, engage in a boycott of

goods or services from companies doing business in or wlth Israel or authorized by, licensed by,
or organized under the laws of the State of Israel; or is not currently engaged in and shall not
for the duration of this contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from persons or
entities doing business in the state of Israel.



Theremainderofthestatementofthequalificationswjllinclude uptotwo pages per project
package.which [ncludesyourfirm'sunderstandingoftheprojectandanyinnovativeapproachesto
be utilized during project development. It should also include any other information which might
help us in the selection. These pages should also identify any sub-consultants you would propose
to use. Any consultant or sub-consultant which qualifies as a DBE should be indicated.

DBEfirmsmustbecertified bythe Missouri DBpartmentofTransportationtobecounted as

participating towards an established DBE goal. We encourage DBE firms to submit letters of
interestas primeconsultantsforanyprojsctstheyfeelcan be managedbytheirfirm.

Itisrequiredthatyourfirm beprequalifiedwith MoDOTandUsted in MoDOT's Approved Consultant
Prequalification List, oryour firm will be considered non-responsive.

The submission must also include the E-Verify MOU & Affidavit of Compliance.

Interviews/presentationswillnotbe requiredfortheconsultantselections.OTO'sProjectManager
will accept phone calls or emails to answer questions.

Below js an anticipated solicitation schedule:

Solicitation Period:
ReviewofSubmittals:
Announcement of Selection:
Noticeto Proceed:

May31-June21,2024
June21-July5,2024
July5,2024
Mid-LateAugust2024

We request all Statements of Qualifications be submitted/received no later than 4:00pm, June 21,
2024, via emailto jthomasOozarkstransportation.org

Sincerely,



(Thls mustaccompanyyourfirm's letterof interest)

Forconsideration, pleaseselectalltheprojectsyourfirmisinterested in.

*These locations will be designed by one consultant ancf will count as one project in terms of page
count for the statement of qualifications.

The undersigned hereby certifies a thorough review of this Request for Qualifications. The
undersigned also certifies the firm and key personnel indicated in its Statement of Qualifications
will be used on thls project in the same manner and to the same sxtent as so indicated. All
statements, representations, covenants, and/or certifications set forth in the Statement of

Qualjfications are complete and accurate.

Name of Firm/Consultant:

Contact Person:

E-Mail:

BusinessAddress:

City:

Signature:

State:

Title:

Phone:

Zip:

.Date:

Project
Number

Project Name PartnerAgency

D EN2414 Jordan Creek Trail - Mt. Vernon to College OzarkGreenways

D EN2415 South CreekGreenway-Posenke Gap OzarkGreenways

D EN2416 Ward Branch-National to Fremont Ozark Greenways

a EN2417 Wilson's Creek Trail- Ewing to Rutledge-Wilson Ozark Greenways

EN2418 Fassnight Trail-Skate Park to Fort OzarkGreenways

a EN2419 Chadwick Flyer-Jackson St. Connector* CityofOzark
EN2420 Kali Springs Trail Connector* CityofOzark

D EN2421 Blue Stem Phase 1-North Ozark Greenway CityofOzark

D EN2422 FinleyRiverTrail-Western Expansion CityofOzark

EN2423 FassnightTrail-Glenstoneto Enterprise CityofSpringfield



I. GENERALINFORMATJQN

PURPOSE. The Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) is requesting proposals for professional
engineering services from qualifled engineering firms for engineering and design (includes
completingthe Environmental Documentation) forthe RegionalTrail and Sidewalk Projects.
Servic^s shsll include all environmental documentation, survey, preliminary and final design plans,
speclfications, bid book, and PS&E documents. These services shall be performed in accordance
with all local, State, and Federal laws and regulations.

BACKGROUND. OzarksTransportation Organization (OTO) Metropolitan PlanningOrganization

(MPO) is the federally designated regionaltransportation planningorganizationthatservesasa
forum for cooperative transportation decision-making by state and local governments, and regional
transportationandplanningagencies. MPO'sarecdargedwith maintainingand conductinga
"continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive" regional transportation plannlng and project
programmingprocessfortlieMPO'sstudyarea.Thestudyareaisdefinedastheareaprojectedto
become urbanized within the next 20 years.

OTO's Board of Directors includes local elactgd and appointed officials from Christian and Greene
Counties, and the cities of Battlefield, Nixa, Ozark, Republic, Springfield, Strafford and Willard. It
also includes technical staffs from the Missouri DepartmentofTransportation, Federal Highway
Administration, FederalTransitAdministration, and the FederalAviation Administration and
members from public Uansportation providers and citizen representatives.

The overall objective of these projscts is to develop plans, specifications, and other required
documentstohave projects readyforfuturefundingopportunities.The segmentsoftrailand
sidewalkarelocated invariouslocationswithintheOTOarea. See Project Details sheet and map
for more information.

SCHEDULE. The following is the schedule of events which are anticipated by OTO for the
Implementationand completion ofselectingtheflrm/consultanttoprovidetherequestedservices
asoutljned intheStatementofScope. OTOmay, in itsdiscretion, revisethescheduleofeventsat
anytlmeasmaybeinitsbestinterests:

Event

Post Request for Submissions

Submissionsdue

Dateforfinalselection

__Date

May 31,2024

June21,2024

July5,2024

Initial estimated hours and fee will be due from chosen consultants two weeks after
notification, with any revisions due one week from notification.



OTO POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.

This RFQ does not commit OTO to select a firm/consultant or to pay any costs incurred in the

preparation ormailingofthe submittal. Afailuretoaward acontractwillnotresultina causefor
actlon agalnsttheOTO.

OTO reserves  e right to the following:
1. To waive minor deficiencies and informalities;
2. Toacceptorrejectanyorallsubmissions received asa resultofthe RFQ;
3. To obtain information concerning any or all proposers from any source;
4. Torequestanoralinterviewfrom anyorallproposers.
5. Iftheselectedfirm/consultantundergoesa changeofkeypersonnel.OTO

reservesthe righttoapproveanysubstitute personnelorterminatetheservices
at OTO sole discretion.

6. To seek new submissions when such a procedure is reasonable and in the best
interests of OTO. OTOcomplieswith FederalContractingRequirements.

Alistofapplicablacontract languagecanbefoundontheOTOwebsite:

https:,'7media.ozarkstransportation.or2/documents,TederalIv-Reauired-Contract-Clauses.pdf

The OTO follows FHWApurchasingguidelines and does notpay retainers orin advance of
completed deliverables.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Goal Determination: These Federal Aid projects each
have a DBE Goal. Please see the attached sheet of project information.

ILSJJBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS

FORMATOFSUBMISSIONS. InorderfortheOTOtoadequatelycomparestatementsof

qualifications (SOQ) and evaluate them uniformly and objectively, all SOQs shall be submitted in
accordance with the format outlined above. The SOQ should be prepared simply and economically,

providing straight-forward and concise information as requested.

It is required that your firm be prequalified with MoDOT and listed in MoDOT's Approved Consultant
Prequalification List, or your firm will be considered non-responsive.

You must include the E-Verify MOU & Affidavit of Compliance. These attachments are not included
in the overall page count.

RFQ DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS. Any submittals received after the above stated time and date will
not be considered. It shall be the sole responsibility of the proposer to have their RFQ received by
the OTO on or before the due date and time indicated. Qualitication submittals shall be emailed
and accepted if the signed qualification cover form and required information is received prior to the
duedate andtime.

Submissions should be marked in the subject line:



"REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS: #2024-1

Proposals submltted by e-mail are not to be considered received untll a confirmation has been sent
bytheOTO. TheconfirmationsubjectlinewiUread/'Confirmation ReceIpt-OTO RFQ 2024-1." Itis
theresponsibilityofallproposerstoverifyreceiptofsubmittals. Allsubmittalsmustbevalidfora
minimum period of ninety (90) days from the close of this RFQ.

AMENDMENTS. If it becomes necessary to revise or amend any part of this Request for

Qualifications, OTOwillfurnishtherevision bynoticeontheOTOwebslte
www.ozarkstransportation.org, notlaterthanfive (5)dayspriortothedate setforreceiptof
submissions.

III.PROJECTSCOPE

STATEMENTOFSCOPE. It is expected thatthe selected firm(s)/consultant(s) will perform the
followingservices:

Task 1: Preliminary Engineering and Design

Activities necessary to complete the environmental document (including FHWA
concurrence and approval), conduct public involvement, complete preliminary design, and

coordination with utilities.

This work will include, but is not limited to the following activities:

• Respond to MoDOT Environmental requests for information and finalize the MoDOT

Request for Environmental Review.
o OTOisassumlngthatallprojectswillrequireaSection 106report

• Perform initial surveys, soit investigations, etc. as needed for preliminary design.
• DeterminetheUmits oftheproject.
• Holda meetingwith OTOandotherstakeholderstodiscussalternativesfor

preliminarydesign preparation.
» Preparepreliminarydesign plans.
• Prepare an initial opinlon of construction costs based on prsliminary design to

discuss budget and make modificatlons as needed.
• Prepare utility location and conflict plans.

Thistaskwillbe considered completeupon receivingenvironmentalapprovalfrom FHWA

and MoDOT, and OTO approval of all deliverables.

Task2: FinalDesign

Design activities to prepare final construction plans, specifications, and estimates; further

coordination with and execution of contracts with utilities for adjustments and relocations

per the conflict plans; preparation of right of way plans and final right of way acquisition if

needed; preparation offinalmitigation plansandsubmittatofappropriatepermits.



This work will include, but is not limited to the following activities:

• Engineering, geotechnicalservicesand surveyingactivitiesnecessarytoprepare
final design plans, specifications, and estimates (PS&E). The PS&E will consist of,
but not be timited to the following:

o Typical Sections, Horizontal and vertical alignments, Trail Cross sections,
Drainage/Structure Details, Erosion Control Plans, Stabilization Plan, Traffic
Control Plans, Construction Details, Quantities, Signing/Marking Plan.

o The PS&Ewillincludeallapplicableltemsshowninthe Missouri
Department of Transportation, Locat Public Agency- Final PS&E Submittal
Checklist-136.9.1

• Assoclated permltting/compliance, includinganycoordinatlonwith permitting
agencies to obtain permits.

• Preparation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan.
• Preparation of bid and contract documents and receive approvals as applicable.
• AssistingtheOTOinadvertising, biddingandcontractaward.
• Attend any pre-bid meetings and be avajlable for questions and clarifications prior

tothe bidopening,

This task will be considered comptete upon delivery and approval of final construction

plans, specifications, estimates, certifications and permits, and upon MoDOT and OTO
approval of all deliverables.

TIMELINECONSIDERATIONS. The following dates represent kev milestones forthe project:

• July5,2024-ConsultantSelected
• August2,2024-ContractSigned
• Januaryl, 2025-Preliminary/ROW PlansCompleted, includingRERclearance
« May 30th, 2025-FinalPS&EpacKage

DELIVERABLES. The consultant will have providBd the following deliverables at the conclusion of
theproject:

Tflsia;

Surveydata

Project Llmits
Conceptual Plans for Alternatives to consider. including cost comparisons

Eiaa.lized MoDQTRequestffijLEnvironmental Review
Preliminary design plans (including ROW and Utilities Plan sheets)



• Engin_aeris_e.stim.ate .o.Lprobable construction cost and any_sp_[e.a.dshflets,.han(l

salc.ulat.iQa.s, notes. or other supportins information.
* Required Permits
* Meeting Minutes and Materials

TaskA

* Final Plans. Specifications and Estimate fPS&E)
• Bid Documents

UAADDITIQNALJNRORMATIQN

PROJECTCONTACT. Duringthe project.the main OTO contactswillbe:

Jen Thomas. Project Manager

Sara Fields. Executive Director

OTO reserves the right to conduct pre-award discussions with any or all responsive and responsible

proposers who submit submissions determined to be reasonably acceptable of being selected for
award. Proposers shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any opportunityfor
discussion and revision of submissions; and such revisions may be permitted after submlssion of

qualificationsand priortoaward.

SUBMISSIONS EVALUATION PROCESS. OTO will evaluate each submittal for full compliance with
the RFQ instructions to the proposer. The objective of the evaluation will be to recommend the
most qualified firm/consultant who is most responsive to the herein described needs of OTO.
Submissionswhichareresponsivetothis RFQwillbefurtherevaluated based on, butnotlimitedto
the following criteria:

CRITERIA AND MAXIMUM POINTS

ProposedTimeline

Capacity and Capability

Experience and Technical Competence

ProjectApproach

Past Record of Performance

TOTAL

10

25

25

15

_25

100

Max Points

Max Points

Max Points

MaxPoints

Max Points

Max Points



PUBLIC RECORDS. All proposals submitted in response to this RFQ become the property of OTO
and public records and, as such, may be subject to public review after the final firm/consultant is
selected.

OTO RIGHTS AND RESERVATIONS

OTO reserves all rights (which rights shall be exercisable by OTO at its sole discretion) available to it
underapplicablelaw, includingwithoutlimitation,thefoUowingwithorwithoutcauseandwithor
without notice:

• Ths righttonegotiateallelements.which comprlsetheRFQ, andtoacceptorrejectpartor
allofanyRFQ.

• The rightto revise, modify, cancel, withdraw, postpone or extend RFQ.
• The right to waive deficiencies andirregularities inan RFQandacceptandreviewa non-

conformlngRFQ.
• The right to seek or obtain data and informatlon from any source that has the potential to

improve the understanding and evaluation of the RFQs.
• The rlght to use asslstance o( consultants In the evaluation process.
• The right to seek clarifjcations from any Proposer to fully understand information provided

inthe RFQ.Therighttoconductan independentinvestigationofanyinformation, including

prior experience identified in an RFQ by contacting project references, accessing pubtic
jnformation, contacting independent parties or any other means.

• The right to reject any or all proposals.

QUESTIONS REGARDING SPECIFICATIONS OR SUBMISSIONS PROCESS.

Anyquestions relativetointerpretationofthis RFQshallbeaddressedtoJenThomas jn ampletime
before the period set for the receipt and opening of submissions. Any interpretation made to

prospective proposers wiU be expressed in the form of an amendment to the RFQ which, if issued,
will be conveyed to all prospective proposers not later than five (5) days prior to the date set for
receipt of submissions via the OTO website, www.ozarkstransportation.org.

It will be the responsibility of the proposer to contact OTO prior to submitting a proposal to
ascertain if any amendments have been issued, to obtain all such amendments, and to
acknowledge amendment with the submissions.

TITLEVINOTIFICATION

The Ozarks Transportation Organization, in accordance with the provisions ofthe Title V! ofthe Civii
Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all
bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement,
disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response
to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in
consideration for an award."



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 8 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM II.F. 

Memorandum of Agreement 
Nicholas and Tracker Intersection Project Management 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

AGENDA DESCRIPTION:  

Christian County intends to begin a construction project for operational improvements at Nicholas and 
Tracker Intersection in Christian County.  The Ozarks Transportation Organization (OTO) has previously 
programmed Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG-Urban) funds in the Transportation 
Improvement Program for this project.  

The OTO would like to enter into Memorandum of Agreement with Christian County to provide 
administrative engineering services for the construction project.  The OTO will assist with the selection 
of a qualified engineering services consultant to oversee the construction contract according to the 
applicable plans and specifications. OTO will oversee the engineering services provided by the selected 
consultant up to the advertisement for construction bids.  OTO staff will assist Christian County with 
invoice management for reimbursement through MoDOT. 

The OTO will not charge Christian County for these services.  OTO engineering and administrative staff 
time will be utilized to complete the administrative oversight and invoicing. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
That a member of the Board of Directors makes one of the following motions: 

“Move the Board of Directors authorize the Executive Director enter into a Memorandum of 
Agreement with Christian County to provide Engineering Services Administration for the Nicholas and 
Tracker Intersection Project.” 

OR 

“Move the Board of Directors direct the Executive Director to…” 



PAGE 1 OF 4 Nicholas and Tracker Project Memorandum of Agreement 
 

Christian County 
1106 W Jackson St 
Ozark, MO  65721 

Attn: Miranda Beadles, P.E. 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
2208 W Chesterfield Blvd., Suite 101 

Springfield, MO 65807 
Attn: Sara Fields, Executive Director. 

 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

FOR 
Nicholas and Tracker Project Management 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into upon its execution by both parties as set forth 

below, with the Effective Date corresponding with the last signature to this Agreement. 
 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Ozarks Transportation Organization (“OTO”) has programmed federal 
Surface Transportation Block Grant Urban (STBG-Urban) funds in the Ozarks 
Transportation Organization Transportation Improvement; and 

WHEREAS Christian County (“County”) is wanting to construct operational 
improvements at Nicholas and Tracker Intersection in Christian County, (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS the OTO has proposed a partnership with the County to provide project 

administration for the Project 

WHEREAS the OTO desires to provide these services for no fee to the County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in exchange for valuable consideration each received from the other 
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby agree as 
follows: 

 
Scope of Services 
1. OTO Engineering Services Administration Responsibilities 

a. Project Administration. OTO shall, at its sole cost and expense, act as the project 
administrator. OTO’s project administration assistance includes the following: 

i. Prepare and manage, at the direction of the County, the initial 
programming data form completions and submittal; and  

ii. In cooperation with the County and in compliance with the County’s 
procurement process, select a consultant for Engineering Services 
consistent with the County’s procurement policy and federal grant 
requirements; and 

iii. Provide copies of all procurement practices and documentation of costs 
to the County; and 



PAGE 2 OF 4 Nicholas and Tracker Project Memorandum of Agreement 
 

iv. With County assistance, prepare the engineering services scope, with the 
intersection improvement specifications and scope subject to the input and 
final approval of the County’s staff; and 

v. Assist the County in preparing the MoDOT Local Public Agency Contract 
for Engineering Services; and 

vi. Oversee the engineering services provided by the selected consultant up 
to the advertisement for construction bids, and report to the County on 
the status of such services; and 

vii. Oversee the consultant invoicing process to make recommendations to 
the County for payment of the consultant of these invoices; and 

viii. Prepare and submit grant payment requests to MoDOT with the 
assistance of County staff.  
 

2. Christian County Responsibilities 
a. Construction Costs.  The County shall be responsible for all right-of-way, 

engineering and construction cost associated with the Project.  It is explicitly 
understood by both parties that the services provided in this Memorandum of 
Agreement are only for project administration services provided by OTO 
personnel.  

b. The County shall assist with the development of engineering services and 
construction project scope; and 

c. The County shall participate in regular meetings to ensure project is performed 
per the terms and conditions of the STBG (Urban) funding award; and 

d. The County shall provide data and staffing support as necessary for the OTO to 
perform the OTO Engineering Services Administration. 

 
1. Term. OTO shall commence project management as soon as practicable after the execution 

of this Agreement, unless otherwise directed in writing by the County. 

The project administration services provided by OTO will be considered complete upon bid 
award, and upon the County’s satisfaction with the outlined deliverables. 

 
2. Liability and Indemnity. In no event shall the OTO be liable to the County for special, 

indirect, or consequential damages, except those caused by the OTO's, or its agent’s or 
official’s gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct. In no event shall the County be 
liable to the OTO for special, indirect, or consequential damages, except those caused by 
the County’s, or its agent’s or official’s gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct. 

3. Conflicts. No salaried officer or employee of the County or OTO and no member of the 
County or OTO Board shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. A 
violation of this provision renders the Agreement void. Any applicable federal regulations 
and applicable provisions in Section 105.450 et seq. RSMo. shall not be violated. OTO 
covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or 



PAGE 3 OF 4 Nicholas and Tracker Project Memorandum of Agreement 
 

indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services to 
be performed under this Agreement. OTO further covenants that in the performance of this 
Agreement no person having such interest shall be employed or compensated by OTO. 

 
4. Termination for Convenience. Subject to the rights of the County, as set out in this 

Agreement, the OTO or the County, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in 
whole or in part, when it is in the County's or OTO’s interest. If this contract is 
terminated, the OTO shall be liable only for service deliverables of this contract rendered 
before the effective date of termination. The County, by written notice, may terminate 
this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the County’s interest. 

 
5. Compliance with Laws. OTO agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 

laws or rules and regulations applicable to the provision of services and products  
hereunder. OTO affirmatively states that payment of all local, state, and federal taxes and 
assessments owed by the OTO is current. 

6. Jurisdiction. This Agreement and every question arising hereunder shall be construed or 
determined according to the laws of the State of Missouri. Should any part of this 
Agreement be litigated, venue shall be proper only in the Circuit Court of Greene County, 
Missouri. 

 
7. Title VI. The sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, transferee, and assignee 

shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits recipients of 
federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying benefits of, 
or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national origin 
(42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 
regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of 
this contract (or agreement). Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited 
English Proficiency” in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 
U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 
regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this 
contract or agreement. 

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties. No 
modification, amendment, or waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
effective unless in writing specifically referring hereto and signed by both parties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PAGE 4 OF 4 Nicholas and Tracker Project Memorandum of Agreement 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals on the day and 
year provided below. 

 
OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION 

DATED: ____________                   ________________________________________________ 
                                                                    Sara Fields, Executive Director 

                                                                                  
CHRISTIAN COUNTY 
        
DATED:  _________________  _________________________________     
  Lynn Morris, Presiding Commissioner 
 
DATED:  _________________  _________________________________ 
     Johnny Williams, Western Commissioner 
 
DATED:  _________________  __________________________________                                                     
     Bradley A. Jackson, Eastern Commissioner 
 
 
Attested By: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Paula Brumfield, Christian County Clerk 
 
 
Auditor Certification: 
 
I certify that the expenditure contemplated by this document is within the purpose of the appropriation to which it is to be charged and that 
there is an unencumbered balance of anticipated revenue appropriated for payment of same. 
 
_________________________ 
Amy Dent, Christian County Auditor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
N. Austin Fax, Attorney at Law 
901 St. Louis Street 20th Floor 
Springfield, MO 65806 
Phone: 417-866-7777 
Fax: 417-866-1752



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 9 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM II.G. 
 

Chesterfield Lofts Lease Renewal  
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION: 
The OTO relocated to the current location in Chesterfield Village in 2016. At the time, OTO entered a 
five-year lease with two five-year lease renewal options. Each renewal includes a one-time five percent 
increase in rent that is fixed for the term of the lease. The OTO chose to renew the lease in October 
2020 for the first five-year lease option.  This first five-year lease option is expiring March 2026. 

The OTO has chosen not to renew for the second five-year lease period. The OTO has outgrown the 
current Chesterfield Location.  The OTO is proposing to extend the lease for one year to give staff time 
to find a new location and contract for any remodeling or infill needed to make the space work for the 
OTO’s purposes.  The current lease is $4,505.00 per month.  The one-year lease extension will increase 
the rent to $4,730 per month.   

The current space includes a large conference room, five offices, a small conference area, copy area and 
front desk reception area. OTO currently has seven employees and is in the process of hiring two 
additional part-time employees. 

In addition, OTO is funded by the federal transportation bill known as the Infrastructure Investment and 
Jobs Act (IIJA). The IIJA expires in September 2026, and a draft bill has yet to be released. While the need 
for increased space is not anticipated to change, staff would like to have an idea of anticipated funding 
prior to committing to a larger long-term lease or a purchase. A draft bill is expected this Spring.  

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTION TAKEN: 
The Executive Committee recommended a one-year lease extension at its regularly scheduled meeting 
on December 10, 2025. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 
A member of the Board of Directors is requested to make one of the following motions: 
 
“Move to authorize the Executive Director to enter into a one-year lease renewal option for office space 
in the Chesterfield Lofts building.” 
 
OR 
 
“Move to…” 
 
 

 



1st AMENDMENT TO LEASE 
 

 This amendment made and entered into this _____ day of _______, 2025, by and 
between Chesterfield Lofts Springfield, LLC, of Greene County, Missouri (“Lessor”) 
and Ozarks Transportation Organization (“Lessee”). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

 For and in consideration of the covenants, conditions, agreements, and 
stipulations hereinafter expressed, it is hereby expressly understood and agreed by and 
between the parties hereto that the lease dated October 12th, 2015, between Lessor and 
Lessee, incorporated herein by reference, be and the same is hereby changed and 
amended in the following particulars, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
in the lease, to wit: 
 

ARTICLE 1:  PREMISES 
 
 1.1  DESCRIPTION:  A space consisting of approximately 3,432 square feet, 
located at 2208 W. Chesterfield Blvd, Suite 101 and 103, Springfield, Missouri, 65807 
and comprising 29.75% of the total lease-able space (11,537 square feet.) 

 
ARTICLE 2: TERM 

 
2.1  AMENDED TERM: The first lease renewal option commencing on April 1st, 

2020 and ending March 29th, 2026 shall be amended to commencing for One (1) year 
beginning April 1st, 2026 and ending March 31st, 2027. Tenant hereby expressly waives 
and relinquishes its right to exercise the second renewal option for an additional five (5) 
year term. In lieu of that second renewal option, Landlord and Tenant agree that the 
Lease shall be extended for one (1) year term. 

 
ARTICLE 3:  RENT AND OTHER TENANT CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
3.1  MINIMUM RENT: Tenant shall pay to Landlord as minimum rent Four 

Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty Dollars and Zero Cents ($4,730.00) or $16.54 per 
square foot per month beginning April 1st, 2026. 
  

COUNTERPARTS, FACSIMILE SIGNATURES, AND ELECTRONIC 
SIGNATURES: The parties may execute this Lease in one or more counterparts, each of 
which will be deemed an original, and all of which together will constitute one and the 
same instrument. The parties may execute this Lease via facsimile, and such facsimile 
signatures shall be deemed to be originals for all purposes. In addition to facsimile 
signatures, this Lease may be executed by either or both parties in accordance with the 
applicable version of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (“UETA”) and the 
Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act (“ESIGN”). Both parties 
hereto agree to conduct transactions by electronic means and hereby affirmatively 



consent to use electronic records to memorialize and execute this Lease and any 
alterations thereto. 
  

Except as herein modified, the terms and conditions of the original lease are 
hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects. 
 
LESSEE     LESSOR 
Ozarks Transportation Organization Chesterfield Lofts Springfield, LLC 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
By: Sara Fields, Director   Karen Cowan, Agent 

The Wooten Company, L.L.C. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 10 

  



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 01/15/2026; ITEM I.B. 
 

Public Comment 
 

Ozarks Transportation Organization 
(Springfield, MO Area MPO) 

 
AGENDA DESCRIPTION: 
 
Under Tab 10 of the agenda packet, for Board member review, are Public Comments for the time frame 
between November 20, 2025 and January 7, 2026. Any additional public comment received by January 
14, 2026 will be shared before the meeting. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
This item is informational only, no action is required. 



 

 

 

Area of concern:  Kansas Expressway near Republic Road 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  11/20/2025  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Wade    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 

Patron had two comments 
Comment #1: 

Some of the lines need to be moved or a little bit widened cuz traffic backs up 
with lots of traffic cuz I can't go left cuz they're trying to go straight for these new 
Kansas expressway looks like there's some room to keep the two right turning 
lines 

Comment #2: 

It needs to be widen or the lanes need to be changed a little bit cuz I've seen 
where traffic backs up people going trying to go straight. People want to turn left 
and they cannot because the cars are blocking them 

 
Map 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway J and James River Road 
 

City/County of concern:  Ozark/Christian County 
 

Date received:  11/20/2025  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Stuart C Johnson    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 
 

Comment: 

Change to Solid left turn signal onto W James River Road to a Blinking yellow  
 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Route 66 Trail 
 

City/County of concern:  Strafford/Greene County 
 

Date received:  11/25/2025     Received through:  Email 
 

Contact Name: Jessica Shelton   Contact Email/Ph #:  jetchie78@gmail.com 
 

 
Comment: 

I live in Strafford and I’m very excited for the prospect of this trail. I was just wondering 
what had happened since the information available on the OTO website about the 
concept study and public meetings. Is there a date to start? I live on Pine Street and ran 
into a surveyor a few weeks ago who said he was there representing Ozark Greenways 
or something having to do with the greenway trail (I don’t remember his exact wording), 
and I was hopeful that that meant that the project would be underway soon. 
 
Any information you could provide would be great. I am just curious and excited about 
this trail!  
 
Thank you. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OTO Response:   
I am glad to hear of your support for the trail.  We have begun the design process on the trail 
from Transland to Washington Avenue. We have yet to secure funding for the acquisition of 
easements or the construction. However, we do like to have projects ready to go in the event 
funds do become available. There is no start date planned. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

Area of concern:  Kansas Expressway between JRF and Republic Road 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  11/27/2025  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Allen    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 
 

Reply Comment: 

How about putting a roundabout on each end of the section? Combine the 
diversion diamond with a roundabout besides have to winding it. I think there's a 
room just to put a roundabout 
 

Previous Comment from different Patron: 

It needs to be widen or the lanes need to be changed a little bit cuz I've seen 
where traffic backs up people going trying to go straight. People want to turn left 
and they cannot because the cars are blocking them 
 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

Area of concern:  Kansas Expressway and Chesterfield Blvd 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  11/27/2025  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Allen    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 
 

Reply Comment: 

Why can't the slight be changed to a roundabout? Make safer of walking traffic 
flow better 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway 160 
 

City/County of concern:  Nixa/Christian County 
 

Date received:  11/18/2025     Received through:  Email 
 

Contact Name: Sheryl Thomas   Contact Email/Ph #:  Sherylt1980@gmail.com 
 

 
Comment: 

Traffic gets backed up going south on 160 due to lake traffic 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OTO Response:   
Thank you for this information.  Public input is vital to the planning process.  This will be shared 
with our Technical Planning Committee and Board of Directors.  We appreciate you reaching 
out. 
 
Have a wonderful week! 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Passenger Rail  
 

City/County of concern:  OTO MPO Area 
 

Date received:  11/19/2025     Received through:  Email 
 

Contact Name: David Riddle           Contact Email/Ph #:  dwriddle50@gmail.com 
 

 
Comment: 

The 2024 Federal Railroad Administration Long-Distance Service Study identified as its 
highest priority a possible rail passenger route including Springfield in a Dallas-New 
York City route. For long-range planning, any OTO studies/plans need to mention the 
possibility of that route. 
Service at or near the Springfield airport could conveniently support a future 
Springfield stop. Other possible stop cities and mentioned in the study include 
Oklahoma City, Tulsa, Springfield, St. Louis, Indianapolis, Columbus, Pittsburg, 
Philadelphia, and New York City. The route --with part of it through Springfield --could 
shift 70 million vehicle miles to rail and avoid 149 vehicle crashes, along the whole 
route, of course. 
OTO needs to include mention of that possible rail route in any of its long-range studies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OTO Response:   
Thank you for this information.  Public input is vital to the planning process.  This will be shared 
with our Technical Planning Committee and Board of Directors.  We appreciate you reaching 
out. 
 
Have a wonderful week! 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Highway 160 and Rosedale Road 
 

City/County of concern:  Nixa/Christian County 
 

Date received:  09/16/2025     Received through:  Email 
 

Contact Name: Pam Bowen           Contact Email/Ph #: pamkbowen@aol.com 
 

 
Comment: 

I would like to see a signal placed at this intersection. The traffic has increased 
dramatically in the past year or so and it is difficult to access 160 coming from Rosedale 
Road. Please don't consider a roundabout at this intersection. They tried this on the 
freeways in rural Phoenix area and it backed up traffic something terrible and they 
ended up removing them. That's an expensive experiment. At busy times I will take 
Gregg Rd to access 160 at a different intersection but once all the apartments being 
built on Gregg are occupied that road will be congested too. I heard that a signal wasn't 
feasible because of the high speed on the road but it seems to work farther south at 
Highlandville. Also, the speed could be slower coming off South Street through the 
Rosedale intersection. I understand transportation dollars are scarce but safety is 
important too. Adding the turn lane there has certainly helped and it is appreciated. 
Thank you for allowing me to express my concerns.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OTO Response:   
Thank you for this information.  Public input is vital to the planning process.  This will be shared 
with our Technical Planning Committee and Board of Directors.  We appreciate you reaching 
out. 
 
Have a wonderful week! 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  State Highway MM and Farm Road 140 
 

City/County of concern:  Greene County 
 

Date received:  12/08/2025  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Andy Simmons    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 

Comment: 

This intersection needs improvement. There are many houses being built near 
Haseltine & FR 140. This will only add to the congestion & increase the danger. 
I've been told that Republic & the state are working to widen MM from Amazon to 
FR140. FR 140 to I-44 is not part of the plan. Is that correct? Again, improving this 
intersection needs to be a priority.  
 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Norton Road between Fort and Grant Ave 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  12/30/2025  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Taylor    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 

Comment: 

Includes the intersections of Broadway and Grant. Traffic is severely impacted 
during large events at the fairgrounds. Not to mention there is a significant 
amount of pedestrian activity, especially during events, and a lot of high traffic 
speeds. The fairgrounds also draw in a huge number of out-of-town visitors, and 
the entire area could use a facelift. Springfield does not put it's best foot forward 
with the area around the fairgrounds. It could be much safer and much more 
appealing. 

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

Area of concern:  Broadway between Norton and Kearney 
 

City/County of concern:  Springfield/Greene County 
 

Date received:  12/30/2025  Received through:  Map-A-Concern (OTO website) 
 

Contact Name:  Taylor    Contact Email/Ph #:  N/A 
 

Comment: 

People use Broadway Ave as a cut-through to and from Hwy 13 and Kearney or 
they are trying to bypass the I-44 interchange. There is a lot of pedestrian activity 
on this street, but drivers frequently speed through because it's just a long 
straightaway.  

Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OTO Response:  Unable to respond through the Map-A-Concern feature 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 

 

 

 

 

TAB 11 

  



December 19, 2025

The U.S. Department of Transportation recently issued a notice of funding opportunity or NOFO that makes
$1.5 billion of fiscal year 2026 funding available through the agency’s Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage
Development or BUILD program to support infrastructure projects across the country.  
[Above photo by AASHTO]
The grant application deadline from this round of funding from the BUILD program – originally established
under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 – is February 24, 2026.
USDOT noted in a statement that, as of July, the program has awarded more than $18 billion in 18 rounds of
funding to local governments, tribes, transit and port authorities, states, and other entities.  
The agency noted that the evaluation criteria for BUILD grants will focus on increasing safety measures and
expanding transportation options for American families, as well as projects that:  

Beautify transportation infrastructure with context-appropriate design that enhances user experience
while maintaining safety and operational efficiency; 

USDOT Makes $1.5B Worth of BUILD Grants Available
1/7/26, 3:44 PM AASHTO Journal - USDOT Makes $1.5B Worth of BUILD Grants Available

https://aashtojournal.transportation.org/usdot-makes-1-5b-worth-of-build-grants-available/ 1/3

https://www.grants.gov/search-results-detail/360921
https://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants/NOFO
https://www.transportation.gov/briefing-room/trumps-transportation-secretary-sean-p-duffy-announces-15-billion-infrastructure


Improve roadway capacity and make transportation more affordable; 
Improve the travel experience for families through dedicated facilities for mothers, accessibility for those
with disabilities, intuitive design elements, clear signage, intuitive layouts, and predictable operations for
caregivers; 
Facilitate tourism; or
Support U.S. energy dominance. 

In mid-July, USDOT issued $488 million in BUILD grants to 30 infrastructure projects across the country – nine
of them overseen by state departments of transportation.
The USDOT said at the time that road and bridge projects received 77 percent of those BUILD grants, with 10
percent awarded to transit upgrades to deliver safe, reliable, and accessible commuter networks.  
Waterway projects received more than $35 million primarily for port improvements, with nearly $3 million in
grants supporting rail networks to enhance multimodal surface transportation.  
USDOT also noted that, for that particular round of BUILD grants, funding was evenly distributed between
urban and rural communities, with each receiving $244 million in awards.

1/7/26, 3:44 PM AASHTO Journal - USDOT Makes $1.5B Worth of BUILD Grants Available

https://aashtojournal.transportation.org/usdot-makes-1-5b-worth-of-build-grants-available/ 2/3

https://aashtojournal.transportation.org/usdot-issues-488m-in-build-grants-to-30-projects/


Lead Applicant Project Name Project Description
Total Federal 

Funding 
Total Project 

Cost
City of Springfield South Campbell Avenue 

Priority Corridor
This award will be used by the City of Springfield, Missouri to implement safety 
and operations improvements along the South Campbell Avenue Priority Corridor 
on 3 high-injury network segments. Across the three segmens, work includes 
adding travel lanes, installing a roundabout or signal protected left turn lanes, 
raised medians, updating access management, and sidewalk improvements. The 
project also includes replacing a deteriorated pedestrian bridge from Westview 
and Primrose to Republic Road. The corridor carries up to 40,000 vehicles per day 
and analyses found 18 fatal or serious injury crashes occurred on the project 
segments, plus a large number of near-misses. Treatments align with FHWA’s 
Proven Safety Countermeasures and are expected to reduce right-angle, rear-
end, and head-on crashes, improve peak-period operations, and enhance safety 
for pedestrians and other vulnerable users. Improvements will connect 2024 
upgrades at Republic Road to the planned Walnut Lawn project, advancing Vision 
Zero and the Safe System Approach.

$13,840,000.00 $17,300,000.00



Missouri lawmakers consider raising
interstate speed limit to 75 mph

By Emma McDaris
Published: Jan. 2, 2026 at 9:17 PM CST

SPRINGFIELD, Mo. (KY3) - Two Missouri lawmakers have pre-filed bills that would raise the interstate
speed limit from 70 to 75 mph, drawing concerns from truck drivers and road safety officials.

House Bill 2583, pre-filed by Christian County Representative Bob Titus, would study how a 75 mph
speed limit would affect Missouri interstates. Senator Jamie Burger also pre-filed Senate Bill 1408,
which would increase the interstate speed limit to 75 mph once passed.

The increase would impact daily traffic and require truck drivers to adjust, with many companies
already setting personal speed limits below the current 70 mph.

James Pruitt, who drove cross-country for 47 years, said he is concerned about raising the speed
limit.

1/7/26, 3:57 PM Missouri lawmakers consider raising interstate speed limit to 75 mph

https://www.ky3.com/2026/01/03/missouri-lawmakers-consider-raising-interstate-speed-limit-75-mph/ 1/2

https://www.ky3.com/authors/emcdaris%40ky3.com/


“From Joplin to here, or just a little further east, it’s bad. I think raising the speed limit would be a
bad thing. Especially for trucks,” Pruitt said.

Corporal Ralicia Tyler from the Missouri State Highway Patrol Troop I said increased speeds can cause
more accidents.

“The magnitude of crashes increase by speed. Speed limit currently is 70. If you’re going 75, that
increases the chances of you being in a crash, the severity of the crash. Think of not just yourself, but
think of everyone else. Think of your loved ones at home, that if you don’t come home, what’s going
to happen to them?” Tyler said.

Tyler said drivers must follow whatever speed limit is posted.

“What speed can I go? Well, you can go the speed limit. The speed limit’s 70 for a reason. There’s no
leniency, per se. I mean, the speed limit is the speed limit. So, you can get stopped for one mile an
hour over,” Tyler said.

The bills are not on the calendar yet. The Missouri legislature will have its first day in session on
Wednesday, Jan. 7.

To report a correction or typo, please email digitalnews@ky3.com. Please include the article info in the
subject line of the email.

Copyright 2026 KY3. All rights reserved.

1/7/26, 3:57 PM Missouri lawmakers consider raising interstate speed limit to 75 mph

https://www.ky3.com/2026/01/03/missouri-lawmakers-consider-raising-interstate-speed-limit-75-mph/ 2/2

mailto:digitalnews@ky3.com


2025 Missouri road fatalities decrease from
2024, continuing four-year declining trend

Capt. Scott White with Missouri State Highway Patrol said 906 people died on Missouri roads in 2025. That’s
down from 955 the year before.

By Dylan Smith
Published: Jan. 2, 2026 at 2:55 PM CST

MISSOURI (WGEM) - Preliminary numbers indicate that a three year downward trend of road
fatalities continued to a fourth year in 2025.

Capt. Scott White with Missouri State Highway Patrol said 906 people died on Missouri roads in
2025. That’s down from 955 the year before.

“It may be less than 2024, but you have to remember that that’s a lot of families,” White said.

According to the Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT), there were 1,057 deaths in 2022,
followed by a steady decline in 2023 with 991 fatalities and 955 in 2024.

1/7/26, 3:53 PM 2025 Missouri road fatalities decrease from 2024, continuing four-year declining trend

https://www.wgem.com/2026/01/02/2025-missouri-road-fatalities-decrease-2024-continuing-four-year-declining-trend/ 1/2

https://www.wgem.com/authors/Dylan.Smith/


At the tail end of 2025, MoDOT officials warned the public that fatalities were on pace to surpass the
2024 mark. The announcement came after the launch of MoDOT’s 9th annual Buckle Up Phone Down
campaign.

“I can’t tell you where or who, but two a day every day on average lose their lives on our highway
system,” MoDOT Deputy Director and Chief Engineer Eric Schroeter said during a press conference.

Year after year, the leading cause of fatal crashes stems from simply being distracted.

White said the number one thing people can do to increase safety happens before the car even
starts, as over half of those who died on Missouri roads weren’t buckled.

“That’s a huge number when you think about it,” White said. “We talk to folks and let them know this
number that if you had a 56% chance of doing anything, you would definitely want to do that.”

MSHP reports 258 crashes happened during the Christmas holiday counting period, which spanned
from December 24, through 11:59 p.m. December 28. There were 10 fatalities, 94 injuries, and 93
DWI arrests.

The New Years counting period goes through Sunday, Jan. 4.

Copyright 2026 WGEM. All rights reserved.

1/7/26, 3:53 PM 2025 Missouri road fatalities decrease from 2024, continuing four-year declining trend

https://www.wgem.com/2026/01/02/2025-missouri-road-fatalities-decrease-2024-continuing-four-year-declining-trend/ 2/2



The House this week passed the second permitting bill in as many

weeks, again on a largely partisan basis. The SPEED Act (text here),

introduced by Representatives Bruce Westerman (R-AR) and Jared

Golden (D-ME), largely makes changes to the National

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) consistent with recent Supreme

Court rulings and Trump Administration regulations. The bill

passed on a vote of 221 to 196, with 11 Democrats supporting

passage and one Republican opposing. 

REBECCA HIGGINSDECEMBER 19, 2025 |

 Articles  Week of December 15, 2025 

House Passes SPEED Act, Sharpening Permitting Divide

House Passes SPEED Act, Sharpening Permitting
Divide

Environment

https://www.congress.gov/119/bills/hr4776/BILLS-119hr4776eh.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/votes/house/119-1/356
https://enotrans.org/article-tags/environment/
https://enotrans.org/article/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/
https://enotrans.org/


The bill as reported out of the House Natural Resources

Committee adopted an energy-source-neutral approach, so that

while the changes to consideration of indirect effects might still

weaken consideration of climate change, the bill would still have

benefitted clean energy project similarly to fossil fuel projects.

Nonetheless the vote out of committee was still largely partisan,

with only two Democrats joining the Republicans to support

favorably reporting the bill. HNR Ranking Member Jarden Huffman

wrote in his dissenting views that he strongly opposed the bill, not

only for “narrow[ing] the quality of environmental analysis and

public input… [and] making it harder to challenge unlawful

decisions and easier for polluters to advance harmful projects” but

also because it failed to provide meaningful permitting certainty

for clean energy project. “Amendments added in hopes of ensuring

previously enacted permits cannot later be revoked will still not

make a meaningful difference for clean energy deployment in the

first place, and do not help projects that have already had permits

overturned by this administration.”  

Yet even so the bill faced a rebellion of Republican conservatives

that threatened to tank the overall bill on the basis of it having any

benefit for wind and renewable energy. The House Rules

Committee made several amendments in order that would

block applicability to offshore wind approvals and allow the Trump

Administration additional time to overturn Biden-era approvals for

clean energy projects.  

These changes enabled the bill to overcome the

conservative opposition to the bill’s potential to “fast-track any of

the wind and solar” according to Representative Chip Roy (R-TX),

who led the rebellion along with offshore wind

opponent Jeff VanDrew (R-NJ). On the other hand, the changes

meant the bill lost the support of American Clean Power, who said

that the “partisan amendments” made in order by the Rules

Committee “fundamentally changed legislation that represented

genuine bipartisan progress.” This newly more partisan

bill represents the House’s opening bid to the Senate, along with

last week’s PERMIT Act.  

Substantive Changes to NEPA 

https://www.congress.gov/committee-report/119th-congress/house-report/395/1?outputFormat=pdf
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/?issueg_pdf=true&issueg=895
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-8-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-8-2025/
https://enotrans.org/?issueg_pdf=true&issueg=894
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-8-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-8-2025/
https://enotrans.org/article-tags/environment/


The SPEED Act includes certain striking changes that would

significantly alter the implementation of NEPA. One such change

that will be relevant for transportation projects: the bill changes

the definition of a major federal action such that grants and cost

share awards would not on their own trigger compliance with

NEPA. In other words, a project that requires no federal permit,

review, or other action other than the funding action from USDOT

would not have to complete NEPA at all. This will undoubtedly be

welcome news for proponents of small projects, who will

be spared the effort of preparing documented categorical

exclusions and certain environmental assessments. 

However, the change could end

up having less welcome implications for large projects that will still

need to complete NEPA for the bevy of permits and reviews

required by other resource protection laws, e.g. Clean Water Act,

Endangered Species Act, etc. For such projects, if the funding from

USDOT is no longer a federal action under NEPA, then it’s likely

that the USDOT modal administration will no longer be the lead

agency for the project. Instead, the authority of the lead agency to

set the project’s purpose and need, and

to establish the alternatives for consideration may instead be held

by one of the resource agencies that is permitting the

project, e.g. the Fish and Wildlife Service, Army Corps,

or other agency. This could result in a very different relationship

between the federal lead agency and the state or local sponsor,

including because those resource agencies may not use a joint lead

agency approach with State DOTs. It could also stretch

capacity very thin at resource agencies, many of

have historically been under-resourced, because they would have

to complete the work of lead agency for transportation projects

instead of relying on the Division and Regional offices at

USDOT, which all have NEPA expertise on staff. (Title 23’s Section

139 includes language that makes USDOT OAs the lead agency for

any “project” defined under that section, but the section itself

presupposes the applicability of NEPA, so it’s unclear how the

interaction would be interpreted. At minimum, the change to the

definition of major federal action could cause significant

uncertainty and litigation risk.) 



Another noteworthy change is the language on the “application

timeline.” The provision requires agencies to indicate within 60

days of receiving an application whether it is complete or not (and

what information is still outstanding). Then within another 60

days of completeness, the agency must either notify the applicant

that the project is subject to a categorical exclusion, or begin the

work of producing an Environmental Assessment (EA) or an

Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). While this may

seem relatively minor, it would effectively address a major gap that

has undermined past efforts to constrain NEPA timelines to

one years for EAs and 2 years for EISes. An EIS starts with issuance

of a Notice of Intent, which makes calculating the starting point for

those documents easier, but agencies may still choose to wait

to issue that NOI—and thereby the starting of the clock—until they

are prepared to complete the EIS in a timely

fashion. Meanwhile EAs have not had a clear “start point” at all. A

more formalized process for completeness determinations and a

timeline for initiating reviews following the completeness

determination will constrain agency flexibility to determine when

the clock will start for the NEPA review, which will make the 1 and

2 year deadlines more meaningful. 

Other changes made by the SPEED Act codify the interpretation of

NEPA already made by the Supreme Court in the Seven Counties

ruling. For instance, the SPEED Act directs agencies to limit

analysis only to effects that are proximately caused by the project

itself, excluding effects that are speculative or separate in place and

time, and directing courts to afford substantial deference to

agencies. Prohibitions on using new information are aligned with

but go beyond prior interpretations that merely relieved agencies

of having to consider new information. 

Those familiar with the environmental review provisions FAST-41,

or under Title 23 Section 139 for highways, transit, and rail

projects, will also recognize certain similar provisions from those

laws. For instance, the bill requires lead agencies to invite all other

relevant agencies to participate as cooperating agencies within 21

days and to develop a permitting schedule for all necessary

reviews, and it also requires project sponsor to approve a NEPA



timeline extension. Several of the judicial review changes also

mimic the FAST-41 provisions applicable to projects that opt to

be covered projects for the Permitting Council. For instance,

entities would have to have submitted a unique comment on the

action in order to have standing to file suit. Going beyond FAST-41

provisions, such entities would also have

to demonstrate they’re suffering direct harm. 

Partisan Politics within Permitting Reform 

It is nothing new for permitting reform to be used to make changes

for specific types of activities on a partisan basis.

For instance in the Energy Policy Act of 2005, Section 390

specified several categorical exclusions for oil and gas drilling on

public lands, with no similar process for other forms of energy

development. Deepwater ports engaged in the transport of oil and

gas are excluded from review under the Outer Continental Shelf

Lands Act, and not required to obtain the OCS air permit

that offshore wind projects are subject to. (This dynamic may be

more present in energy sector projects than

in transportation, but it’s not wholly absent, for instance highway

projects continue to enjoy certain benefits not available to transit

projects, such as the ability to acquire right-of-way in advance of

completing environmental review for the project.) 

The change is not the presence of partisan preferences for project

types, particularly in the energy space, but rather a shift from being

primarily a priority for Republicans focused on oil and gas projects,

to being also a priority for Democrats focused on clean energy

approvals. The economics of clean energy projects, e.g. the

increasingly competitive prices of solar panels and battery storage

systems and the urgency of completing transmission lines to

connect these projects to the grid to mitigate climate change has

made permitting a priority for Democrats where previously the

party was generally neutral to opposed.  

Partisan preference over project type has also affect

implementation of permitting laws and presidents have used their

authority within resource protection laws to advance or hinder



projects. For instance, President Biden imposed a moratorium on

new coal leasing on federal lands.  

This year the Trump Administration brought the partisan

influence to what many perceived as a different level by not only

imposing a moratoria on future offshore wind leases and imposing

new hurdles for renewable energy permitting, but also revoking

permits that were already approved for offshore wind

projects. The Administration has sought to revoke

permits from Atlantic Shores South, a windfarm off the coast of

New Jersey, New England Wind, and halted construction on

Empire Wind and Revolution Wind. Some of these orders

have ultimately been litigated and lifted; notably, earlier this month

a federal judge struck down the executive order that froze offshore

wind permitting for being arbitrary and capricious and in violation

of the Administrative Procedures Act. Nonetheless the Trump

is still seeking to re-review and revoke permits previously granted

for the industry.  

In response, House Democrats in committee

successfully inserted language on “federal certainty” that would

have prohibited an agency from rescinding or changing an approval

previously granted unless ordered to by a court or requested by an

applicant. However on Thursday, through a set of three

amendments offered by Representative Andy Harris (R-

MD), Republicans removed much of the federal certainty

language, preserved the work of “ongoing administrative

corrections” begun on January 20, 2025, and finally made the

process changes in the bill not applicable to offshore wind

projects. With these changes the bill went from being largely

neutral with regard to project type to explicitly anti-offshore wind,

diminishing any prospect of significant bipartisan support. 

The “Permits” being “Reformed” in Permitting Reform 

“Permitting reform” is the new broad umbrella term for what was

previously most often called “project delivery” and prior to that

“streamlining” and it can refer to many issues, some of which are at

best tangential to permits. Technically NEPA itself is not a

permitting law, nor are the timelines and judicial review provisions

https://storage.courtlistener.com/recap/gov.uscourts.dcd.280980/gov.uscourts.dcd.280980.18.0.pdf


associated with NEPA. Mandates for oil and gas lease sales are

another issue often sought through “permitting

reform” despite not being truly an issue of permitting.  

Democratic party interest in permitting reform is heavily focused

on another permitting-adjacent issue, which is interconnection

queues and the cost allocation of and siting decisions

on transmission lines. As work on permitting reform moves to the

Senate, the question of what will be included under the permitting

reform banner remains a critical open question, but it is expected

that permitting reform will have to include a broader suite of

changes rather than focusing narrowly on NEPA in order to win the

bipartisan support needed for passage.  

https://enotrans.org/
https://twitter.com/enotrans
https://www.linkedin.com/company/eno-center-for-transportation/
https://www.instagram.com/enotrans/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmWCrJqPsMpsRW4-byVJX9A


This week, the Trump Administration released a proposed rule for

Corporate Average Fuel Economy (CAFE) standards that marks a

sharp departure from prior practice on vehicle emissions

regulations and presages a retreat from EV manufacturing within

the U.S. auto industry. National Highway Traffic Safety

Administration’s (NHTSA’s) proposed rule includes new standards

for light-duty passenger vehicles and light trucks for model years

(MYs) 2022-2026, which cut the required average CAFE level to a

REBECCA HIGGINSDECEMBER 5, 2025 |

 Articles  Weeks of November 24 and December 1, 2025 

DOT Issues Rule Reversing CAFE Trend Line Away From EVs

DOT Issues Rule Reversing CAFE Trend Line Away
From EVs

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/12/05/2025-22014/the-safer-affordable-fuel-efficient-safe-vehicles-rule-iii-for-model-years-2022-to-2031-passenger
https://enotrans.org/article/
https://enotrans.org/issue/weeks-of-november-24-and-december-1-2025/
https://enotrans.org/
https://enotrans.org/


fleetwide 34.5 miles per gallon in 2031, down from 50.4 mpg in

2031 under the rule previously finalized in 2024. 

The proposed rule is framed as a win for affordability and

consumer choice by USDOT Secretary Duffy and has also been

hailed as a win by the leadership of Ford, GM, and Stellantis. The

Alliance for Automotive Innovation (which represents not just the

“Big Three” but also foreign automakers with U.S. assembly plants,

many of which are now EV-focused, as well as parts manufacturers

including battery makers) had a slightly more hesitant response,

with CEO John Bozella noting that they are “reviewing NHTSA’s

announcement, but… glad the agency has proposed new fuel

economy standards” given that the prior standards were

“extremely challenging for automakers to achieve given the current

marketplace for EVs.” 

As the quote from Bozella indicates, although the standards

regulate the fuel economy of gasoline powered internal

combustion engine (ICE) vehicles, the real story and outstanding

issue is the future of EVs. While NHTSA’s statutory obligation is to

set CAFE standards at the maximum feasible level without

considering the presence of EVs in the fleet, many automakers did

use EVs to achieve compliance, and critics of the Biden-era rules

described the standards as an EV mandate (especially once the

required average for passenger cars crossed 60 mpg). With this

rule, the Administration removes benefits for domestic EV

manufacturers and weakens motivation for automakers to invest in

EV technology and manufacturing capacity by making it easier to

comply with ICE vehicles alone. However as international demand

moves toward electrification and China expands their dominance

of the EV market, this regulatory change runs the risk that U.S.

automakers will be increasingly uncompetitive in the global

market. 

Decoupling CAFE and GHG standards 

Historically, NHTSA’s CAFE standards have been released jointly

with or harmonized with the Environmental Protection

Administration’s (EPA’s) vehicle greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

standards issued under the authority of the Clean Air Act, and also

https://www.autosinnovate.org/posts/press-release/automaker-statement-on-nhtsa-cafe-proposal
https://www.autosinnovate.org/posts/press-release/automaker-statement-on-nhtsa-cafe-proposal
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/?issueg_pdf=true&issueg=895
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-8-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-8-2025/
https://enotrans.org/?issueg_pdf=true&issueg=894
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-15-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-8-2025/
https://enotrans.org/issue/week-of-december-8-2025/


have taken into account automaker compliance requirements

under California’s clean car standards. In the past, harmonizing the

three different sets of rules to the extent legally allowable, despite

the differences in the statutory aims and requirements, was

thought to enable automakers to have their same vehicle fleet

more easily achieve compliance with multiple standards.  

However, this year EPA is in the midst of reconsidering and

expected to overturn the endangerment finding that underpins

their authority to use the Clean Air Act to regulate GHG emissions.

Meanwhile in May, Congress revoked California’s waiver that

allows them to regulatevehicle emissions. (California and 10 other

states have filed litigation against the EPA on the issue, with a

hearing set for January 29, 2026, therefore there is still some

uncertainty on whether manufacturers will continue to have to

comply with those rules.) With this changing legal landscape,

NHTSA released their proposal entirely independently,

representing a full decoupling of CAFE standards and tailpipe

emissions standards.  

As part of that decoupling, and in light of the changed landscape,

the proposed CAFE standards use a different approach to

considering EVs in determining the maximum feasible standards.

Under the Biden Administration, NHTSA conducted an analysis

under a “standard setting perspective” that, per statute, did not

consider the availability of EVs and other such technologies to

improve fuel economy, and they established Model Year standards

that were considered achievable based only on the technologies

available to ICE vehicles. However, NHTSA also modeled an

“unconstrained perspective” that did consider these technologies

and applied them to the extent that they were cost- effective

compliance pathways. In other words, NHTSA’s past rules assumed

that automakers would use a combination of ICE vehicle

technological changes as well as production of EVs and purchasing

of credits from over-complying manufacturers to achieve

compliance, with some automakers opting to pay civil penalties

rather than achieving full compliance across all fleets. In an opinion

piece in the Detroit Free Press, Secretary Duffy described this

approach as “Biden and Buttigieg violat[ing] a provision of the

https://enotrans.org/article/epa-proposes-to-reverse-ghg-endangerment-finding/
https://enotrans.org/article/senate-republicans-whittle-away-filibuster-protections-in-vote-on-california-clean-cars-rule/
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2024-06-24/pdf/2024-12864.pdf
https://www.freep.com/story/opinion/contributors/2025/12/04/trump-mileage-cafe-standards-evs-car-prices-sean-duffy/87593497007/?gnt-cfr=1&gca-cat=p&gca-uir=false&gca-epti=z114628p003550c003550u116328d00----v114628&gca-ft=38&gca-ds=sophi
https://www.freep.com/story/opinion/contributors/2025/12/04/trump-mileage-cafe-standards-evs-car-prices-sean-duffy/87593497007/?gnt-cfr=1&gca-cat=p&gca-uir=false&gca-epti=z114628p003550c003550u116328d00----v114628&gca-ft=38&gca-ds=sophi


federal law that bars consideration of EVs when setting average car

mileage requirements” in order “to help achieve their radical

electric vehicle utopia.” Hisnew proposed rule removes all

consideration of EVs as a compliance path, and significantly

weakens the required average standards. 

The rule makes several other noteworthy changes from prior

regulatory structures. For one, NHTSA proposes to eliminate the

inter-manufacturer credit trading system starting in 2028.

Through this system, under-complying automakers could achieve

compliance with CAFE standards by purchasing credits from over-

complying automakers. While automakers will still be able to use

the EVs and other over-complying vehicles in their own fleets to

comply with the CAFE standards, they won’t be able to trade with

manufacturers that produce only EVs. These credits were a

significant source of revenue for EV manufacturers such as Tesla,

which earned $2.76 billion from regulatory credits in 2024.

Although an important change, the demand for regulatory credits

was driven by interest in avoiding civil penalties for non-

compliance, but the so-called “One Big Beautiful Bill Act” signed on

July 4, 2025 eliminated this compliance mechanism by setting the

penalty amount to $0, so market analysts had already anticipated

that interest in these credits would dry up before 2028.   

The rule also reclassifies SUVs, moving them out of the category of

light trucks and into cars. This approach is reasonable based on the

uses of the vehicles, but the change in the category further reduces

the maximum feasible increase in MPG that fleets could achieve

and therefore makes it more difficult to set stringent standards for

cars. Collectively, these changes to the way the fleet is defined, the

way compliance will be achieved, and the decoupling from the



EPA’s broader approach on GHG emissions, result in significantly

weaker CAFE standards. 

Implications for Global Competitiveness 

Senator Bernie Moreno (R-OH) at an automaker industry event

earlier this week was quoted reflecting on the future of the auto

industry and calling the choice to embrace electrification

“irrational, dumb policy.” Speaking about domestic automaker

competitiveness with China, Sen. Moreno (a former car dealer) said

“We were ahead of them by a mile, by 10 miles, on the internal

combustion engine. They went into EVs, and then they convinced

the Western world to go into EVs and play their game.” According

to USDOT, retreating to the more solid footing of ICE engines will

allow automakers to improve their competitiveness by allowing

them to “refocus on making cars the American people actually

want.”  

U.S. automakers had already started walking back commitments to

new EV models and reducing estimates for future demand, a trend

likely hastened by the repeal of EV tax credits. However U.S.

consumer demand for electric models has been growing steadily,

with the share of EV sales reaching nearly 12% in the third quarter

of this year. Automakers have invested significant R&D into

developing EVs, and in 2025 there are 28 different EV car models,

and 79 SUV EV models available as well as 6 pick-ups. Sales of

Ford’s Mustang Mach-E were double the sales of the ICE version in

August.  

While the U.S. debates fuel economy standards for internal

combustion engines, much of the rest of the world has moved on to

electrification goals. In Canada, for instance, engine standards

were harmonized with U.S. standards set in 2015 and haven’t been

revisited, while the country has since committed to achieve 100%

zero-emission vehicle sales by 2035 for all new light -duty vehicles

(although Prime Minister Carney recently announced the

suspension of the interim 20% target by 2026). Globally, demand

for EVs continues to grow with EV sales topping 17 million

worldwide in 2024, a growth of more than 25 percent. China

continues to dominate the market. As this graph from Reuters

https://www.detroitnews.com/story/business/autos/2025/12/02/moreno-says-united-states-allies-dumb-to-compete-with-china-on-evs/87566739007/?gnt-cfr=1&gca-cat=p&gca-uir=true&gca-epti=z115047p115750c115750d00----v115047d--46--b--46--&gca-ft=126&gca-ds=sophi
https://www.automotivemanufacturingsolutions.com/electrification/trumpera-policy-shift-slows-us-ev-investment-plans/1597967


shows, China has been the top auto-exporting country since 2023,

and now controls 40% of global vehicle production. 

Although China exports both ICE vehicles and EVs, they are

particularly dominant in affordable EV technology. Chinese

vehicles have some advantages in range and battery charging times

but most importantly their EVs out-compete other manufacturers

on affordability. Whereas in the U.S. battery electric vehicles face a

31% price premium relative to ICE vehicles, in China EVs have been

less expensive than ICE cars since 2023. 

Chinese brands have already achieved a strong foothold in the

European and Mexican markets. In Mexico, Chinese brands

represented 20% of the new vehicle sales, and approximately 70%

of EV new car sales in 2024. Chinese automakers have aggressively

expanded inEuropean markets and doubled their market share

there during the first half of 2025, now exceeding 5% of new

vehicle sales in Europe.  Demand for EVs in Europe is a significant

part of this—in 2024 electric vehicles reached 21% of the new

vehicle fleet. In Mexico, in 2024 Chinese brands held 20% of the

new vehicle market, and approximately 70% of EV new car sales. A

retreat from EV capacity by U.S. automakers could undermine the

ability of these companies to compete in the global marketplace,

and even in the domestic market when Chinese automakers

eventually enter it. 

https://www.jato.com/resources/news-and-insights/the-global-bev-transition-same-destination-different-speeds-across-regions


U.S. automakers may face competition from Chinese automakers

closer to home even without Chinese automakers entering the

domestic market. Today, Canada is the number one export

destination for U.S. manufactured cars, and a 100% Canadian tariff

on Chinese-made EVs has prevented any Chinese brands from

entering the market. China has their own retaliatory tariffs on

Canadian agricultural products. However, in June of this year,

China formally requested that the World Trade Organization

review Canada’s tariff to determine whether the tariffs are WTO-

compliance or subject to removal. Between that review and the

ongoing trade disputes with the U.S., paired with the movement of

U.S. manufacturing facilities out of Canada and back into the U.S.,

Canada and China could foreseeably come to a new trade

agreement that would allow Chinese brands to cater to Canada’s

EV buyers, who reached 11.7% of their country’s light duty vehicle

shares in 2023. 

https://enotrans.org/

	Agenda
	Tab 1 - Minutes
	Tab 2 - Federal Funds Update
	Tab 3 - Transportation Improvement Program Amendment 3
	Tab 4 - Performance Targets
	Tab 5 - Statewide Safe Active Transportation Plan Letter of Support
	Tab 6 - Federal Discretionary Grant Support
	Tab 7 - Ozark MOA Amendment - Multi-Trail Planning and Design Project
	Tab 8 - Nicholas and Tracker Intersection Project Management MOA
	Tab 9 - Chesterfield Lofts Lease Renewal
	Tab 10 - Public Comment
	Tab 11 - Articles



